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Two fruitful decades to herald a bright future
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Our Group was listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange ANEBR— NN NFEREBHE L FH
in 1996, marking a major milestone in its corporate developments. Over the AR A AIER L AAEBE D EEE
past twenty years, we have embraced a “nothing is impossible” attitude, HJEE K EBRRME - fE1BEH — +F » F 1M
underscored by “proactive, services and commitment,” and put in practice & [ L= AIaE| & [E8) R K&
the notions of “maintaining profitability and dividends distribution to create 75| MIREE - B [ A IKAIEE R
value” and “preserving stability with foresight to enhance growth”, in order B EFIEE | B2 & AR R F & A
to maximize value for shareholders. For the 20 years following our listing, we &) Fll & o £ 38 £ #) = +F &+ F R
have mastered different moments, conducted ourselves flexibly and moved &[22 i - B E & & - @K 1515 - 15
along with the trends to achieve robust growth, as attested by our continually LAttt & - IR BRI 5 IR ) b
rising share prices. Our shareholders have shared the fruits of this success and 7+  BRERGSUELZRE W2 AW EZE
our shares are highly recommended by professional investors, time and again, HEEZHEN BEREEBENBRZ - AR
as worthy investments. Concurrently, we occupy a leadership position in the BB fa] AR 88 SN 5% 4 7 T 35 AL B &t s
international server casings market, garnering endorsements and acclaims &5 & A RRE &KEF e

across various sectors.

Through the sustained deepening of our automation initiatives and 4B TE XX FBEFEF LA KR
enhancement of our customer-based foundation, a sturdy cornerstone has B EFFEM CEY 7T BENER
been laid for the Group's industrial business. Both the competitive advantages — #& & 12 [E| B) T 3 275 s RV E 2 1R
and ample resources provided by our firmly established industrial businesses £ 2 5989 & )& - & T 9 1 &7 = £ pa 1
have uncovered endless business opportunities for us and spawned a FETRXBBIEHEELREELE
diversified business portfolio including consumer services and real-estate HEZEZEK  YE U ALR -

business, to provide a source of abundant income.

Looking ahead, we will never be contented with the status quo or slow our  BA X - & /91~ & b8 B X 30 Ak M W48 &
growth pace. While industrial business will remain our core business, we are % F P91 A T ¥ 2% Az D %2755
seeking breakthroughs relentlessly under the work approach of “execution, = K38 - 77 [#177 - 7 # » BIHT « &
expansion, innovations and inheritance”. When the Group's other segments &1 895 &t 5 E b iR SR 2 7SR R 1%
materializes, we envision that all our business interests will thrive, each &K EKEELEZEBERENAH -
demonstrating its unique strengths, and complement each other — backed by B EHKAE SR £KEE
the strong foundation of our industrial business — to offer our shareholders EF & AR ERE AUz B H
larger gains, be on track towards sustained growth and unfold a new chapter FEERMERE FARASERKRER
in the Group’s developments. Our comprehensive efforts are focused on ¥ — B 2 EBEZEEBENBESA G
building a stable, integrated business that truly delivers value. *o

On the 20th anniversary year of the Group's listing, let us wish the Karrie :E#E bt — +EAEH S  MFER N 25
business will “continue to grow from strength to strength and achieve newer [ &L ER 14 : BIFT 2 | o

milestones.”
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Two Decades of a Remarkable Journey

1996/1997

FHRE-—DER BRAEE
WEBEMMNEFERBT IR
The first annual report published
after the company’s listing
demonstrates the global spread
of our primary products and
customers.

1997/1998

RAARRFREGEENSS BE
[BsA] - PARRENEE  ERBR -EFH
HAEEGTH  RE 25215 AH
B BIARRBEBEN IR

Our company logo is inspired by

the palm leaf, symbolizing victory,
expansion of influence and flourishing
developments. Back when we started,
we introduced a manufacturing piece
work system, backed by our belief in
the idea of “work more, earn more
and treat others with sincerity, "
S \Vhich has proven
to facilitate our
business victory.

1998/1999

(B E  BrE ] - Bi1997
M REREHE LR ES
NEHE REFHEAR

“Rebirth of the new Karrie &
march toward excellence.” After
overcoming the 1997 Asian
financial crisis, we went through a
challenging experience comparable
to a phoenix emerging from the
baptism of fire to fly towards an
exceptional future.

1999/2000

REEXY —+RAF AEBL EHEEMSE N
NemEREE TARERBERRRE EXTER
FEHBAL o

Celebrating the 20th anniversary year of its
incorporation, our Group employed the funds raised
from its public listing to acquire large-scale, leading-
edge equipment and facilities during the Asian
financial crisis, which paved a strong foundation for
its industry leadership position.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F [ B # g 7 R 4* &

2000/2001

EEELBERNEERTRMALEE Z e &
REET AEENERTNEERERRE BEEY
- WTREBEEOERNE REERE -
Amid the gloom of the US economic recession along
with the new circumstances revolving around China’s
accession to the World Trade Organization, our Group
could still navigate the ever-changing global economic
landscape successfully through a combination of its
excellent equipment, superior product quality and
outputs and a well-balanced offensive-defensive
business strategy.




200172002

HAEEMZ 2 HRERNE T 5
—REENEE - & H K7 mE
BERERER AEERKEEN
BE BREBZEK-

A kindergarten established under
the Group held a creative event
where its pupils jointly painted
pictures for a storybook to depict

a thriving natural landscape with a
great environmental message. Our
Group will continue to work hard
e 2NC ready to
move towards
the path of
excellence.

2004/2005

2002/2003

[EmAEes —#% T2
BREBLTEAER
HiEMENERZEME N
HIATE

“We promise « We
deliver.” This sums up
the Group's philosophy
to work hard and
honour its commitment
to its stakeholders.

T i et B it

2003/2004

[BHE B AEEEREGREEER
PamMAEECEER  HARBHREE XA
& o RIS - IREH FEHR AR A M E B - BARE
EETHERAEME TN E AR
BHRAEBRNRAERETRERE-
“Sunrise, sunset.” Our Group has successfully
transformed itself from a traditional family
business enterprise to a professionally
managed corporation. During this period,
problems surfaced while its businesses
fluctuated. At the same time, we were faced
with the SARs crisis. Still, our staff dealt with
the challenges calmly and courageously and
remained undistracted by the temporary
setbacks, to lay a solid foundation for the
Group's long-term developments.

.....

2005/2006

[TEZIT R E T EESER BRIEENN BLEM]
KERAS HAERRERNEFB REfE - NS EATE RIEEE
BERDWETS ENEASRE B : st 2REETALE
TERTIXBEEMEERREBER LHFEE AT RAEE s O BERX KB UITAIRE B ERD
e REEREENITEZT] HEABLE— T HIEEA | UAARKBEKY - T RRAFR L

TR E T -

“A thousand-mile journey starts with a first step.”
Embracing an ambitious vision in planning its future
developments, the Group judiciously purchased a plot of
land in Yuguan Industrial Zone, PRC, as a land reserve for
later use. The land acquisition was undertaken despite
the resounding success of its industrial developments

in Yantian and Guanjingtou at that time. The move
demonstrates the Group's strategic foresight and its
belief in the importance of “making the first step” to
accomplish the “thousand-mile journey.”

il o

Championing a “Heartfelt dedication in all
details” attitude, our Group has built its

success bit by bit, thanks to the wholehearted
devotion of our staff to accomplish their work to
perfection and challenge the impossible. So, the
excellent business outcome we enjoy today is
far from accidental! This added a congratulatory
footnote to our Group's celebration of its 25th
anniversary year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 4 #
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Two Decades of a Remarkable Journey

2008/2009

BEBETREE T A KR A5 B
REERTENRBE KMEREE -
Bt RERERZ TR AL
MEBEWMATS KA EE -

2006/2007
[REBR)  HANEE LT+
B S BB REBR -
HBERL BAIRE-

“Riding the waves” This was 2007/2008

what we set out to achieve when : : The educational toy of a Chinese

faced with the challenges in the [—RER] EFESTARNE € . seven-piece puzzle was highlighted to
tenth anniversary year of our b B B Efﬂiﬁ&&EK%E@z N * capture the Group's spirit of creating
Group's public listing. Despite SEREERRE SRER BLE . its own opportunities and moving

the odds, we managed to ride . E-—FE®- : along with the trends. True to this

out the wind and waves to : “Join forces to excel.” Facing an : spirit, we adopted an agile, flexible and

strengthen : uncertain future caused by the highly responsive

our . financial crisis and credit crisis, our . |[NEGTE_—_G. diversification
foundation . Group set out on a strategic vision strategy to
for scaling - and made intelligent moves to counter the impact

of the financial
crisis.

the summit ~ : overcome the challenges together.

Riding the Waves

201072011

RY=1TRAF RebEXBELEFXABE &

o S—- L B AEENROIS MEL (BTl | 28
RMEXEORL FRTARERASBDAER e e R R RBERE S R R -

THRBEHORE ZANAREERTE  TXE :
BAR  TE KRB ARG UELERAESE : Marking its 30th anniversary year, the Group
EARKEFE FHOBER  BIL# R - maintained a “Flexibility « Adaptability” approach

as the key to corporate survival
and a competitive tool to
surpass its industry peers and
transcend all the different
challenges and difficulties
ahead.

Through the self-narrative of a traditional sewing
machine, the Group deftly depicted the drastic
changes engulfing the labour market in PRC

and how Karrie staff drew on their spirit of self-
strengthening and pursuit of breakthroughs to defy
the limitations imposed by the predicament, with a
five-year vision to open new frontiers.

04 Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F [ B # ¢ 7 IR 4 &




201172012

RAEAEEZTLEH G &
ErEEREANERE  BIRFE
EEE BERETSH BN
AR EERETIERRARRER
KK R EI R o

Upon embarking on business
diversification, our Group reached a
new milestone in shareholder value

: 2012/2013

AEBBEHLE
EEHE AR A BE
BBEBBEEEM TRE  FE

TR R EE EE RN - BN E R
KBEAKEZHFEINRTE
EBRE AR

Our Group's automation
production moved to a mature

2013/2014

AEBPRIBBERREE - MR
2y mELR] BEmE R%
THERBRRAFR -

Our Group started its consumer-
based and service business and
rapidly established its “Fullhouse
World” brand, the first of its brand
creation initiatives that heralded a

phase, through which the “speed, business diversification move.
precision and stability” achieved
through this initiative helped
reduce our operational costs,
enhance our production efficiency
as well as stabilize our competitive
edge and our robust industrial

business foundation.

creation. By enacting a wedding
scene, the Company evoked a
longstanding and incremental
relationship
with its
shareholders
comparable to
a marriage.

......

AP
2014/2015 [t il

RERNEE AP AMIIEEIE L9765
BIXVIEFE AN FRBK SR FEAR
5 B 3548 FH AR s R 4 (] PR ER 05 1 1S ¢
2 AR AERTRARERNER BXRE
BRI =T HBF 2 FEeiRE -

The ladybug radio invented by our

Group founder Dr. Ho Cheuk Fai in 1976
highlights how the insect constantly
adapts to its surroundings. It is this
versatile spirit that guided the Group
through the various phases of its
developments. The ladybug was portrayed
as the Group’s spiritual symbol for its
35th anniversary celebration.

2015/2016

A EFEMERARKEZHN ABTERZE  WeEER
R TN RE# - EE T RBERAICEE
RRRE R S BRI R—3E-

Chairman Mr. Ho founded Karrie Group with his

wife amidst great challenges but overcame them by
his sharp business insights, combined with an ability
to move with the times and identify the endless
business opportunities. From business diversification
to automated production, the Group’s advancement
has generated impressive gains for its shareholders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 4 #




Karrie’s Milestones

7 | 2

- 1980

o TEMIEEEEEK
AEIREREE - AR
FHESEHINR

e Chairman Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai and his wife
founded the KARRIE
Group to produce
video cassette casings
for clients

1985

o MR fa fE A &R
N E —FTE

e The first plant in the
Mainland China was
set up in Yantian,
Fenggang, Dongguan

1988

c FIRAEE
18 A E

SRR

e PC casings
production was
commenced

1990

o FREERRERINR

e Server casings
production was
commenced

- 1996

e REABBERZFT
FiRLEth

o IR A EE 5 5T T BN

* We were listed on the
main board of Hong

Kong Stock Exchange

e Laser printer
production was

commenced

- 1997

s RERZEE B HEER
ST S — BT IR

* The second plant
in the Mainland
China was set up
in Guanjingtou,
Fenggang, Dongguan

e

2000

s FIREERIRRTER

* The production of data
storage products was
commenced

2001

o I EEWIRE RS

* The production of
point-of-sale system
was commenced

- 2005

M E =PI E

e The third plant in the
Mainland China was
set up in Yuquan,

Fenggang, Dongguan

2007

e MR EABLEE

e The research and
development of
automated production
was commenced

2005




2010
s MIREEEEER

* The production of
medical products was
commenced

———

r 2011

o TEEMANHEWNE
BEMEEE

* The automated
production with six-
axis versatile industrial
robots was fully
applied

2012
c B [REHR] @2

e Established the brand
of “Fullhouse World”

2013

c RERHEERSLZ
fR=z MR EETR R

* Won the project of
producing server
casings with the

world’s highest output

-2015

f

e AV

35 %

o EILEREMFARE
EFMEXRF

e We celebrated the
35th anniversary of
the establishment of
the KARRIE Group

¢ We activated the old
plants and carried out
the residential real

estate business

r 2016

s RAMTEHKEHEREESHZEERKE
-F%%%

20/

* The Guanjingtou plant was merged into Yuquan
plant in Mainland China

RSAERLET

* We celebrated the 20th anniversary of listing on the
main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange

HKEX
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foE 3

e it 7 3 -

1T BIE A ST A R 52 Bl i & $£180,000°F 75 K A2 1 TE
BHEEIRA

ARERREE:

FERBEH/ AN DRELR] BRMHEEECER
i [AEmK e EARE]  {EMHES DmELR] K
R m R

Through the following diversified businesses, Karrie
Group will become a stronger integrated enterprise

Industrial business:

Become the most sophisticated mechanical parts
manufacturing solution and value-added electronics
assembly services provider within global industry

Real estate business:

To complete the residential projects in Fengguan
Dongguan, with a total gross floor area of 180,000
square meters, as scheduled

Consumer and service business:

Experiencing the “Lifestyle - Personalization” through
featured gifts and flexible smallsized “Fullhouse World”
restaurants, making “Fullhouse World” a well-known
brand

2016 2017
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Corporate Information
2 5] B A

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

10th Floor

Southeast Industrial Building
611-619 Castle Peak Road
Tsuen Wan

New Territories

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.karrie.com

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai (Chairman & CEO)

Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia

Mr. ZHAO Kai

Mr. CHAN Raymond (was appointed on 1 June 2016)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. HO Cheuk Ming

(Non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman)
Mr. HO Kai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. SO Wai Chun

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing

Mr. YAM Chung Shing

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. SO Wai Chun

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing
Mr. HO Cheuk Ming
Mr. YAM Chung Shing

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. SO Wai Chun
Mr. HO Cheuk Ming
Mr. YAM Chung Shing

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % IR 2 7]
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. TANG Wing Fai

AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

WINSTON & STRAWN

42nd Floor, Bank of China Tower
1 Garden Road

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia)
China CITIC Bank International Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
Mizuho Bank, Ltd.
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Corporate Information
4 5] B A
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ERER

BHTIE 2N E S AT
BEBPIR

TEEE 155
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4218

ERAERRT

18 4 3R 1T
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R R IRTT (M)

FERT (BER)ERRQA
EELBESRITERAF

IR ERTT
EITRT(FB)BERRA
=HEKRRT

FERODBFERE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM08

Bermuda
EERRMBEERETE
EEPAEFLSEELERAT
&
ERFKERI183
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Key Information for Shareholders

FERKAEH

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2017

Financial Year End
31 March 2017

Announcement of 2016/17 results
29 June 2017

Last day to register for 2016/17 Annual General
Meeting
18 August 2017

Annual General Meeting
25 August 2017

Last day to register for 2016/17 Final and Special
Dividends
30 August 2017

2016/17 Final and Special Dividends Payment Date
19 September 2017

—E-tEMBER

B ELB
—_E—+F=A=+—H

TE-N/—tEEXELNGAY
—E—+EXA-TNH

ZE-XR/LFERRBFAEREABLAY
AV e AN =

RERBFERE
— -+ A\A-t+EHHA

—®-x /L FERBREAREREER
A
~T-t#/\A=tH

ZE-R/LFEERBERERREIKEA
“E-tFAATIHE

SHARE CAPITAL B 2
As at
i
31 March 2017 30 June 2017
—E—tF —E—tF
=A=+-—H NA=1H
Authorised (HK$) SETE (BTT) 400,000,000 400,000,000
Issued (HK$) 2317 (BT) 199,619,520 199,116,120

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l 1 B £ ¢ % R 4 &



ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
AND SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION

As at 30 June 2017, the Company had 1,991,161,200
shares in issue of which approximately 25.6%"" was held
by the public. As at that date, the Company had a total
of 857 registered shareholders. The following table shows
the distribution of ownership according to the Register
of Members and the Participant Shareholding Report
generated from the Central Clearing and Settlement
System as of 30 June 2017:

Key Information for Shareholders

FERKAH

REGBERR D 22

BE_Z—tFXNA=Z1+THB AR HET

J&% 171

,991,161,200% - HAA A RF KR 2 4915

25.6% VB ER B ANRQ R GEAE T MARRSST7
ZoREBRREMEPREEIWNREERN_-F
—tEFRNAZTERENZEERERS - T
WmETUATRRIMERBREESE

Number of % of % of

registered number of Number of total issued

Category shareholders  shareholders shares  share capital

at iR 3R Rt e BT

E5 #E MR R b4 % FhegE 1R 47 £t 1 %

New Sense Enterprises Limited 1 0.12% 487,608,000 24.49%

Castfast Properties Development Co., Ltd. ZREMERERR LA 1 0.12% 330,000,000 16.57%

The Wedding City Co. Limited BOWARRE 1 0.12% 260,000,000 13.06%

Ho's family @ AIREE? 3 035% 400,462,000 20.11%

Directors © 20 3 0.35% 3,304,000 0.17%

Individuals AAREE 657 76.66% 7,304,346 0.36%

Institutions, corporates and nominees WEREE %

REERREA 191 2228% 502,482,854 25.24%

Total CH) 857 100.00%  1,991,161,200 100.00%
Note: =

(1 Public shareholding represents shares held by the public, (1) 2AFFFREARE (BRNew Sense Enterprises Limited *

excluding those held by New Sense Enterprises Limited,
Castfast Properties Development Co., Limited, The Wedding
City Co., Limited, Ho's family and Directors of the Company.

Ho's family comprises Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, Non-executive Director
and Deputy Chairman and Ms. Ho Po Chu.

Directors represent Directors of the Company excluding Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming.

(2)

(3)

FEENERRERAR EYNERAT ARR
REARAEBHERABESN) DRALFAHAE
MR A -

ARk X ERITIRAERAIZBRL  FERITE
ERBITEMERALEERFAERL AN

BERR (RAEEEERMEALLEIN) AREZ
5%

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 4 #
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Key Information for Shareholders

FERREH

As at 30 June 2017 Shareholders Shares of HK$0.1 each
R-Z—tH&XA=TH BRER SREEIBTRS
Number of Shares Held Number % of total Number % of total
FERAHE AB  HEHESL B (hHA¥ELH
1-2,000 514 60.0% 42,955 0.0%
2,001 - 10,000 49 5.7% 255,010 0.0%
10,001 - 20,000 38 4.4% 628,000 0.0%
20,001 - 50,000 59 6.9% 2,120,674 0.1%
50,001 - 100,000 46 5.4% 3,396,098 0.2%
100,001 - 200,000 43 5.0% 6,537,132 0.3%
200,001 - 500,000 36 4.2% 10,876,656 0.5%
500,001 - 1,000,000 14 1.6% 9,913,994 0.5%
1,000,001 - 2,000,000 18 2.1% 25,379,852 1.3%
2,000,001 - 5,000,000 15 1.8% 46,924,094 2.4%
Over 5,000,00044 + 25 29%  1,885,086,735 94.7%

857 100.0%  1,991,161,200 100.0%
MARKET CAPITALISATION i{E

As at 31 March 2017
(Closing Price: HK$0.92)
HK$1,836,499,584

As at 30 June 2017
(Closing Price: HK$1.26)
HK$2,508,863,112

R-ZE—-—+tHE=ZA=+—H
(W mE:0.9287T)
1,836,499,584 7T

R=-ZBE—+tEXA=1+H
(KHE:1.2687T)
2,508,863,112 7T

Share Price Movement and Trade Volume in Financial Year 2016/17

ZE-N —tHBRFEZREEZREX

Share Price (HK$)
BfE (BT)
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o | :r f=* - __.’ r.-__ o - ol 2
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Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % R 4 7]



STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Main Board
1050

BOARD LOT
2,000 Shares

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Any matters relating to your shareholding, such as transfer
of shares, change of name or address, and loss of share
certificates should be addressed in writing to the Hong
Kong branch share registrar of the Company:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862-8628

Fax: (852) 2529-6087

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries, please contact:

Mr. Henry Choi

Chief Financial Officer

Karrie International Holdings Limited
10th Floor, Southeast Industrial Building
611-619 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2411-0913

Fax: (852) 2415-1608

Email: ir@karrie.com

Key Information for Shareholders

FERKAH

1% 42 4 555
BEEHERIMBERRAA
E 1R

1050

BFERH
2,0008% B 15

IR 3R BR %5

BEREMNER BTERHzEE EBERNE
EoERS BRARES  FIAE EB
MEMNETEROBFET DR :

EETPRBEFELBRAF

BEET
2R ANER183%
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Corporate Calendar

#EAF i@

Awarded the appreciation award by Konica Minolta to appreciate the Group's
;qul- efforts in obtaining the certification from the Food and Drug Administration (USA)
ERERERERKBHIN RHEENEERVERERBDRANE T
AUG Awarded the “2016 Best Quality Supplier” by Hewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE)
8H ¥ Hewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE)7E 2% [ 20164F & 1% i & 1 & 7 |
Awarded the “2015/16 Family-Friendly Employers Award Scheme — Family-
le; Friendly Employers” by Home Affairs Bureau
ERBEHBEEE 2015 M6FEREREREEBFEH -REREEE]
Smoothly produced over one million units of one of the flagship server casings
2016 supplied to Hewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE)
& 45 Hewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE)A)E A — FX A 7] R 23 SN 3R B NIEF) &
@ T
NOV ERB—BES
1A Awarded the “Partner Employer Award” by The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Small and Medium Business
EEER/NAUCEERSENN [KABER] BTt dlBEREZARERTN
A Gong Hit Market Opening Ceremony was held at Hong Kong Stock
‘I|)2E)§ Exchange to celebrate the 20th anniversary of the Group’s listing
REMEE T _+REAF REBBMAERSMBITEE 2m#ERMHEIR
Awarded the “Social Capital Builder Logo Awards” by the Community
J1A}%\l Investment and Inclusion Fund of the Labour and Welfare Bureau
BETIRENBERIRERZESHE [T SEREHEER
Awarded the one of the “Best Household and Kitchen Solutions” in the
“Solutions 2017" Gift Design Competition of Ambiente 2017
2017 REBEENE QBB @ Solutions 20178 R 35 th Beh 547 [ BIERE R
FREBATR] 2 —
FEB
2R The Group completed the renovation of 47 residential units in Fenggang Town
that acquired in October 2016, and all units are expected to be sold out in
2017/18
SRR _ZE-—REF+ABARMEBEO T HETEELD KB BA_F
—t/—N\FEEERHED

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % IR 2 7]




Corporate Calendar

BEAFH i

2017

FEB
2R

MAR
3A

JUN
61

The Group acquired a land parcel in Boluo County, Huizhou, Guangdong
Province by tender, with a residential floor area of approximately 30,000
square meters

SEREREBNMBEZRSUE A2 EEEEEE#30,000% F 75K

The shares of Guangdong Cuifeng Robotics Technology Limited (a company
in which the Group owns 30% interests) were quoted successfully on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations of the People’s Republic of China
(stock code: 871244)

EEHEAI0%ER T ERRIERRARTERODERRARIRFPEARELMH
RN R DEE XGRS (ARDR5E :871244)

Karrie was awarded the “10 Years Plus Caring Company” (Years 2005-2017)
logo, while Fullhouse World under the Group was awarded the “Caring
Company” (2016/17) logo by Hong Kong Council of Social Service

EANEEELE SRS SERE (105 PlusE RERE] (2005-2017)1Z0m £F
ﬁ SmEFAER [HARAEBIE] (2016/17)12 5%

Awarded the appreciation award by NEC Corporation to praise the Group in
providing good services in the manufacturing and delivery of magnetic tape
data storage products and Point-of-Sale systems

JENEC CorporationfBZ ik - LR B EBREERBFER WIEHRER
E M ERM R TR

The merging of Fenggang Guanjingtou Plant into Fenggang Yuquan Plant was
completed, and the ground levelling works were completed in March 2017

BEEFAEREAHEREERMEE ek TR - —+tF= AH THE
e

The real estate development project, “Forest Town"”, in Fenggang Town,
in which the Group is entitled to 50% of its profit, has developed into a
residential project with a floor area over 60,000 square meters. The project
held its topping-out ceremony on 8 June 2017 and is expected to commerce
pre-sale in the fourth quarter of 2017

SENRREZEAR50%EMN B & [FRE ] WEMEZERIEAR @ %&EE60,000
FHABHEENEEERE R-T—tFRNANBEITTHIREN HE
TE-LFENFEAMABEE
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Financial Highlights
W HE

Share Price Movement of the past 5 years

BEAFZREES
Share Price (HK$) Share Price (HK$)
BB GBI BB GBI

1.6 1.6

14 1.4

1.2 1.2

1.0 1.0

08 1 08

06 1 06

04 b . 1 04

02 1 02

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Revenue HK$ million Profit attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million
WABEETT BaiE ARG BEERT
2,898
2,716
2,591 T
2,291
2,033
117
76
-39 - l
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Basic earnings per share HK cents Dividends per share HK cents
BREZTF B AL BRREEA

8.4 6.5
5.9
38 33 3.5
- 1.7 12 !
] [
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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Financial Highlights
g2

Turnover percentage by Products Turnover percentage by Geographical Location
REMEBTNELETL X (based on the country in which the final destination
of shipment is located or services are provided)

RERFEBESINEXEI IR (RERKNE

I Metal and Plastic Business Hib R RIS IREFFEBRS )
HEBRBER
[l Electronics Manufacturing Services Business M Japan B Hong Kon ™ The PRC
ETEERTER EE i o
[ | Consumer and Services Business M Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and the PRC)
HEELMREEED TN (TREAR - FERTE)
¥l Real Estate Business ™ North America M western Europe
[ 3 B 26 7S JbEM FaER
1% 0%

53% 27%

7%
46%

15% 12%

2017 2016 % Changes
—E—tF TE—REF BEE D
HKS$ million A &8
Revenue WA 2,716 2,898 -6%
Gross profit EH 355 352 +1%
Operating profit 5 5 A 199 150 +33%
Profit attributable to equity R E ARG R
shareholders 168 17 +44%
Total assets BEHE 2,337 2,078 +12%
Shareholders’ equity RE R A 1,079 1,017 +6%
In Million HER
Number of shares gk =] 1,996 1,996 =
Per Share Data sRrREHR
HK Cents JEN
Basic earnings B K m A 8.4 5.9 +42%
Diluted earnings BE 205 A 8.4 5.9 +42%
Total cash dividends BRI S 6.5 3.5 +86%
HKS$ BT
Net asset value per share BREEFE 0.5 0.5 -
Financial Ratios Bt =R
Gross profit margin (%) 2R EF (%) 13.1 12.1 +8%
Net profit margin (%) 2R AR (%) 6.2 4.0 +55%
Net current ratio FREILE 2.0 1.2 +67%
Net quick ratio R R BN Y 1.5 0.8 +88%
Net gearing ratio (%) FIRTTIEE LR (%) 30.1 12.0 +151%
Interest coverage FERE L= 22.7 15.0 +51%
Dividend payout (%) R B R (%) 77.4 59.3 +31%
Revenue to net bank borrowings — YZ A EJFER T8 B b K 8.4 23.7 -65%
Non-current assets to total EMBEE R
equity (%) @ E L R (%) 79.3 908 13%
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Financial Highlights
W HE

Definitions E&E
i i Profit attributable to equity shareholders . R E AR
Basic earnings rom .a rbuta quity SRR A F T«b\, L )
per share Weighted average number of shares IN#EF R 8K
' ' Profit attributable to equity shareholders PN EmHa ARG
OISl GRS , — (sTE Ry = —
per share Diluted weighted average number of shares Ba hniE TR E
Net assets P BEFE
Net asset value s R E E/\n
per share Number of shares as at year end FERRH
Gross profit Gross profit o . I ¢ E A .
. R 1
margin (%) Revenue x 100% w9 WA x 100%
Net profit Profit for the year . EEHF
: 100% AR (% x 100%
margin (%) Revenue X ° AP (5¢) WA °
Current assets _ e & E
Net t rati Y Eh b : =
et current ratio Current liabilities T o mEBE
Current assets less inventories _ REBEERFE
Net quick rati R IRB) K - =
et quick ratio Current liabilities railge RBE &
Bank borrowings and obligations RITEERBARET
Net gearing under finance leases less cash and HRTEE EEREAD K
ratio (%) bank deposits L 2 (%) RITHER
Total equity EmiRE
Earnings before interest expenses, tax, MBRFIE S - A -
Interest coverage depreciation and amortisation FI B E & P18 N SH R i A
Interest expenses ME X H
Dividend Dividend per share . FREE
x 100% R B R (% — x 100%
payout (%) Earnings per share ° ! (%) A& 4 A °
Revenue WA
R to net — ONE T e
b:\rlwinggrrgvafwgs Bank borrowings and obligations under SRR TS B b BITEERBERET
finance leases less cash and bank deposits o EERE S RIBITFER
Non-current Non-current assets BB E N IERBEE
assets to total Total equity R RELX(%) = iRE
equity (%)
. J
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS

The Group is principally engaged in

Metal and Plastic (“M&P") Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products, including
server casings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and
predominately self-brand household products;

Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS") Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data
storage, point-of-sale (“POS”) system, medical
products, office automation products and other
computer peripherals;

Consumer and Services Business: building of
“Fullhouse World” Brand, provision of relevant
services, such as catering services and sales of
themed gifts; and

Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real
estate project investment, property leasing and
development.

LB RBRE

Metal and plastic business

fa AR 28 Sh AR

Server casings

Chairman’s Statement

T A

SEXERS

- I2ZBEB([RLZR]) HERH
EREMNEBEM BREMARSIZ B
B BRRSBHUHRABRMEREZ
REEME:

- BIFEEXERIXZB([EFHRII)  RE
REEMTHBIER TS KRB
BEEM MAEXEERMEGEKE
BEm

- HEERRBGERD BIYREER]m
BREERRBREE BB EAR
R K

- BFBHEXRB EHNE FHEERABAR
B WMEHEHENER-

BEFERAIRE

Electronic manufacturing
services business

R

L__-———e_'——_.x-'

YR R AR
POS system

FHRER
Storage product
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Chairman’s Statement

%8
1. Business Review
/. Results

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the revenue of
the Group was HK$2,715,859,000 (for the year ended
31 March 2016: HK$2,897,605,000), decreased by
approximately 6% when compared with the corresponding
period of last year. On the contrary, profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company amounted to
HK$168,333,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2016:
HK$117,076,000), increased by approximately 44% when
compared with the corresponding period of last year.
The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease
in sales of EMS Business that has a lower gross profit
contribution. Despite a decrease in revenue, profit of
the Group recorded a sound growth, which was mainly
due to the production efficiency improvement brought
by the merging of plants and the continuous deepening
of automation application, as well as the mitigation of
production cost pressure due to Renminbi depreciation
during the year. In addition, for Consumer and Services
Business which continued its accelerated integration to
improve the efficiency of its operation, the operating loss
of relevant businesses during the year decreased by 56%
to HK$21,684,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2016:
HK$49,796,000) when compared with the corresponding
period of last year.

Furthermore, the Real Estate Business recorded a
revenue of HK$4,186,000 with an operating profit of
HK$1,650,000 during the year (for the year ended 31
March 2016: operating loss of HK$10,632,000), which
was mainly due to the valuation gain in investment
properties of HK$1,358,000 from the revaluation of the
investment properties in Yixing (for the year ended 31
March 2016: valuation loss in investment properties of
HK$11,281,000). The Real Estate Business was still at its
development stage and no significant gain was recorded
during the year.

II. Industrial Business — M&P and EMS

Revenue for 2016/17 decreased by approximately 6%
when compared with last year, which was mainly due to:

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % R 4 7]

(=) EKBOE
/ Ev-y

HE - Z—+F=ZA=+—HULFE AEHZ
BEA2,715,859,0008 L (HE —_T— &
=A=+—HI¥E: 2,897,605,000/% )%
EFRBATHRO6% HRARAE=FE AR
% F A168,333,0008 T (HHE T —R~F=
A=+—HBIEEE 117,076,000 T ) L £ F
FEHEEINT H44% - BEXBITHRETELEFNE
BRECEFRIEBGHEE TEMK-AFESE
XTI SEZGEMDETHEIEE T E2H
WW%AH BFERECER EIMEEX

TUARARERAFEERNRZBENEFELEE
%ﬁrﬂﬁwwﬁiigﬁE%&%%%%ﬁ
MRBEERETIBENER  NFEHRBEK
I EBHEREFRH TM56%%E21,684,000
/E?’E(@i T—/\E )EJ JF Hﬁir
49,796,000/ 7T ) °

o EHEXB I AFEHSEERA
4,186,000/ 7T - E &L & % #) &1,650,000/% 7T
(BE - RNF=A=1+—"HULEFE : &LE
10,632,000 L) " FERREEBEEHEKE
YIEES1,358,0008 T EWEHE K (B
E-T-—XRNFE=ZA=+—HILFE 11,281,000
BITEREMELHEEE) FHEXKNERR
PEER RFEERBEBERMURE -
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TE R L FEEEEREFTTRN6%

=R
FT=x&E"



(a) Revenue of the M&P Business for the year ended
31 March 2017 decreased slightly by approximately
4% to HK$1,435,898,000 (for the year ended 31
March 2016: HK$1,500,133,000) when compared
with the corresponding period of last year. The
slight decrease in revenue was mainly due to the
drop in revenue of the non-mainstream server
casing products.

(b) Revenue of the EMS Business for the year ended
31 March 2017 decreased by approximately 8% to
HK$1,256,973,000 (for the year ended 31 March
2016: HK$1,369,868,000) when compared with
the last year, which was mainly due to (i) the drop
in revenue that resulted from the fierce competition
of data storage products and the product cycle
of the manufacturing this generation of magnetic
tape data storages had entered into its maturity
stage; and (ii) the strategic move to decrease
the manufacturing of lower profit margin office
automation products by the Group.

() The Group's Industrial Business achieved fabulous
remarkable results and played a leading role in the
international server casing manufacturing market,
occupying a 10% market share of the international
server shipment. It also passed the ISO certification
and the more stringent Electronic Industry
Citizenship Coalition ("EICC") Code of Conduct
audit smoothly within a short period of time after
the plant merging. The results of which are shown
as follows:

(1) Plant integration:

The Group smoothly merged its Fenggang Guanjingtou
Plant, Dongguan into Fenggang Yuquan Plant, Dongguan
and integrated its plant operation successfully. Although
the merging of the plants was a huge project and
was prone to cause losses, however, under the close
cooperation and precise planning of each department and
the joint efforts of the entire team, the Group ensured
the resources were reused efficiently with minimum
wastage and maintained its normal operation without
any production delay. The smooth completion of the
plant integration had demonstrated the strength of the
Group’s team, saved costs and improved production
efficiency of the Group, and further enhanced its market
competitiveness.

Chairman’s Statement

(a) HeBRBREFREBEE_Z—+tF=A
T+ HLEFEZEEERELAFRH
R TR T #94%%1,435,898,000/% T
(BE-ZT—R"E=A=1+—HILFE:
1,500,133,00087T) o H BB TZE -
FERFERARZARBINREMAE
E N

by EFRIEBREBEEZE-_ZT—LtF=A
T+ HLEFEZEEXEEREFET
27T #8%%1,256,973,000/% 7T (&
E_E-XRNE=ZA=+—HLFE:
1,369,868,000/87C) - EEMH R (WEIE R
GERBFBUREEEZE R EK
BREETSEMREEAKAREE A
i 28 B T B 5 R (i) A 5= B 5 M b Rk
LEEEBIERENBORAEERE

=
on °

(0 AKBEZIXRTEBEEES NEERGER
BINREEM S EREMA - 2IRERE
EEBPEAEXEI% LEEKESH
‘EOERBEAR BRIEFEBISOR &
FEREBNEFITEARKEA (TEICC )T
AERER REEBRER

(1 mWE-—£t:

B R=REEHEREAHER=RMEE
RBE LA EEE—8 & 0FmETE
IR ApEKER BESBHEEAIERE
EHRET BEER LT -0 BRERSUABRE
R RBEKRRE UIRFBEELR REER
HE-IBNTKBE —RIEERASE BB
B YAANKEBEXAS BMEERE B
—HRAREETISHEFN -
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Chairman’s Statement

(2) Continuous deepening of automation application:

During the year, the Group further deepened and
promoted more automation production processes, of
which the staking automation, computer numerical control
bending robots application, riveting process automation,
cabinet welding robots and automation in assembly line
station had successfully been applied. The plastic injection
and secondary process integrated production automation
achieved a breakthrough and had successfully merged
various workmanship positions into one and improved
work position production efficiency efficiently and saved
manpower.

e

FBRRIMT
Plastic Injection and
Secondary Process

NETRBET 7
Riveting Assembly
Process

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % R 4 7]

(2) ATERECBEBCER:

AERE-—FPRECUEEERZLEETE HP
Pead BIERRABBARR NITTEF
B BEEEREIA RKEZTNTHASLES
F/RUAKINER: T2 R - AMI—BE8#E
ENGRE KO EZEAIEELAHR—F
MBBTT TR EEREREE AT -

FERRILEEML  E—LEFLEE
HERBDEAS

HEBREMAER
CNC Bending Robots Application

HEBHE

Staking Automation

—




3)

Real-time quality management :

The Group conducted real-time quality identification,
monitoring and improvement for its production. With
rendering the systematization of product quality and
rapid response as the objectives, they improved the
Group's overall production competitiveness and strived to
achieve the vision of “becoming the most sophisticated
mechanical parts manufacturing solution and value-added
electronics assembly services provider within the global
industry”.

(4)

()

Market stability and development:

Customers’ recognition, of which the Group
received the “2016 Best Quality Supplier” from
Hewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE);

PTEERBIAE (EZ) REEHEMETAE (A=) REB=EHETEFHPERZE N [2016F K=
MEMER | ZiT RHEE FEHPER RIS MRS C X KBS N2 EBryan Wessingerft £ (F—) &

SREEArun AdatiE (E—)EFER

Mr. Chan Raymond, Executive Director (second from left) and Mr. Ho Wai Hon, Assistant to Chairman
(second from right) received the “2016 Best Quality Supplier” from HPE, our customer, in San
Francisco, U.S.A. A photo with Mr. Bryan Wessinger, Senior Director of Corporate Group Division —
HPE Global Strategic Procurement (first from right) and Mr. Arun Adat, Senior Manager (first from

left) at the ceremony

Chairman’s Statement

b

3

mR

(3) ERmEERE:

I

BASENEEETREERER BEREEN
ERNE DELEREAREEMRERERHA
T BRERAKBELEERT N MAOEK K
REREARETENKRBREERIEESE
MHERRGHER ] OFESR-

(4) WmEHENRERRA:

(1) EEXFERA EhESHewlett Packard
Enterprise (HPE)JE 2 [2016F &xEmE
R

The Group obtained the orders of the new
generation server casings project (2017-2020) and
had smoothly completed moulds manufacturing
and trial production under the team efforts. Some
casings had already commenced delivery and
entered into product introduction cycle, laying a
solid foundation for generating steady income for
next three years; and

() SEEERRS[IZFT—KRIER (2017-
2020 )R E - EEBME N TEIEHE
REARENHE FHERBTERE
AEMNBELB  BRRK=ZFITTERE
mREHRETWA R
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Chairman’s Statement

(I The Group successfully received orders of
manufacturing servers from domestic renowned
technological enterprises and expanded its new
business, of which they include orders of moulds
export and orders of personal medical products,
with the hope of providing additional growth
momentum for the Group.

(5) Establishment of echelon and research and
development:

The Group conducted different trainings for staff at
different levels, with special focus on targeted professional
trainings in enterprise management, project management,
administrative management, so as to enable management
staff at different levels to update and enrich their
knowledge structure and improve job skills, thus ensuring
the management of each department of the Group is
more professional and operation is smoother. At the
same time, the Group's new process development plan
that had already been implemented for a long period
of time had demonstrated remarkable results, and laid
a solid foundation for maintaining the processing and
manufacturing competitiveness of the Group in the long
run.

(6) Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) system
update:

The ERP is an enterprise resource management system
integrating enterprise management concept, business
process, basic data, human resources, computer hardware
and software, aiming at improving enterprise economic
benefits. The ERP system enables each department to
accelerate its operation process and further perfect its data
systematization. After upgrading, more functions have
already been initiated and improved operation efficiency
and transparency. The management will then be able to
master the data more quickly to determine the correspond
optimization to operational strategies. In order to allow
staff having better use of the ERP system, the Group also
provides regular trainings, render the good use of the ERP
system and put the functions into full play.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % IR 2 7]
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SEHEERABRRT AEOEI - 5HE
TXREE BEEE TREESHTEHETTE
HOMHMEEREI S EREBEABEHNNE
BABEE ORSTT IEREE EMRETEHE
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S
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(d) Quotation of an associated company

The Group beneficially owned 30% interests of
Guangdong Cuifeng Robotics Technology Limited
(“Cuifeng”), which is principally engaged in the
research, sales of industrial robots and robot peripheral
automation equipment and provision of automation
solution. Cuifeng was quoted on the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations of the People’s Republic of
China in March 2017 (“Quotation”), such Quotation can
strengthen its capital support, facilitate capital financing,
perfect its structure, improve the value and reputation
and other benefits of Cuifeng, contribute to the long-
term development and growth of Cuifeng, and further
demonstrate the value of Cuifeng. It can also enable the
Group to benefit by participating in technology and trade
through the development of automation machinery and
also improve the Group’s automation technology.

The Group is committed to developing the Industrial
Business, at the same time focusing on its core business
and strives to move towards the direction of “China
Manufacturing 2025” of “innovation-driven, quality goes
first, green development, structure optimization, and
talent-oriented”, so as to improve the significant strategic
deployment of the development quality and standard of
the Group’s manufacturing business. With its core business
as the base, the Group explores other businesses to
broaden income stream, laying a solid foundation for the
Group to achieve a sustainable growth in the long run.

Chairman’s Statement

(d) Bt RQRHE

AEBERHEERZERS ARBEERNAR
NA([RE])30%ER - RETEREHRE
HETXRBSARKSEARZEBREREHR
BEEBARNR - ZER _T—tF=ZARNTP
EARAMBERPNERBEODERRFEE ([#
) EERMBRRENESRE BANRE -
TEAB RSEEANERESHER APRE
MEEERER WE-TRARENEE K
SENEER2EREEHF[ORMRE
HEm wRAAKE A B A R -

AEBERNBERIEZER BTEAE BHR
[RIFTEES) BERL SEERE BHEELLRA
ARAIO[HEEE2025] FRABE  =A KX
SEHNEXREREEMKFINEANRELE
WARKRE HAHEMER BEABARIR
RAEEETREAR FRUSEE FHEE
£ o

ERBER-_Z—tF=-A-F+NAEXEHE EB2
HXEAARHE HERBLEESRRBERRMAAD
LBRRF =

Guangdong Cuifeng was officially quoted on 24
March 2017, selling automation production line
equipment and provision of automation solution
through participating in various large-scale trade fairs
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Chairman’s Statement

/A Real Estate Business

To better utilize land resources and improve its revenue
source, the Group implemented diversified industries, and
developed the Real Estate Business and the main projects
are as follows:

(1) Guanjingtou Plant Project:

In responding to the local government’s urban, plant
and village policy, all the production equipment in old
plant had relocated to Yuquan plant and its integration
was successfully completed in the second half of 2016,
and Guanjingtou Plant will be developed into a real
estate development project. The Guanjingtou Plant has
demolished completely and land formation has been
completed. Upon obtaining its construction approval
from the relevant authorities, the Group will commence
construction in developing the site into a residential project
with a floor area of over 120,000 square meters. The
construction is expected to commence by the end of 2017
and is progressing well as scheduled.

(2) New Cooperation Agreement Development Project:

Pursuant to the new cooperation agreement entered with
connected parties, Massive Era Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, had invested HK$140,000,000 in
consideration of being entitled to a 50% of the profit to
be earned from the PRC Development Project upon the
completion of the PRC Development Project and expiry
of the term of the cooperation (the “New Cooperation
Agreement”). The PRC Development Project will develop
a piece of land in Fenggang, Dongguan, with an area of
approximately 32,000 square meters, into a residential
project with a floor area of over 60,000 square meters (the
“New Cooperation Agreement Development Project”). The
transactions contemplated under the New Cooperation
Agreement has completed in October 2016, and the
Project Development Committee, with terms of reference,
has already been established to monitor, implement and
review the New Cooperation Agreement Development
Project. This New Cooperation Agreement Development
Project is progressing well and is currently at its topping
out stage. The pre-sale is expected to commence in the
fourth quarter of 2017.
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W EHEXK

REEHMNALEER TEAKE RS HTR
BHETZTEER REFHERS HXER
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(1) EHHAEHFER:
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(2) HEFEHZHERESR:

BIEEEE S 5] 26 EH &% - Massive Era
Limited (A EEBZ2EWB A W&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
140,000,000 L  LEEHFBEAZEEE TK
REVEHEREKEPBEMEIEE FTS50%%
F((TFHatEHBR]) PEMAZER BERZE
— 0 #932,000F ;5 K + i -2 E #160,000F
FAEmMEENEEER ([(FEEHBEERE
Bl) HBHXGZHEERENR T —X~F+
AB KRR % WEKZEBESHEEZ 2HE B8
REES UNEE HOLKEBEHNFAEHRERE
EH &ﬁAﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁaﬁEEﬁ REH®
EHENER EE-FT—+FFENMEFAH
ﬁAE%O



FEEBRRBREEER S —tEAAETTEER
EAEEREEBEEFEL

The New Cooperation Agreement Development Project
conducted its topping up ceremony in June 2017

The Guanjingtou Plant Project has completed land formation

® 006

FEEmBRERER [REIEN=2—+
ERANBEGTPEEN  EEPLER
HEE HER-Z2—tFENZEAH
BHEE
“Forest Town"”, The New Cooperation
[ Agreement Development Project had
conducted its topping up ceremony
| on 8 June 2017, its sales center has
completed the renovation and is
expected to commerce pre-sale in the
fourth quarter of 2017
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(3) In October 2016, the Group acquired 47 residential
units (formerly used as service apartments) situated
at BlEEARELXREFEREBR, with an
aggregate floor area of approximately 3,683.42
square meters. Refurbishment of these 47 units has
already completed and sales are in progress with
satisfactory response. It is expected that these units
can be sold out in 2017/18.

For the above projects, they are all located in the vicinity of
the Group's strategic partner, “Long Feng Villa", a national
4A grade themed tourist resort. It will be integrated to
become a tourist town with cultural characteristics, adding
more value to the Group's real estate projects.

4) Yantian Plant:

With regard to the land parcel of more than 20,000 square
meters of Fenggang Yantian Plant, Dongguan in which the
production is suspended, the Group has communicated
with the relevant local authorities about its plan to change
the land use for residential projects development purposes
and a consensus is reached. The Group will continue to
have active communication with the relevant authorities to
reach an agreement as soon as possible.

(5)  Boluo County Project:

To develop new real estate projects, the Group was
awarded land parcels in Boluo County, Huizhou in
February 2017 by tender with a developable residential
gross floor area of approximately 30,000 square meters,
the procedures of land certificate are in progress.

(3) RIZE—RF+A AEEEBEAZBMEE
AREIXRFZESEBRMNMT - LEEE
B (MER/BEEANRE) #EBHEE
#)733,683.42F K x0T+ LEEMLE
SERBIF REETHE RERSM B
—E /S N\FEEEEEL -

ALIEE  MBASERESEKHERRIARE
R E BN - [RERILE]  BE RKE XL
RFeE BEARNEEFEMEBR EZRKINE-

(4) FEBESE:

EREEEZR=RMEMERRKF20,000%F 75
Kipi KRECEEMEBERPFIER I WE R
2 ANBEREETEBE YCESHIB -AEE
SUBRESEAENMER SREKGE-

(5) BEHEA:

RABFHNWERRE R-_T—EF - A&
BREENBEZ MR JEEEEBEEBELD
30,000% F 5K - B IEH IR L b if F48 -

BRPZEAMELE
18 B 390 B RAAR
FREREE RN 3
Bl

The real estate
projects currently
developed in
Fenggang are all
located in the
vicinity of “Long
Feng Villa”, a
national 4A grade
themed tourist
resort
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Fenggang, Dongguan is in the vicinity of Shenzhen (linking
Longgang and Pinghu, Shenzhen) and Huizhou are
located at the central and southern part of Guangdong
Province, northeast of Pearl River Delta. They are the
county listed in the Greater Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macau Bay Development Plan, in which the latter was
officially introduced in the government work report at the
fifth session of the Twelfth National People’s Congress.
The economies of the Greater Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macau Bay Region will become the global innovation
center. Hence, the above projects with distinctive
potential is expected to bring tremendous returns to our
shareholders.

IV Consumer and Services Business

Since last year, the Group changed to operate this
business with flexible and small shop models to
improve economic efficiency, and operating loss of the
Consumer and Services Business decreased significantly to
HK$21,684,000 for the year. Also, each of the principal
brands under the “Fullhouse World” name, such as
“Fullhouse Kitchen”, “Fullhouse Egglet” and “Fullhouse*”
has distinctive characteristics:

(1) Fullhouse Kitchen

It is a restaurant targeting at families and children and
is selling customized gifts and specialty household
products, provision of western, Southeast Asia and
European cuisines. It mainly offers family-friendly cuisines
and let customers enjoy a child-parentage new cuisine
atmosphere. The Hong Kong restaurant is located at
Discovery Park, Tsuen Wan, and another one was opened
in Whampoa in August 2016. Fullhouse Kitchen also
opened its restaurants in Plaza Hollywood, Diamond Hill in
May 2017. Fullhouse Kitchen also expands its market reach
in Mainland China, with its branches covering important
consumption areas including Chang’an, Guancheng,
Humen and Houjie in Dongguan.

Chairman’s Statement
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BEEB RALERZ KWFEAFEEHESE
KRR 75 B0 #4842 B 1B K8 [E 1K E=21,684,000
BT e RNE U [mEM ] (Fullhouse World)
ARH EXTEZRBAIBERBE] (Fullhouse
Kitchen)* [Fullhouse Egglet | X [/ /E T 3|
(Fullhouse*) & mE E B HEFE

(1) WEBE (Fullhouse Kitchen)

ENRERAERIBRHRNERREE @
tEmAFerxEAm: BHEAN -REDR
BMEANIR WEA —KAPWNEBF/E 1
MEXBRFERM R -BEEHUNZEMR
MBER —E-—RF\RREZEHE  WER
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WBEHAET REERAEERE  Et{Em
REFEERERARAT BEABRIETRK.
EARE]

The light meal, customized gifts and
specialty household products offered

by the branded shops under Fullhouse
World enable customers to experience the
“Lifestyle  Personalization”



(2) Fullhouse Egglet

It is a dessert light meal shop offering leisure desserts.
The business operates to serve egglets, dessert and light
meal as its core, and sells customized gifts and specialty
household products. The soft centered egglets are shaped
using the four acting roles of Fullhouse World, delicious
and fresh coupling with carefully selected sauce. It will
continue to develop new flavor and style in future. The
first shop in Hong Kong was opened in Tseung Kwan O in
November 2016 and its first egglet shop in Malaysia was
opened in Berjaya Times Square in May 2016. Two more
egglet shops were opened in Penang Queensbay Mall and
Kuala Lumpur International Airport 2 in November 2016.
Fullhouse Egglet also participates in various kinds of special
promotion activities, such as Egglet Festival and Cuisine
Festival to promote the Fullhouse Egglet brand.

(3) Fullhouse*

The shop mainly sells customized gifts and specialty
household products, and offers coffee and snacks.
Fullhouse* encourages customers to participate in product
making and design, injects the interactive child-parentage
concept to make such products more suitable for
themselves.

Chairman’s Statement
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(2) Fullhouse Egglet

A REE-—SFoHRERE - UEE
F HAERERAEIREEAEIELEREEFAR
ERARm - BLHEEFHAREHR —KUKRES
BONL - FRLAREAB O BKIRE R ER X E
RRSHEERMBFOREZAR - FEEBMERZ
E-RNFT—ARBERARLEE N_ZE—X
FRAAGKACEMEETIERTRERRE
BHE R_Z—<"F+—A BREBERE
B REREE _BEBRRSHARZMEEERT
JE o Fullhouse Eggletth @ 2 B X 4&FRIHEEE
B HIMBEEFTHARERRES - UHEFullhouse
EggletHy M h& -

(3)  WEIH(Fullhouse)

IZNEERAELRARFERERAMAT
WHe M YR K /NR < mE Y5 (Fullhouse ) 5x Bl
BE2RIMERR FEHHFHOMS U
EREBCHEmM-

WE R B RRE 2 [RAMR | AERESHERREBS M [ Solutions
2017 | BERFALEP RAFE [ BREXERFEREBRARASTR]|Z2—
Fullhouse World’s self-designed “rainbow chopping board” became one
of the “Best Household and Kitchen Solutions” in the “Solutions 2017"
Gift Design Competition of Ambiente 2017
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Coupled with customized gifts and specialty household
products, the Fullhouse World restaurants are permeated
with sweet, warm, comfortable and cozy atmosphere,
and while enjoying the food, customers can also savour
“individual characteristic taste”, and enjoy warm child-
parentage relationship. Furthermore, laser engraving
machines are set up in each shop with dedicated persons
engraving customers’ favourable wordings on their
products elaborately before presenting to your special ones
for holiday greetings or expressing appreciation, showing
your personality in these prestigious gifts. The specialty
household products received many awards and is well
receptive by users. It also received inquiries from domestic
and oversea purchasers through participating in household
fair.

Our strategic partner, the national 4A Grade “Long Feng
Villa” Resort, dream paradise park and child-parentage
hotel are located at Fenggang Town, Dongguan, with
enchanting scenery and convenient transportation. It
is a featured tourist scenic area integrating wedding
photography scenes, honeymoon tour, child-parentage
activity, hotel food and beverages, and recreational and
entertainment activities. It is a prestigious local tourist
resort with stable pedestrian flow. The inner landscape
includes all the themed characters of Fullhouse World
for promoting the Fullhouse World Brand. Customers
can enjoy the privileged promotion offers from “Long
Feng Villa” and child-parentage hotel while shopping
in Fullhouse World shops, which make Fullhouse
World become a renowned brand of “Lifestyle e
Personalization”.

% Repurchase of Shares

The Company repurchased 516,000 ordinary shares of
the Company (the “Shares”) and 452,000 Shares on 30
March 2017 and 31 March 2017 respectively (“Share
Repurchase”). The Company repurchased a total of
968,000 Shares during the year, with the repurchase
price ranging from HK$0.89 per share to HK$0.92 per
share. Such Share Repurchase is based on the fact that
the share price of the Company is unable to fully reflect
its intrinsic value. The Share Repurchase is in the interests
of shareholders as a whole, and also fully reflects that
the Board of Directors are confident about the future
development prospect and growth potential of diversified
industries of the Company.
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Conclusion

In the two decades since the Company’s listing, by levering
on the strengths of our experienced management team,
highly automated production, stable customer base and
worldwide service support centers, we become the leading
company in the international server casing manufacturing
market, and are highly recognized and praised by different
sectors. We are committed to “creating value, accelerating
growth” for shareholders. After the two decades of listing,
the Group remained profitable and distributing dividends
consecutive with the average dividend payout ratio up to
over 60%. Furthermore, apart from the listing and initial
public offering in 1996 and the rights issue in 2007, the
Company did not raise any funds from public shareholders
during these two decades, whereby it has self-financed
and turned a profit. In future, we still regard Industrial
Business as the core of development and develop other
businesses. To minimize the risk of single business, we also
enrich our income source through business diversification.
Also, we will unveil a new growth page for the Group by
adhering to the long-term and sustainable development
strategy of “maintaining prosperity with dividends
distribution, achieving sustainable growth through
stability”.

2. Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a set of “New Dividend Policy”
in the announcement of results for the first quarter of
2006/07, which outlines the factors that should be taken
into account in determining any dividend for distribution,
such as the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company, cash flow and investment budgets. After careful
consideration of the aforementioned factors, and given
that the Board hopes to maintain the Company's track
record of paying dividends to our shareholders every year
since listing and for celebrating our 20th anniversary of
listing, the Board has decided to recommend to pay a final
dividend of HK4.2 cents per share and a special dividend
of HK1.0 cent per share respectively to our shareholders
whose names appear on the register of member of the
Company on 1 September 2017.
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The Group’s strategic partner, a national 4A grade tourist scenic
region, “Long Feng Villa”, dream paradise park and child-parentage
hotel, creating a characteristic village focusing on tourism culture.
With the inner landscape includes all the themed characters of
Fullhouse World, can effectively promote the Fullhouse World Brand
and augment added value to the real estate projects in Fenggang.
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3. Geographical Distribution

The Group has always adopted a diversified approach in
shipping its goods and does not rely on one single market.
Details of the Group’s geographical distribution are set
out in the segment report in note 5 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of this annual report.

4. Prospects
/. Industrial Business

In 2017, the Group cannot be carried away by our last
year's excellent results and let down our guard. We
must take various measures to strengthen our industrial
competitiveness. In a new year, the Group will keep on
deepening the process of automation and in particular,
expand our automation in flexible assembly, further
adjust plant facilities layout, optimize operating process,
downsize work force, continue to promote and develop
new manufacturing techniques, enlarge product scopes
and enhance quality to satisfy the needs of different
customers and maintain our manufacturing processes
to be the industry forefront. We will keep on refining,
enhance professional management, increase employees’
trainings at different levels and improve corporate talents
competitiveness.

We leverage on the Group's industrial edges, continue to
seek market breakthroughs and fully develop large-scale
international new customers to add more international
brand names to our customer portfolio. We will continue
to monitor costs and quality comprehensively and research
and develop and explore products with high profit margin
and potential, bringing higher added-value to customers
and maintain our stable operation. It is through this that
we are able to maintain our leading market position,
paving the way for continuous growth in the future and
respond actively to China’s long-term development policy
of “China Manufacturing 2025", which provides new
momentum for the Group's development in the long run.
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Furthermore, to enable the Group to maintain its
manufacturing upgrade and transformation and promote
the understanding of automation for new generation, we
set up the Robot Promotion Service Center (“Promotion
Center"”) through Cuifeng, our associated company, and
facilitate projects that target at promoting adolescent
education and robotic application under the integration
approach of innovative service, manufacturing and robot
businesses. The Promotion Center will further improve
employee innovative and technological capabilities and
help the Group to train more innovative and technological
talents in the future, and also push forward adolescent
technological education. Meanwhile, the Promotion
Center also organizes various machine application
training courses as well as offering development and
experimental robot skills to lower the hurdle in trying
to use robots. Apart from robots, the Promotion Center
also provides advanced machineries such as 3D printers
and laser cutting machines which make it convenient to
manufacture sophisticated machine parts and accelerate
the commercialization of industrial products.

Il Real Estate Business

The past years were the cultivation period of our Real
Estate Business and no significant profit was recorded.
The year of 2017/18 will witness the gradually moving
towards the maturity stage of our Real Estate Business.
By the end of May 2017, of the refurbished 47 residential
units, 34 of them were already sold at an average selling
price. of RMB18,000 per square meter and expect to
have them sold out within this year. Moreover, the
development projects under the New Cooperation
Agreement conducted its topping up ceremony in June
2017, and is expected to conduct presale by the end of
2017. It is estimated that the construction permits for the
urban, plant and village project of Guanjingtou project
will be obtained by the end of 2017 and the project will
commence construction immediately.
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Apart from the above projects, the Group will also expand
its real estate development business and hope to finalize
the Yantian plant project as soon as possible. The Group
will also continue to identify real estate projects with good
potential to increase land reserves, which includes the land
parcels in Buluo County, Huizhou.

M. Customer and Service Business

The 4A featured tourist scenic region of strategic partner
has integrated various elements. It has convenient
transportation, enchanting scenery, dynamic amusement
and enjoyable leisure and is named one of the five
largest featured scenic regions in Dongguan, providing
precious fresh air for the urban forest. Under the Fullhouse
World business, the Group will provide Fullhouse World
brand to complement the land resources of the holiday
resorts, including the dream paradise parks and child-
parentage hotel of strategic partner. A characteristic village
integrating tourism, child-parentage and cultural aspects
will be built. The characteristic village will focus on tourism
culture, forming pedestrian flow activity circles, which
can promote the Fullhouse World Brand and facilitate
the operation model of Fullhouse World franchising
cooperation, and it will also augment added-value to the
real estate projects of the Group nearby.
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Overall Outlook

The Group mainly focuses on Industrial Business and
expands other businesses, constantly creates values for
stakeholders. We provide resources to various business
segments through our core businesses which enable them
to grow along with core businesses, a policy and strategy
for our sustainable growth. We ought to implement the
work approach of “execution, expansion, innovation,
inheritance” consistently to experience the success of our
policy and strategy of sustainable growth:

Execution: Keep on improving operational efficiency,
continue to deepen the automation
process and cost reduction to maintain
the Group’s competitiveness; continue
to maintain our leading position
in the international server casings
manufacturing market, converge various
distinctive advantages and strive to
develop different business segments. This
is the so-called “A thousand-mile journey
starts with a first step”.

Expansion: Expand international renowned
customers and potential products
for our Industrial Business, so as to
enable the continuous development
of Industrial Business. For real estate
sector, we need to constantly set up
new projects and increase land reserves.
While for consumer services, open
branch restaurants with small size
restaurant model, coupled with personal
characteristic taste, and integrate the
advantages of strategic partner’'s 4A
“Long Feng Villa” Resort to enhance
Fullhouse World Brand awareness using
cultural industry as the center to enhance
the complementary industry chain and
promote franchise cooperation operation
model.
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Innovation: Keep on innovating, researching and
developing automation production
technology and provide industrial
customers with breakthrough value-
added services; increase value-added for
real estate projects through innovative
ideas, bringing personal characteristic
taste for Fullhouse World restaurants.

Inheritance: The Group pays much attention to talent
training, train second-tier talents under
the concept of the experienced leading
the green, and the green bringing in
new ideas. Each department will then
equip with sufficient talents, mutually
supporting one another. For this purpose,
we will have a stable talented team
and pool and will not experience any
talent “vacuum” period. The growth
will continue and self-generate and will
enable our business from becoming
standstill and continue to put our
strengths into full play and keep on
growing.

Since our listing for two decades, the Group encountered
numerous challenges and difficulties. Through our
endeavors and perseverance, and sustained development
momentum, we achieved growth at this stage. In future,
the Group will continue to focus on our core businesses,
push forward the work approach of “execution,
expansion, innovation, inheritance” and adhere to the
concepts of “Nothing is impossible” in moving forward
and falling to another new stage of growth. Karrie will
always seek moment to grow up strongly through the
endless road of development.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Borrowings

With the commencement of Real Estate Business, net
interest-bearing borrowings* as at 31 March 2017 were
approximately HK$324,565,000 and the net interest-
bearing borrowings ratio (being the proportion of total net
interest-bearing borrowings over total equity) was 30% (as
at 31 March 2016: net interest-bearing borrowings were
approximately HK$122,113,000 and net interest-bearing
borrowings ratio was 12%). The financial position of the
Group remains healthy.

G Represent cash and bank deposits less bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases
("net interest-bearing borrowings”)

Non-current Assets to Total Equity Ratio below 1

The non-current assets to total equity ratio as at 31 March
2017 maintained at the healthy level of 79% (as at 31
March 2016: 91%), which represents the Group’s non-
current assets, such as plant and machineries are using its
stable total equity as a support.

Capital Expenditure (“CAPEX")

The initial estimate of the CAPEX Budget for the financial
year 2017/18 is approximately HK$115,000,000, of
which HK$100,000,000 relates to the Industrial Business,
HK$14,000,000 is for the Consumer and Services Business
and HK$1,000,000 is for the investment property. The
CAPEX was mainly used for acquiring new machinery and
equipment, upgrading computer system and opening of
Fullhouse World restaurants.
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Chairman’s Statement

Resources Available

Currently, total interest-bearing borrowings are
approximately HK$539,928,000. The Group is confident
that with the cash in hand and bank deposits of
approximately HK$215,363,000 and the unutilised
banking facilities of HK$991,719,000, it is able to meet its
current operational and capital expenditure requirements
and to make strategic investments when opportunities
arise.

Exchange Rate Exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated in HKD, USD and RMB. Foreign currency risk
arises from commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations that
are denominated in a currency other than the Group’s
functional currency, which in turn exerts pressure on
the Group’s production cost. To mitigate the impact of
exchange rate fluctuation of RMB on its business, the
Group will actively communicate with its customers in
order to adjust the selling prices of its products and may
use foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge against
foreign currency risk (if and when necessary).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

TEA-BREAK WITH INVESTORS

We are glad that the “tea-break with investors
(institutional or individual)” has been successfully held
for many years. The Group adheres to the principles of
“openness, fairness and equality” and believes that all
investors should have the same right to get access to the
Company’s information. With these principles in mind and
considering that the tea-break remains to be an effective
and efficient way for the Company to communicate with
its investors, the Group will continue to organise tea-break
with individual investors. The next tea-break is scheduled
on 26 August 2017 from 12:00 noon to 2:00 p.m. at East
Ocean Seaview Restaurant, 11/F., One Peking Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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Interested investors are invited to visit the Group’s website
at www.karrie.com for more details. Application form can
be downloaded from the website or obtained by calling
2411-0913 during office hours. Only investors whose
applications are confirmed can join the function. Investors
are encouraged to grasp this opportunity to communicate
directly with the management of the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group had approximately 4,060 employees
on average (an average of 4,386 employees in the
corresponding period last year) during the Year. With
a good reputation in the local community, the Group
has rarely encountered major difficulties in recruiting
employees.

Employee remuneration packages are determined in
accordance with prevailing market standards and the
employee’s performance and experience. The Group
will also grant bonuses to employees with outstanding
performance based on its own audited business
performance and the appraisal and reward system.
Other employee benefits include medical insurance and
mandatory provident fund.

In addition, to cope with domestic development in PRC
and the actual need for talent-retaining, the Group
establishes a “Cooperative Home & Car Ownership
Scheme” to encourage and finance potential elites in
buying a flat and a car as a means to retain talents who
may otherwise be lost in the competitive labour market.

Performance Based Incentives

The Group adopted performance based bonus system
and objective performance assessment. Employees with
outstanding performance will now receive more bonus
than before the new system was implemented.
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Chairman’s Statement

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK4.2 cents per share (2015/16 final dividend: HK2.75
cents per share) and a special dividend of HK1.0 cent
per share (2015/16: nil) to celebrate the 20th anniversary
of the Company’s listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "“Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”), to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
1 September 2017. Together with the interim dividend
of HK1.3 cents per share, total dividend paid/payable for
this year amounted to HK6.5 cents per share (2015/16:
HK3.5 cents). The final dividend and special dividend will
be subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
“AGM") of the Company to be held on 25 August 2017.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
currently made up of one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors whose duties include
resolving issues in relation to audit such as reviewing and
supervising the Company'’s financial reporting process and
internal control systems. The audit committee and the
management have reviewed the accounting principles and
major policies adopted by the Group and have discussed
the auditing, internal control and financial reporting in
the current year with the external auditors. The audit
committee has reviewed the consolidated annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

APPRECIATION

| would like to thank our customers, suppliers, bankers,
shareholders and others who have extended their
invaluable support to the Group, and my fellow Directors,
managers and all staff for their considerable contributions
to the Group.
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APPENDIX 1

Special Characteristics of Our
Industrial Business Model

A Hypothetical Example (Simplified
and generalized for easy
understanding)

1. Quotation Phase

- Around 12 to 15 months prior
to shipment, Customer A sends
out Request for Quotation (RFQ)
for a project to all "qualified
suppliers”.

2. Project Confirmation Phase

= Customer A confirms the
placement of the project to us;

- Customer A also provides
shipment forecast for the next
18 to 24 months, which is the
normal life cycle of a project.

3. Moulds and Prototype
Making Phase

- According to Customer A's
specification, we start to
perform the design works,
make the moulds and
prototype;

- This process would take around
6 to 12 months;

- Customer A would also work
with our purchasing department
on materials and the list of
qualified suppliers for such
materials.

4, Shipment Phase

- Customer A finalizes and revises
the final shipment schedule;

- We start manufacturing and
ship goods to just-in-time (JIT)
inventory warehouses.

5. Sales Recognition and
Payment

- Customer A takes goods from
JIT warehouses;

- We get paid after the normal
credit period.

Quotation
Phase
BERER
Around 2 months
#2188
Project
Confirmation
Phase
EERE
Around 3 months
#3ME A
Moulds &
Prototype
Making Phase
18 ESER EY
Around 6 months
#1618 B
Shipment
Phase
TERE
Around 4 months
N4E B
Sales
Recognition &
Payment

HERAREE
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Chairman’s Statement

F A

As in most cases the Group is the sole supplier for the HREEBRFREEFPERNERER 2M—H#E
confirmed project and the related engineering works B-MEBRBELEHMERFPINGEE  H#
have largely been completed, our problem is therefore on ZIREBEIETAB K HERME@T
production, and not of marketing (2003/04 Annual Report, MR TR EETR MITE(ZTEZE=/
page 26). THFEFRE=_TE) -

GENERALISED FLOW CHART OF THE SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
HEEEERGE - REFREE
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Some or all of the following characteristics apply to our
dealings with customers. Such characteristics have been
generalized/simplified to enable easy understanding:

1. We deal with projects, which can take one year
from initial project confirmation, development and
engineering works to final shipment of goods.
A project’s shipment cycle can run for 18 to 24
months.

2. We do not normally have a large order backlog
because the customers’ adoption of either the
just-in-time inventory (JIT), rolling forecast, or
Electronic Data Interexchange (EDI).

3. Usually we are the sole supplier for a particular
project and therefore have the obligation to ship
goods to customers even if the sales volume is
much higher than the initial projection.

4. Most of our customers are not retailers, but
manufacturers themselves. Some of them even have
factories in China. Most of the materials are either
sourced through the customers or their designated
suppliers.

5. Our customers are mostly multi-national companies.
Thus we frequently encounter such situation like
project originated in Japan, components assembled
in China while the final products shipped to Asia
or Europe. Our definition of breakdown by market
is by shipment destination rather than country of
origin of the customers.
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APPENDIX 2 Ffit gt =

Dividend and Dividend Policy:
RERREBE:
An unbroken 21 years’ record of dividend payment
=+ — F BRI B 0 R [ B
The Group’s policy to distribute 30% or more of its profits attributable to shareholders as dividend
AEEREREBRABBRREMLEFZ0%H A LAERE
All dividend paid shown below is in HK cents per share

THERIKE ZREZUEBWUTE

Interim Final Special Dividend
Interim Final Subtotal Special Special Subtotal Total Payout Ratio
b A BHRE BRE
HH xH Mt BRRE  BERE et CH KB E

(excluding)* (Including)*
(FBEER)*  (BEER)*

1996/97 Nil & 5.40 5.40 Nil 4 Nil & Nil & 5.40 24% N/A i A
1997/98 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil 4 Nil & Nil & 1.00 13% N/A i A
1998/99 2.00 2.00 4.00 Nil 4 Nil & Nil & 4.00 58% N/A i A
1999/00 2.20 2.20 4.40 Nil 4 Nil & Nil & 4.40 77% N/A i A
2000/01 1.10 3.80 4.90 Nil 6.20 6.20 11.10 69% 156%
2001/02 5.00 5.90 10.90 5.00 14.10 19.10 30.00 50% 138%
2002/03 8.00 11.00 19.00 Nil 5.00 5.00 24.00 60% 75%
2003/04 8.00 12.00 20.00 Nil £ Nil & Nil & 20.00 87% N/A i
2004/05 8.50 12.50 21.00 Nil 4 Nil & Nil & 21.00 58% N/A i
2005/06 9.00 13.00 22.00 Nil 3.00 3.00 25.00 48% 55%
2006/07 8.50 3.00 11.50 Nil 4 Nil & Nil & 11.50 38% N/A 73
2007/08 0.75 Nil & 0.75 Nil Nil % Nil & 0.75 27% N/A 73
2008/09 Nil & 1.50 1.50 Nil Nil % Nil & 1.50 39% N/A 73
2009/10 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil Nil % Nil & 1.00 45% N/A 73
2010/11 Nil & 1.10 1.10 Nil Nil % Nil & 1.10 32% N/A 73
2011/12 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil Nil % Nil & 1.00 38% N/A 73
2012/13 Nil & 1.20 120 Nil Nil % Nil & 1.20 61% N/A 73
2013/14 Nil & 1.00 1.00 Nil Nil % Nil & 1.00 58% N/A 73
2014/15 0.50 1.80 230 Nil 1.00 1.00 3.30 61% 87%
2015/16 0.75 2.75 3.50 Nil Nil % Nil & 3.50 59% N/A 73
2016/17 1.30 4.20 5.50 Nil 1.00 1.00 6.50 65% 77%
Remarks: * Excluding special dividend # Including special dividend

R * NEERRIRE * BFEAE RILAR B
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b %8
APPENDIX 3 M4 =
Inventory & Debtor Turnover Days
FEREWIRBERD
No. of days H#
100
90 —@—— Inventory Turnover 17 1A H)
——0—— Debtor Turnover f& W IRE 1 5]
80
70
60
R
50
I
40 W—
30
11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17
(No. of days) (H &) 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17
Inventory Turnover
FEIREH 59 40 45 64 50 59
Debtor Turnover
JFE WAL s 28 25 72 52 54 40 41 43
Inventory turnover (Base on year end inventory value/Cost FEAEH (UFRIFEMEHEMKA) x 3658
of Sales) x 365 days
Debtor turnover (Base on year end debtors/Revenue) x 365 JEU IR AEEHY (A F R EURIR, & %% ) x 365H
days
Inventory Turnover Days 77 & 8 & i
(No. of days) (B &) 15/16 16/17  Change #ig
Raw Materials & #1 £} 16 19 +19%
Work-in-progress ¥ 24 & 7 5 -29%
Finished Goods 22X fh 27 35 +30%
Total & &t 50 59 +18%
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APPENDIX 4

20

15

Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin
BRENRAFNEZE

i 45

— @ Gross Profit Margin 12FE (%)
——0—— Net Profit Margin 12 45 7)(%)

- /\//

: —
I
- —
0
11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17

(%) 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17
Gross Profit Margin
ERER 8.2 10.6 14.3 11.0 12.1 13.1
Net Profit Margin
B AF 1.3 1.7 1.6 2.9 4.0 6.2
HKS$(million) (B 2% T)
Revenue
N 2,290 2,291 2,033 2,591 2,898 2,716
Profit for the year
FEm 29 39 33 76 117 168
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T A

APPENDIX 5 P 8%
Capex
EEEERE
Profit attributable
to equity shareholders
Capex H=RAA
BEEBERE FEAR A
HK$000 B ndustrial Business HK$'000
FHTT T¥¥% T
250,000 [l Real Estate Business 250,000
[ Consumer and Services Business
200,000 HEERRGEES 200,000
150,000 ! 150,000
100,000 100,000
50,000 I 50,000
0 I—- _ B o
12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18*
Capex
B 107,078 106,450 164,956 126,264 65,461 115,000
—@-— Profit attributable to
equity shareholders 39,308 34,291 76,298 117,076 168,333 ?
R A AR T

* Budget only
*EE
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() ABOUT THE SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AND REPORTING STANDARDS

The sustainability report is a disclosure document highly
regarded by enterprises as a means to enhance the
transparency of non-financial disclosure information.
Embracing our motto “KARRIE ON PERPETUAL MOTION,
BENEFITS SERVED TO THE PUBLIC”, the Group has been
active in giving back to the society and environmental
protection. It is of paramount importance to have effective
communication and understanding between the Group
and its stakeholders, including shareholders, partners,
employees, suppliers, regulators and the public in coming
up with benchmarks and regarding key issues.

The Group started to prepare the detailed content of
the sustainability report ever since its listing in 1996 and
starting from the 2008/2009 annual report, the report
has been incorporated into annual reports as a separate
section. During this year, the report is prepared in
compliance with the hierarchies set forth in Sustainability
Reporting Guidelines G4 issued by the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”) of
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, some extracts of which are
set out in this annual report. For further details, please
browse the Group's website: www.karrie.com.

Scope of Reporting

The report is the first sustainability report of Karrie
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and
its subsidiaries, together the “Group”) prepared in
accordance with Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The report covers the 2016/2017 financial year for
business of Hong Kong and PRC (i.e. from 1 April 2016 to
31 March 2017) (the “Year"), which is consistent with the
period covered by the annual report of the Group.
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(1) VISIONS ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

In our opinion, “corporate social responsibility” refers to
“the continuing commitment by a business to operate
ethically and contribute to economic development while
improving the quality of life of the workforce and their
families as well as of the local community and society at
large”.

The Group's values are derived from the good utilization
of resources and strong relationship with stakeholders.
Its key sustainability framework comprises staff caring,
training and development, environmental protection,
corporate governance, community building, product
responsibility and missions undertakings. In addition to
pursing profit through ways of respecting ethnical values,
law, individuals, community and natural environment, an
enterprise shall also take into full consideration of the
interests of all stakeholders. The Group has implanted
corporate social responsibility as one of the management
models and long-term corporate missions, the Group is
therefore able to sustain its development and derive higher
values by “giving back to where one takes from”.

In the long run, due performance of social responsibility
will definitely improve the Group's reputation, save cost,
enhance the scope of decision making and strengthen
the corporate governance ability. Moreover, the Group
holds that performance of social responsibility may not
necessarily be contrary to the interests of shareholders.
For example, the implementation of energy-saving policy
for reducing carbon emission is environmentally friendly
and conductive to cost-saving, which will be eventually
manifested on shareholders’ interests.

Mechanism for developing and reviewing corporate

social responsibility

The Group has adopted Electronic Industry Citizenship
Coalition ("EICC") Code of Conduct to ensure that it could
continuously satisfy the legal requirements and customers’
needs in respect of the protection of employees’ interests,
business ethics, environmental protection, occupational
health and safety, as well as making continuous
improvement to fulfill corporate social responsibilities.
At the same time, according to the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
of Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Sustainability
Reporting Guidelines G4 issued by GRI, the Group
has formulated different scopes of target indicators to
demonstrate the situation of corporate social responsibility.

Sustainability Report
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(I11) STAFF CARING

The Group collects feedbacks and requirements from
different departments regarding administration, human
resources and training issues annually, and develops annual
plan for each year. In addition, it occasionally establishes
focus groups based on the actual and social needs to
collect feedbacks, benchmarking good practices of the
peers, and puts appropriate items in place. Moreover,
suggestion boxes are placed in the headquarter and PRC
factories to allow our staff to voice out their opinions
anytime; and a Staff Care Committee is established to
increase the satisfaction of our staff by providing various
channels for effective communication, complaint and
feedback as well as actively listening to the voices of our
staff and solving the work and life issues mostly concerned
by our staff.

Respect for staff and providing equal opportunities
Adhering to the principle of being people-oriented and
respecting staff's interests, the Group does not impose any
discrimination, involuntary labor, physical punishment and
improper treatment towards its staff. The Group respects
the freedom of the formation of legal unions permitted
under laws, and does not employ any child labor, while
employees’ working hours as well as wages and benefits
are complied with the requirements under the regulation.
With well-established policies, the Group prohibits the
occurrence of aforesaid issues which breach labor and
human rights, and also has management procedures in
place to implement supervision. Meanwhile, promotion is
made to staff to allow them to get acknowledged of their
rights, while training is provided to the management, so
that respect on human rights and the practical knowledge
of equal opportunities are applied in the working
environment. All staff has received trainings on policies
and procedures of human rights comprehensively.

The Group has stated in recruitment advertisements
that we are an equal opportunities employer and
welcome the application from any qualified candidates,
and strive to only count on talent in employment.
With the fundamental principles of “employment is
based on talents”, recruitment, remuneration, training
opportunities, promotion, dismissal or retirement would
not be affected by race, social status, nationality, religion,
disabilities, gender, sexual orientation, membership in
labor union, political belongings or age. The Group has
even assigned a representative to serve as the contact
person of Gender Focal Point among Listed Companies
of Women's Commission and attended a number of
receptions and programs to celebrate International
Women'’s Day 2017.
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Occupational safety and health

The human resources and administration department
of the Group and the industrial safety team in the
PRC are responsible for following up and supervising
the occupational safety and health practice of each
department. By adopting the OHSAS 18001 occupational
health and safety management system in 2010, the Group
has established and implemented its occupational health
and safety management system and carried out follow-up
works like safety education, trainings and drills.

Health and safety focuses on areas such as occupational
safety, responses to emergencies, occupational injuries
and diseases, industrial hygiene, work with high physical
requirements, machinery protection, public hygiene,
restaurants and staff quarters. The above issues are all set
forth in the EICC manual with the requirements needed
in the preparation of written standards, performance-
based targets, indicators and implementation plans, while
the industrial safety team is responsible for the specific
assessment on the performance. In addition, safety personnel
are appointed in every department to carry out safety checks
and various drills, such as fire-fighting safety drills. Significant
achievements have been made in the implementation of
relevant measures. For instance, the occurrence rate of
serious work injury is kept at a very low level over years.

At the safety production management working conference
held in July 2016, apart from responding to the national
“Safety Production Month”, it also made all departments
in each plant understand the latest laws and regulations
on safety production, and firmly adhere to the principle
of “Safety First”. In addition, the Group participated in
the telephone survey on staff's occupational safety and
health aspect raised by clients in September 2016, which
focused on production safety, use of chemicals and personal
protective equipment,
evacuation and fire drill,

Av
whereby the respective the
department could review TN S

the inadequacy of current E
policy or its execution from
the findings on survey, so
as to further improve staff

employees
A {E B 1 51 5 4 LE

Gender distribution of PRC
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Concertedly build the “Karrie” brand

On top of placing awareness on the physical health of its
staff, the Group also concerns about their mental health,
putting the objectives of balancing work and daily life into
practice. In the opinion of the Group, besides working
hard, the living standard of its staff shall be improved, so
that positive sentiments and motivation could be formed
to strengthen their capability to handle emotion problems.
Various kinds of activities are also organised to facilitate
interaction and communication among staff. At the same
time, the Group also developed different teams such
as “Staff Care Committee” and “Voluntary group for
charitable work” to organise different kinds of activities
on a regular basis. Through which, staff are provided with
opportunities to participate and establish team spirit.

The Group held a great variety of cultural events and
festival celebrations, including the “National Day Evening
Culture Party” and “Lantern Festival”, allowing our staff to
relax and reduce pressure in a happy gathering. The Group
held various ball games and chess competitions such as
basketball tournament, the “Karrie Cup”, to enhance the
physical fitness of our people and encourage them to take
part in different after-work activities.

Adhering to our objective of enhancing the health of
our staff and extending the influence of “Karrie Health
Month”, we held the “Fruity Day” in Hong Kong office
to advocate eating more fruits. To echo the call of
Department of Health of the Government of Hong Kong
and Occupational Safety & Health Council, we signed
the Joyful @ Healthy Workplace Charter, and participated
in workshops offered by the scheme. Professionals
in different sectors visited the workshops to provide
knowledge on mental health, physical examination,
healthy diet and physical activities for staff, which aimed
at stimulating staff to apply the knowledge learned in
workshops to their daily life, and cultivating a sustainable
healthy lifestyle. In addition, we continue implementing
good occupational hygiene within the Group, and
entered into the Workplace Hygiene Charter promoted by
Occupational Safety and Health Council and the Labour
Department of the Hong Kong Government.

Furthermore, the Group established “Education Fund
for Staff and Their Children” to provide finance for the
children of existing staff of the Group to take formal
education, with a view to mitigate staff’s financial burden
on children education. Also, staffs are urged to make full
use of their leisure time to engage in studies, proactively
improve self-quality, so as to attain the goal of “cultivating
talent through amateur training”.
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In PRC, the Group organizes staff birthday party, single
men and women fraternity party and mini marathon held
by the community for staff to participate in leisure time.
Meanwhile, the Group also held mental and physical
health knowledge lectures from time to time. In addition,
Castfast Family Planning Association was established
in 2015, which is the first family planning cooperation
organization established by the Group in Dongguan for
its foundation level staff, helping members/staffs and
their families that have family planning needs through
conducting a variety of propaganda, education and
advocating activities, and providing various family planning

services.

¥ & FHewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE)#/E ' S E 2
I Laborlink programEFEBEHE BT RGBS HER
BES e R AR

The Group was recommended by its customer
Hewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE) to participate in |
the telephone questionnaire survey of International “
organization Laborlink program, in which, its ‘
staff had actively participated in the survey on
occupational safety and health. “
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The Group invited physical fitness instructor to
teach staff a set of “ten minutes active gymnastics”,
so that staff could work out stretching exercise
whenever and wherever possible during work time.

BEREIFRFLSHEEELEAREE UEEZEAT—RKWEZE-
Staff is encouraged to participate in various kinds of social charitable activities together

with their children, with the objective of passing on to next generation.
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(IV) TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

In respect of training and development, the Group has
adopted certain approaches known as “optimizing
professional performance, motivating staff’s potentials,
revitalizing learning culture and embracing corporate
visions”. As a result, we aimed primarily at increment
of knowledge, enhancement of skills and expertise in
management and specific positions, while oriented
towards the practicability and sustainable development
of the Company and its staff. In the year of 2016/17,
the average training hours took by each employee was
approximately 8 hours.

The training programs for the year generally cover
such fields as practical management training, laws
and regulations, sales and marketing, customers and
catering services, supply chain management, corporate
social responsibility, 1SO, human resources management,
finance and accounting, occupational health and safety,
environmental protection, production automation,
engineering techniques and food safety. In order to
secure its long-term development targets, the Group has
been offering plenty of training opportunities for its staff
and high calibre staff at various levels to enhance their
management skills and expertise.

The Group recognizes that a successful enterprise has
to keep its pace with time and improve its awareness
on management. Accordingly, it sends management
personnel from Hong Kong and the PRC to participate
in management training programs covering various
disciplines or hold those internally. The purpose is to
assimilate the latest management model, so as to lead the
team and the Group to head up the ladder of success.

With the promotion of HPE, our customer, the Group
invited experts with extensive international experience to
conduct training and on-site instruction on continuous
improvement in production line through different case
study, and developed internally to enhance the efficiency
constantly to attain the international leading standard.

Furthermore, in order to provide a better development
platform for staff and reserve technical talents for the
Company, the Group implemented the “mentorship
programme” for automatic robotic technicians and
arranged training courses for technicians in the Soft
Tooling Manufacturing Department.
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On the other hand, the Group participated in various
visits and exploration activities organised by the industry
to understand the management of different corporations
in retailing, food and beverages, food processing, food
safety, supply chain management and other aspects, so
as to observe and benchmark its own level. In addition,
we also sent staff to learn the new information system
and automatic technology to prepare for our future
development.

With respect to laws and regulations, in order to help our
employees in China and Hong Kong to better understand
intellectual property rights, the Group specially invited
a senior intellectual property consultant to organize a
seminar on “Intellectual Property Training”, who taught
about the concepts and practical knowledge of intellectual
property rights. Furthermore, in order to address the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
of Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Group had actively
participated and understand the activities in relation to the
preparation of the reporting guide.

The Group has spread no effort to nurture youngsters
for joining the workplace. In 2016, we jointly held food
and beverage training for Youth Employment Program
with St. James’ Settlement and also jointly held the
life planning seminars and visit activities with Shun Tak
Fraternal Association Leung Kau Kui College. It was
hoped to deepen the secondary school students’ interest
and understanding of the retail and catering sectors
and thereby having a better preparation for their future
career planning. Meanwhile, this will also promote the
life planning education of secondary school students
and assist every student to understand his own interest,
ability and knowledge in the workplace to better prepare
themselves for future career and different roles of life.
In addition, we jointly held teacher’'s food and beverage
experience workshop together with St. James' Settlement
and Lingnan Hang Yee Memorial Secondary School
which deepened lots of teachers’ understandings

of food and beverage business. The management

of the Group received invitations of mentorship
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Total number of
training hours

34,423 hours /)M EF

programmes held by various universities and
institutions aiming at letting students to connect
with management, broadening their minds and
being good mentors and friends.

#8315 5| s 8K

Average number of
training hours of

employees
8 T 19355l 2

Approximately 8 hours

K 8 B
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\Workshop

— ._ B A A A A A A LA A
Kaizen - A - = -~ - r ) -

EHRESEERLEREE BER[HEARE RERE]-
The “Continuous Kaizen” training consultant gave instructions at the production line, with
an aim to “improving continuously and enhancing efficiency”.

ERER YHFARERERYE LIS T ERABERREN TR HE -
To hold a seminar and invite the intellectual consultant Dr. Lau to train the employees
about the knowledge of intellectual property rights and patent.

BEEMART (MRS SMEETHEEAN
SHUREBERAZEHE -

In the “mentorship programme” for automatic
robotic technicians, the mentor guided the
learners to understand the parameter setting of
robotic during the demonstration process.
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(V) CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

Since 2001, the Group has already obtained the
ISO14001 environment management system certificate
and conducted its annual internal and external audit
regularly to ensure the direction of the Company policy
and its effects. At the same time, we actively participated
in environmental protection programmes (such as Hong
Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production Partner) held
by community groups and environmental protection
organizations, and achieved excellent results, and become
benchmarks for industry counterparts.

The Clean Production and Energy-conservation Committee
has already been established since 2005, responsible for
coordinating the Group’s energy-saving plans as well as
their supervision and execution, which include computer
resources application, cleaner production plan, production
machinery equipment utilization, implementation of office
electricity and environmental protection and customers
and ISO environmental protection and energy-saving
scheme; and is responsible for the standardization of
energy management of the Group, adoption of new
technology and implementation of energy-saving goals
into every workshop.

The Group has realized the importance of good utilization
of resources long time ago and not to exploit the rights
of using resources for the next generation. The Group
adheres to the concept of Chairman Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
with heartfelt dedication in all details, and saves resources
for the next generation. As such, the Group’s production
adheres to the concept of reducing energy or material
consumption from the sources with the adoption of
various environmental friendly measures and addition of
energy-saving equipment. With the concept of green and
cleaner production implemented in practice, the Group
continues to formulate policies for green production and
energy-saving policies, while introducing different kinds of
environmental friendly equipment to attain the objectives
of cleaner production and environmental protection.
The Group further complies with various international
regulations and requirements and carries out various
measures, inter alias, energy audit, environment permit
and report, pollution prevention and resources saving,
treatment of hazardous materials, treatment of sewage
and solid wastes, control on air emission and control on
content of products. Meanwhile, as the Group is an OEM
and ODM manufacturer in respect of industrial production,
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all the standards related to the quality and environmental
protection are subject to the stringent requirements of
the customers, whilst the quality and environmental
protection will be inspected by customers on an on-site
basis from time to time. On the other hand, the Group
actively participates in external cleaner production and
environmental protection campaigns, while internally
strengthens its staff’'s awareness on the environment via
training as well as green and ecological activities. Hence,
green design approaches are thoroughly implemented,
so that the products would not pose any damages to the
environment. The Group currently does not report on
the volume of total packaging materials used for finished
products.

The Group also implemented the following environmental
protection measures:

FEOFENARPNBREEZR U FNEMER
EFHNmENMRRTEANEWES S —FTH"
N BB MINEBREEMRCRRGE : &
A BEBEI BIMELERRREHFTIAMS
ETREEH HUEERBATHERTTE
FEMTEBIRIRE - AEE B AR E BENK
mPTABEMHNEEFELRE -

BESN - ANERE B HETT MR RIE I

PRC Plants and Offices in PRC and
Hong Kong

NEBERPERQE

Shops and Central Kitchen
ERRPREE

— Optimize power supply projects, reduce
electricity consumption
BIELHEEE RPAEER

— Gradually adopt LED lamps instead of T5
energy-saving fluorescent lamps
ELRA BB (LED)B MR TSEREAE

—Optimize luminous effects through
reclassification of illuminated areas and
reduction of the number of fluorescent

lamps
FREMEASRARE LRI ALEHE B
IREARR

— strengthen the propaganda in turning off
lights during lunch time and when leaving
the room for more than 15 minutes.
MAEEEFESELERFEHEBA T EH

&

— Fully use LED lamps instead of T5 energy-
saving fluorescent lamps or compact
fluorescent lamps in shops
JEH R E A R (LED) B IR TS X E
1R E HE

— Adopt electric cooker instead of Chinese
gas cooker

KA BRI H R RB

— Shops become “Food Wise Eateries” to
express foodever wastenever information
to customers

EHERAKHERE] MEXEEERD

.

(=IO
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In order to help the domestic governments meet the
energy-saving and emission reducing indicators for the
“Thirteenth Five-Year Plan” period, assume corporate
social responsibility, fulfill our duty towards environmental
protection, and also to comprehensively understand the
standard of energy management and status of power
consumption within the plant, examinations are conducted
by the Group on problems and insufficiencies in respect of
energy usage to identify the potential and the approaches
for energy saving, thereby reducing the amount of energy
consumption and production costs as well as raising
economic efficiency for the Company. The Group has
developed the energy-saving indicators according to the
“Twelfth Five-Year Plan” in 2011 and the targets were
achieved. The Group has formulated a series of energy
management systems, which standardize the practice of
management to raise the efficiency of energy usage and
effectively finalize and safeguard energy-saving plans.

At the same time, the Group also makes arrangement
to comply with the relevant international environmental
regulations, such as RoHS, REACH, WEEE, JCPSSI,
Montreal Protocol and QC 080000, so that the whole
process including coordination, design, procurement and
production can meet the regulations.

Since 2010, the Group has joined the global event of
“Earth Hour” Lights Off, Emission Reduction and Energy
Saving Event initiated by World Wide Fund. Through this
event, all members of Karrie (including those from China,
Hong Kong even to Malaysia, and from manufacturing
plants and the outlets of consumer and services business)
respond to this event.

Di
i=1

Indirect energy greenhouse
gas emissions

B IREHOR = R BB HE

Other indirect greenhouse
gas emissions

H iR EOR =R HENR

Total volume of greenhouse
gas emissions

RERBHRAE
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With respect to our plants in the PRC, the Group fully
completed its plant relocation from Guanjingtou to
Yuquan, fully demonstrating the feasibility of reusing
resources. The relevant authorities assessed the reusability
of relevant equipment and resources initially, and
formulated and prepared a detailed deployment plan. The
dismantling of Guanjingtou Plant and the reconstruction
of relevant production lines in Yuquan Plant were totally
relied on the coordination among departments, which
ran smoothly without affecting production shipment.
Meanwhile, it saved a lot in new equipment purchase and
supplies and brought out the best in each other.

In 2016, the Sewage Treatment Center in Yuquan Plant
was officially put into use, which makes it possible to
reuse the disposed wastewater from production and living
in toilets and flowering. The Group also participated in
HSBC Water Program for Industrial Water Management,
to enhance the water resource management in the
plant. Meanwhile, the Group has supported the activity
of “Let’s Save 10L Water” implemented by Hong Kong
Government, pasted tips of saving water and released
relevant messages to encourage employees to use water
resources effectively.

In this year, the Group entrusted an independent consultant
company to conduct greenhouse gas calculation. Through
the accounted results, the Group is able to understand
clearly the distribution of major greenhouse gas emissions
to formulate effective policy and system in managing and
reducing greenhouse gas emission.

Looking forward to the coming year, the Group will still strive
to implement energy-saving and green production while
putting EICC environmental protection policies into practice.
In response to the “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan” energy-saving
plan, the Group will reduce emission, better utilize resources
and carry out clean production, thereby further lowering the
indicator for the production value to energy consumption
ratio. The Group has formulated an energy-saving plan,
and it is hoped that the amount of comprehensive energy
consumption in 2020 would decrease 30 tonnes of coal
per annum. By setting the objectives, it could save energy
and reduce consumption, lower production costs and raise
market competitiveness. As a result, invaluable resources
could be retained and the environment could be kept in
good condition for the next generation.
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(V) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has established the Executive Committee
to improve decision-making efficiency. The day-to-
day operations of the Group are now in the hands of a
group of professional team. Furthermore,the Group is
committed to improving transparency, hence it discloses
in its annual report detailed explanation of corporate
strategies and the rationale behind; and meets individual
investors annually through the “teabreak” programmes
to facilitate the direct dialogue between investors and
the management. Our staff can also keep abreast of our
corporate plans and development directions through
year-end summary meetings, brainstorming sessions and
chairman sharing activities and hence the transparency
of the Company is enhanced. Starting from 2008, the
“Sustainability Report” has been incorporated into the
annual reports, which allows the public and investors to
have a better knowledge of what we have done as well as
the progress for sustainable development and corporate
social responsibility.

The Company adopted the board diversity policy, which
sets out the objectives and principles regarding board
diversity for the purpose of achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives of balance at the Board composition as
far as practicable.

The Group is committed to the highest standards of
corporate governance, and will act accordingly to make
sure that it complies with the Corporate Governance
Code and reviews and improves our corporate governance
practices from time to time, so as to maintain good
corporate governance. The Group has well-established
corporate governance structure to enhance the
accountability to shareholders and other stakeholders.
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In addition, the Group is well aware of the importance
of honesty, integrity and fairness, and in preventing
fraudulent, corruption and bribery activities by staff, it
has issued “Ethical Disciplinary Requirements” to its staff,
requesting them to observe the policies relating to taking
interests and declaring interest conflicts. The Group has
dedicated personnel to take care of and follow up such
declaration and approval, complaints and enquiries, and
also has ethics and integrity management training for
new recruits and departments. We also have a set of
Social Entertainment Regulations in place so that the staff
involved may get to know and abide by the standards of
treating guests and maintain clear consumption records
and follow correct reimbursement procedures.

Maintaining integrity and professionalism and
strengthening internal audit to prevent corruption is an
important cornerstone of a business enterprise. In order to
maintain sustainable and healthy development, in addition
to continuously improving product and service quality,
it is also an essential task to build an integrity brand.
The Group invited Hong Kong Independent Commission
Against Corruption to design thematic workshops on
industry-specific basis for integrity management and
corruption prevention to all staff of the Group. On the
other hand, lectures on integrity management and
corruption prevention have also been given to our
colleagues in the PRC by means of instant messaging video
conference, providing them with information on the latest
corruption prevention movements.

In respect of suppliers and processors, the Group has
issued a letter named “Peers’ Belief” to urge them
not to provide any benefits to employees during the
normal course of business. All of our staff is prohibited
from taking advantages of their powers and authorities
for personal interests and incurring unfair business
transactions. All employees must maintain the highest level
of honesty, and are prohibited from obtaining any benefits
with their powers and authorities.
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The Company has established the internal audit function
and adopted the risk management policy and three-
year internal risk management audit plan, including
the structure and system of risk management of the
Group. The Internal Audit Department together with
the Audit Committee review the effectiveness of the risk
management at least once a year. The Internal Audit
Department also performs regular audit to learn about the
implementation of the Group’s internal risk management
projects and report of the risk and key controls of the
Group to the Board and the Audit Committee. The
internal control system of the Group is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no
material mis-statement or loss and to manage instead
of eliminating risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

At the same time, Corporate Policy on Personal Data
Privacy provides guidelines for managing different kinds
of personal data that secures the personal data of our
customers and business partners.

(For further information, please refer to the heading of
"“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report)
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(Vi) CARING FOR THE COMMUNITY

Since 2005, the Group endeavours to appropriate 0.3%
of earnings in the prior year annually for charity or social
responsibility purpose, the amount contributed from 2002
until the end of March of 2017 was over HK$4,700,000 in
total. While the established volunteer group for charitable
works and different teams develop social responsibility
activity projects and prepare relevant expenditure budgets
for the current year annually, and then they are handed
over to the management for approval to ensure the proper
use of the expenditure.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group clearly
understands the needs to blend in with the community,
create harmony and make full commitments to social
services. Back in 2005, the Group established in its
Headquarter a volunteer team in Hong Kong “volunteer
group for charitable works”. While in the PRC, different
internal organisations including staff association and the
party branch also organise various kinds of charitable
activities.

In October 2016, the Company donated to “Hang Seng
Management College — Foundation” for supporting
its campus construction, whole-person development
for students, scholarship and bursaries, academic,
teaching and research, Chairman Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
was also appointed as the honorary vice chairman of
the Foundation. In addition, Mr. Ho was invited to be a
member of Advisory Committee in Young Entrepreneur
Club of Hong Kong Baptist University, with a view to
promote entrepreneurship and sharing entrepreneurial
experience with young entrepreneurs.

The Group has sponsored “Nothing is impossible”
Adventure Education Program and different activities
organised by Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui St. Christopher’s
Home since 2005, which aimed at nurturing children
with the spirit of “Nothing is impossible” to strengthen
their endurance through various activities. Meanwhile, a
Vote for Individual was added this year to acknowledge
and compliment the social persons who have displayed
the “Nothing is impossible” spirit, so as to promote this
spirit. Also, a group of children took part in the “Nothing
is impossible” Adventure Education Program and acted
as minor reporters to conduct interviews with all winners
through voting, so as to prepare the activity periodical.
The Managing Director of our partner, Strategic Financial
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Relations Limited was specially invited to Heart Link under
the St. Christopher’s Home for sharing her experience and
prepared the participants for their subsequent interviews on
a Vote for Individual of Karrie's “Nothing is impossible”.

Besides, the Group sponsored the clothing and registration
fees for students with slight mental retardation and
teachers of HHCKLA Buddhist Po Kwong School for their
participation in the 10km or Half Marathon race in the
Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon for the tenth
consecutive year so as to train students’ willpower and
persistence. The Group’s volunteer teams from the PRC
and Hong Kong also pay visits to Hong Kong Sheng Kung
Hui Tai Wo Neighbourhood Elderly Centre and Fenggang
Nursing Home in the PRC during Mid-Autumn Festival and
Tuen Ng Festival annually, celebrating the festivals with
elderly and giving them gifts.

We have set up volunteer leave since 2008, so as to
encourage our staff to take an active part in voluntary
services. The Group also took part in various social
charitable activities during the year, such as ORBIS World
Sight Day, Greeners Action’s “Red Pockets Recycling
Campaign” (Internal propaganda), the “Lunar New Year
Gift Transfer Program” by People’s Food Bank under
St. James’ Settlement, and the Community Chest Walk
for Millions, Charity Movie for Fund Raising Party held
by Emergency HK and activity for supporting the ACCA
charity caring day in 2017. Fullhouse World donated
products to HHCKLA Buddhist Po Kwong School and Heart
Link organization under the St. Christopher's Home for
them to put on the charity sale in the bazaar.

For the Year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounted to HK$271,000, while it was
HK$553,000 last year, the volunteer service hours in China
and Hong Kong were up to 505 hours.
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Charitable and other
donations for the Year

RER 2 BEREMBR

Volunteer service hours in
PRC and Hong Kong

HK$271,000 75 7T hEE TR B

505 hours /)N B
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HANG SENG MANAGEMENT COLLEGE - FOUNDATION T
INAUGURATION CEREMONY CUM FUNDRAISING DINNER MRENTY
20-10-2016 HO CHEL CLASSROOM

EEEXEMEEEERMAREEEEE G AR SR TR RS E B LI RELEEEERRRM
IEXHFET BB ZEREN  FOBRAEAETE -

Chairman Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai with his wife, Dr. Poon Sun Cheong Patrick, Hang Seng Management
College — Chairman of Fund Management Committee and Professor Simon S. H. Ho, President of
Hang Seng Management College attended the cheque donation conferring ceremony, parts of the
donation will be used for classroom naming rights.

HEMEAEEEERAGNESALE-RE
EPMABNBEEBERERE NHNEOEETERD
2 RBMECREETIEFNAEEATREIA
DR 2R YT R M A

Ms. Esther Chan, Managing Director of
Strategic Financial Relations Limited shared
her experience with S.K.H. St. Christopher’s
Home “Heart Link” Center, which made a
good preparation for election interviews

of “Karrie’s nothing is impossible” by
participants thereafter.

SEEENEANREBSPLESERBTF
BREE SERERTSEZPLNRERT —
AEAGHBERE HCRAERET - -, - .
The Group has cooperated with Sheng Kung i
Hui Tai Wo Neighbourhood Elderly Center for 4
over 10 years. In every activity, our employee
volunteers partnered with elder volunteers of
this Center to visit solitary elders and become
old friends.
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(VIII) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY AND
SUPPLIERS MANAGEMENT

Different business under the Group have always adhered
to the corporate concept and enable customers to
benefit from our superb product quality, reasonable
costs, comprehensive service and flexible changes.
Meanwhile, they never compromise on safety, design
innovation and product quality to ensure all products
meet the relevant external and internal standards and also
consider the actual needs from customers’ perspective.
Since 1998, the Group has launched and executed
international certification standard quality management
system (ISO9001) and in 2011, obtained the international
certification standards of medical appliance quality
management system (ISO 13485). The Group's quality
policy is to “provide customer satisfaction by utilizing the
most effective cost. Dedication and reliability are primary
objectives of our company's philosophy. All employees
do fully understand, implement and maintain this quality
system at all levels of the organization”.

With respect to industrial business, the Group strictly
complies with the laws and regulations related to quality,
safety and environment as well as formulating products
quality standards on safety, environmental protection and
good quality as required by customers and regulations.
According to given quality checking process, we set up
inspection points in key areas during production, including
hand plate clearance check, process control check, and
assured final inspection of qualified delivery of customers’
products and implement necessary reliability test, so that
we can guarantee to delivery qualified and excellent
quality products to customers. We adopted scientific
quality management and control methods to minimize the
risks of making mistakes when appropriate, such as risk
assessment, FMEA, SPC, and Six Sigma. We established
comprehensive after-sale service system to gain customers
trusts and satisfaction.

The 2016 Quality Achievement Award granted by our
customer, Hewlett Packard Enterprises (HPE), in 2016
demonstrated its recognition to our manufacturing team’s
efforts in the past years. In addition, the medical products
received certification by Food and Drug Administration of
USA (U.S. FDA) in 2016. After the safety proven by U.S.
FDA inspection, products can be sold in the market. At the
same time, all products that have contact with food also
need to be tested by U.S. FDA to obtain certifications.
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Fullhouse World’s household product, “rainbow chopping
board”, was awarded the “Hong Kong Smart Gifts Design
Award 2016 — Household Gift Bronze Award” by The
Hong Kong Exporters’ Association. At the same time, we
were being invited to participate in Ambiente 2017 in
Frankfurt, Germany, and outplayed over 1,400 companies
on site to become one of 27 annual “Best Household
and Kitchen Solutions” in the Gift Design Competition of
Solutions 2017.

With respect to consumer and services business, high-
level food safety has been the persistent pursuit of the
Group, for which it assigned personnel to attend other
safety management activities in the food production and
hospitality and catering sectors, as well as workshops on
strict control of food safety. The Group also recommended
its staff to attend the Hygiene Supervisor and the Hygiene
Manager Training Courses offered by the Food and
Environmental Hygiene Department, which enable them to
master the control and supervision regarding the methods
on food hygiene and safety, so as to enhance the skills of
food supervision.

Upon several audit and qualification assessment by
SGS Hong Kong Limited (“SGS"”), the Central Kitchen
was awarded the hygienic supervision certificate,
demonstrating that the staff and environmental
sanitation, product management, equipment and facilities,
temperature control and other aspects of Central Kitchen
have satisfied the high standard of food hygiene.

To ensure food safety and quality consistency, the Group
established a set of operating procedural standards and
prepared cooking videos for deepening the understanding
and unifying the cooking standard of every frontline staff
in cooking steps and finished products. In addition, the
Group regularly provides frontline staff with trainings
and evaluations covering various areas for continuously
improving service quality and standard of restaurant and
ensuring the smooth operation of restaurant. The testing
of frontline staff's knowledge in different aspects through
evaluations is to enhance the performance in various
areas.
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In terms of the customers’ satisfaction, the Group makes
decisions based on customer expectation. The behavior
and expectation of customers of a business enterprise
determine the key elements for its survival. For industrial
business, the Group considers and solves the problems
from customer’s standpoint and gives top priority to the
needs and satisfaction of customers. Apart from measuring
the performance of market performance in terms of
customers’ satisfaction, the Group also addresses and
handles the demand from customers (such as product
complaints) according to the comprehensive customer
complaint and product reclaim mechanism, which will be
handled by each special customer team immediately, and
enable customers to contact the responsible persons in the
first instance. They will respond actively and handle the
problems in the fastest way within the time permitted by
customers, carry out fast improvement actions internally,
which include product reclaim, thorough checking,
replenishment, remedies and preventive measures, report
the analysis and treatment to customers until they are
satisfied.

For consumer and services business, the Group
understands customer needs positively by collecting
customers’ opinions or comments regarding restaurants
through different channels. Every shop collects comments
card each month, then analyzes them and compiles a
report for the management to understand the actual
situation, conduct review and gap analysis. Besides,
the Group participates in Mystery Shoppers Programme
organized by Hong Kong Retail Management Association
to evaluate customer service and product performance of
each shop, with a view to understanding the merits and
shortcomings of each shop, providing more appropriate
trainings and carrying out review and improvement.
Eventually, each new shop recruits internal staff and
external customers before its opening, conduct stress tests
for frontline staff and test the responding capability of
frontline staff through different scenarios, so as to know
their deficiencies for further improvement and keep on
improving service quality and standards of the restaurants.
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Supplier Management

The Group established a central procurement department
to ensure the quality and safety standards of all good and
materials and food, and complied with the requirements of
relevant regulations. Only after all new suppliers and suppliers
for key food materials assessed by our supply chain team and
in compliance with the requirements of the Group, then they
would be formally become our supply partners. In addition,
the supply chain team also visits major suppliers regularly
for periodic review of their quality situation and production
capacity. In order to comply with the regulations of ISO 9001
Quality Management System and ISO 14001 Environment
Management System, the Group gives priority to work
with suppliers with quality guarantee and going green. The
Group also entered into agreements with suppliers to ensure
suppliers are in compliance with the environmental protection
standard of the Group.

According to the minerals regulations in conflicting regions
of the Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition (EICC) and
the Global e-Sustainability Initiative (GeSl) (Article 1520
of Dodd-Frank legislation in the United States), the Group
and its suppliers confirmed of not using the “Conflicting
Minerals” produced by The Democratic Republic of
Congo (DRC) or its neighbouring country, which including
tantalum, tin, gold and tungsten.

The Group always bears in mind in expressing its support
to social enterprises in the course of its operation. All
dish washing services in Fullhouse World has adopted the
rehabilitate dish washing service provided by Mission Ark's
(gospel therapy drug abuse treatment and rehabilitation
service) New Life Centralized Dishwashing Service for years
to support the social enterprise vision in Hong Kong.
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(IX) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
INDICATORS

Environment B1E

(f1) S

BEEER

Data Collection Units 2016/17

BEBAE B 2016175 E

Scope | of greenhouse gas emission — direct emission Tonnes COze 1,803

RERBYNEE— - ERREREBHEN AE_EfiE S

Scope Il of greenhouse gas emission — indirect energy

emission Tonnes CO2e 19,249

mERBHNEE_— - b REERERBHMN N kR ()

Scope Il of greenhouse gas emission — indirect emission Tonnes COze 83

RERBHEREE= - HaREZRERBHN N — RS 8

Total volume of greenhouse gas emission Tonnes CO2e 21,135

BERBHREE AW _EREE

Electricity consumption kWh 36,512,080
T8 + FL B

Water consumption Cubic meter 477,571

FEkE K

Paper used kilogram 22,744

R#EE N

Diesel oil consumption liter 225,972

mERE Fr

Gasoline consumption liter 10,037

FRFERE It
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Data Collection 2016/17
HiBRE 2016/175 &
Average number of employees of the Group during the Year 4,063

AEBAFERNFHREEAK

Gender distribution of PRC employees (Male: Female)

MiEE MR D (B : &)

65.24%: 34.76%

Gender distribution of Hong Kong and overseas employees (Male: Female)

BERBIMEE MR DM (B %)

59.10%: 40.90%

Monthly average turnover rate of PRC employees 7.61%
Wit fE 8 B FEmK =X

Monthly average turnover rate of Hong Kong and overseas employees 4.41%
BB RBIMER A FIRAE

Number of PRC occupational injury incidents 82
A Hb T 15 52 8k

Number of Hong Kong occupational injury incidents 4
BEELIBRHE

Number of business days lost in PRC due to work 1366
WA TmEL 2 TIEH

Number of business days lost in Hong Kong due to work 79
HEEAIMBLEZ TER

Employees fatality due to occupational injury in PRC and Hong Kong 0

PERTIBMEME T AR

Total number of training hours

#8135 5| B 2K

34,423 hours /|\EF

Average number of training hours of employees
8 TR 8

7.95 hours /)NEF

Gender of the Board by percentage (Male: Female) 8: 1
EEEREMRILE (5 &)
Number of volunteering service hours 505

= T R75 5 21
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(X) MISSIONS UNDERTAKINGS

The Group believes that “Sustainable Development”
cannot be operated solely by itself, while through various
occasions of sharing of experience externally and plant
visits, more and more organisations could join hand in

SEBEE

hand the sharing and communication, create value from
various occasions and promote the sustainability work

together.

2016/7/6

Family Planning Association of
Zhongshan visited the Company to
share and communicate with transient
population family planning association.
Rl R E R AR R BT E)A D 5T

FEABERR-

2016/10/27

The Group has been actively participated
in the “mentorship programme”
organised by the Human Resources
Department of School of Business of
Hong Kong Baptist University for years,
in which the management acted as
mentors to lead students to visit the
offices in Hong Kong and understand
the business of the Company.
ZERBEHBLEEZERTHEEERA
NEREBEZARY 2 [AREE] - B
EREASBEETEHN EHFREBLT
EEMEESBRERAR X -

2016/7/28

St. James’ Settlement together with
the teachers and students of “Catering
Sector Training Course of Youth
Employment Program” visited our
shops to attend and share the career
planning activity.

EHERES SRSl SOFEMES
I &I & R B FIRIZ R £ B B 5R 5
HETEEREEDY (FRENZ-

2017/3/27

Family Planning Association of
Dongguan and Zhaoqing visited
the Company for sharing and
communication.

R REEDH ARG ARLH

Zx 2%

200 ©

(1) fEER

[AIFEERI|L T EEEEAC B LR
tE BRHIATENERSZRZERE T
B EEZHBA LB HERR
BE HEEAUSEZRIT(E

e BB BT EIE

2016/10/11

Worked jointly with St. James'
Settlement and Lingnan Hang Yee
Memorial Secondary School for the
teachers’ catering sector experience
workshop
HERXEHSNEEERE T E
Mz EMERERRBRIIED -

2017/3/30

The teachers and students from Shun
Tak Fraternal Association Leung Kau
Kui College visited the company
headquarter in Hong Kong and
central kitchen and share the work
experience.

BB A e RETER BRIV ERGHE
B R P RETE 2B R EIIEREER
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(XI) MAJOR AWARDS, RECOGNITION AND

CHARTERS

R E RS
caringcompany

In 2016/17, the Group gained recognitions and the
information of the Charters participated were as follows:

Category
E2pel

Staff Caring
HEET

Staff Caring
HEET

Staff Caring
HEET

Staﬁ Caring
MIEET

Occupational Safety and Health
BEZTREER

Occupational Safety and Health
BEZ2ERERE

Training and Development
B3 R

Training and Development
B R

Training and Development
B3 R

Corporate Social Responsibility
EMEEE

Corporate Social Responsibility
rEHERE

Awarding Units
HRE L

China Family Planning Association

PEFELERHE

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
BHMENERAEEER

Home Affairs Bureau

RBEBR

Hong Kong Department of Health and
Occupational Safety & Health Council
BRBEERBELZZRER

Human Resources Bureau of Dongguan and
Bureau of Quality and Technology Supervision of
Dongguan City
REMANERBER=MES
RTEE B

Fenggang Administration of Work Safety and
Fenggang Labour Union
BEEAx2+EEEERRK
REEeTe

The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and
Medium Business

FEPNUGCRERE

Employees Retraining Board
EEHEIR

Job Market

KIES

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
AR ERBEHE

Community Investment and Inclusion Fund
of the Labour and Welfare Bureau

BIRBHRALERERZES

27N
neElX=(E 1
PALLRERS IO

E/\
ZHWEERWMT
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(t-) TBRE BIFRNE

2
| Jiﬁﬁé‘)

Partner Employer Award T 2F &1

TR/ —tFE FEEESRRARZHE

Honors/Recognitions/Charters Granted

FERE B/ NE

Advance Unit of National Family Planning Association

2EG LB HE TIEEER

2015-16 Good MPF Employer
&% 17 +2015-16

2015/16 Family-Friendly Employers Award Scheme-
Family-Friendly Employer
201516 FERER =BT A S - REREEE

Joyful@ Healthy Workplace Charter
FhEeREREIIERMAE

2016 Dongguan Professional Forklift Driver Competition
— Second Prize and Third Prize

20165F R X E Al E AL

S CERR=%H%

2016 Work Safety Knowledge Competition in Fenggang
— Third Place
BEE016XELENEHBERE -F=4

Partner Employer Award

[RABR] EZFE - BHEERTMEE

H\}E&

Manpower Developer 1st

AA st

2016 Ambitious Excellent Enterprise Award
BERATEELE2016] 25T

B =
2005-2017 10 Year Plus Caring Company Logo
[10%FPlusf S & B 12 ] 12552005-2017

Social Capital Builder Logo Award
HEERBNEFEHE
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Aty
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)
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Category
Ehl

Corporate Social Responsibility
rEHERE

Environmental Protection
RIGIRE

Environmental Protection
RIBRE

Environmental Protection
RIGRE

Product Liability
Emaf

Product Liability
EmEE

Product Liability
EmEE

Product Liability
EmaE

Product Liability
Emaf

‘\-’Pars

ARER / BEEH R
qﬂﬁﬁiél 3 Sy pREE|
ERARELASE 2015 ; ERARAEAM 2015

Awarding Units
HERE

Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council
BEENGRINGE

Federation of Hong Kong Industries

EET#pe

Environmental Protection Department
RERES

Electrical and Mechanical Services Department

KEIRRE

(Customer) Hewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE)
% F Hewlett Packard Enterprise (HPE)

(Customer) Konica Minolta

& FKonica Minolta (f][E F3E8g %)
(Customer) NEC

& FNEC

Hong Kong Exporters" Association

EELnEe

Ambiente 2017
BEEZEEMEES2017

80 Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # J¢ % R 2 &]

Honors/Recognitions/Charters Granted

FiRE B/ HNE

The 21st Excellent Volunteers Award Scheme — Company
Caring Award
T EREE T REEETE- CEBER

BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards
2015:
mw¢ﬁ§5¢%@%%%ﬁﬁ
Five Year Plus Environmental Participant Pioneer
Award
- SE+2HERBREBRE

— Excellent Environmental Partner

- RREHBH

Food Wise Eateries Scheme — Silver Class

[BRHER RS | SRR

2016 Energy-saving Charters
i gE#1E2016

2016 Best Quality Supplier
2016 = mE M IER

Certificate of Appreciation — Appreciation for Efforts of
U.S FDA Certification
RXFAR — R% %1 35 BUFDAGRAE O %S )

Certificate of Appreciation

R

The Hong Kong Smart Gifts Design Awards Contest
2016 - Household Gift Bronze Award

BEE LR mRst KE2016

- KEEmi

Solutions 2017 — One of the Best Household and
Kitchen Solutions

Solutions 2017

- BERERBERERATR] 2—



The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and to enhance
corporate value and accountability.

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (the “Year") the Group
has applied the principles of the recently promulgated
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and complied with the code provision
(the “Code Provisions”) of the CG Code; save for the
deviation from Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1, A.4.2 and
A5 of the CG Code. This report describes our Group's
corporate governance practices and explains the said
deviations from the CG Code.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
Company does not segregate the roles of its Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr. Ho")
currently holds both positions.

Being the founder of the Group, Mr. Ho has substantial
experience in the industrial business, as well as in real
estate and culture related industries. At the same time, Mr.
Ho has the appropriate management skills and business
acumen that are necessary and are the pre-requisites for
assuming the role of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer in the same person would
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership
and allow the Group to be more effective and efficient in
developing long-term business strategies and executing
business plans. Hence, the Board considers that there is no
need to segregate the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer and both roles should continue to be
performed by Mr. Ho.

Corporate Governance Report
REERREE

AREREZEBAQRBR ([RR])#a kTR
XBEENEAEE ARALEMBAR ([KE
B —MAEETETREEILEER

REBEE-ZE—+F=A=+—HBUIEE ([KF
BEIDR AEBEERERASTBEMIEN T EH
ARGIABARARESFEWRA ([T ETHRE])
Mg+ M bEERERTR(IREERST
BB EZ R RETHASTAME (5
BM&ESC]) (BRTIRBEGEE AT A Z FAIEX
A2.1 A4 CAA2RABHN) - RERE EFEAMA
EBECHEEREN YEECEEATUNZRE
AlEA MRS EERTANITA-

CERERTUZTABRIA2ARERED XF
HITBEHNABE Y TEH - ARKRE- K
RATERDTFETHRARNAS  [MIFEE
£ (MM se£]) B Al FE % R EBAL -

MAELEREAEBNERA RIXEEMFHE
BV HAEXAREELR -FAR {IELXLR
BEBTRARMEZLABEERTDREER
BZRRGH -BEFEMHE A ARBEEIE
FERAIBAHNABAAEERMHABRNF -
MBS WA EAKEEERLARXMERE
EXBRBEERTERBS - ALEZTERRE
BRDIFENTHRER A LRAEEES
EEEmEAE-
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According to Code Provision A.4.1 of CG Code, non-
executive director should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming was re-
designated as Non-executive Director on 1 June 2007 and
he was appointed as Deputy Chairman on 1 May 2011
without a specific term. Mr. Ho Kai Man was re-designated
as the Non-executive Director on 1 November 2012
without a specific term. Although Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and
Mr. Ho Kai Man are not appointed for a specific term, they
are subject to retirement by rotation according to the Bye-
laws of the Company.

Moreover, Code Provision A.4.2 of CG Code stipulates
that every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, the
number nearest to one-third but not greater than one-
third shall retire from office provided that notwithstanding
anything in the Company's Bye-laws, the Chairman
of the Directors and/or the Managing Director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject
to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in
determining the number of Directors to retire in each
year. Furthermore, any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board should hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and
would then be eligible for re-election. The Chairman and/
or the Managing Director of the Company will consider
to voluntarily retire at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years in line with Code Provision
A.4.2 of the CG Code. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure good
corporate governance of the Company.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % IR 2 7]
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According to Code Provision A.5 of the CG Code, the
Company should establish a nomination committee, which
is chaired by the chairman of the Board or an independent
non-executive Director and comprises a majority of the
independent non-executive Directors. The Company
has not established a nomination committee due to the
fact that the function of the nomination committee was
delegated to the Board, which is responsible for reviewing
its own structure, size and composition in accordance
with the board diversity policy adopted by the Company
(the "Policy”) annually; considering the re-appointment
of Directors; evaluating the Policy as well as assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
Board has taken sufficient measures to avoid the conflict
of interests in carrying out such functions. For instance,
the relevant Director would abstain from voting for any
resolution relating to his or her own re-appointment. As
such, the Board is of the view that the members of the
Board possess the necessary experience and knowledge to
discharge the functions of a nomination committee. The
Board shall review the composition and operation of the
Board from time to time and shall consider establishing a
nomination committee if such need arises.

The Company will continue to review its practices from
time to time to achieve high standard of corporate
governance.

Corporate Governance Report
REERREE

RIEEERERTUZTAMEXAS  NRABEKX
VHARAEIFRRBILIFATEETRIF 2R
HREEE HAHOKE EHBUIFRITESR
MK RRRIEARBEKRIIRBEZEE HEFE
FRiTiR 2 R B @ Biae  HEBE AR ARS
MEFEXBZTBER([BR]) AEESFR
NEEFENRE ABLKAK TEZEFERE
SEHMEREEE AFRBUFRATERTNEL
H-BEERCRNENERERITRI LR &
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REFZRZF HEEERRE-QIL EFER
RESFEXEERMERIABMRETRER
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1.1

1.2

HEiRMEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board
consisted of nine Directors, comprising Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia, Mr. Zhao Kai and
Mr. Chan Raymond as executive Directors; Mr.
Ho Cheuk Ming as a non-executive Director and
Deputy Chairman; Mr. Ho Kai Man as a non-
executive Director and Mr. So Wai Chun, Mr.
Fong Hoi Shing and Mr. Yam Chung Shing as the
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has
the collective responsibility for the leadership and
promotion of the success of the Group’s business
by directing and supervising the Group'’s affairs.

The Board is committed to the Group's objectives
of enhancing the Shareholders’ value and provision
of superior products and services. The Board is
collectively responsible for formulating the overall
objective and strategy of the Group; monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the standard of corporate governance
of the Group. It also makes decisions on matters
such as approving the annual results, interim
and quarterly results, connected transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
declaring dividends and adopting accounting
policies. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing business strategies
and management of the daily operations of the
Group's businesses to the management.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % IR 2 7]

1.1

1.2
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1.3 The Board conducts regular scheduled meetings on
a quarterly basis. Ad-hoc meetings are convened
when circumstances require.

The Board had met eight times for the Year and
considered, reviewed and approved the Group’s annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2016, quarterly and
interim results for the Year.

The attendance records of Board meetings and general
meetings held for the Year are set out below:

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings
and general meetings for the Year

Corporate Governance Report
REERREE

EFEeNAFEERT/\XREH LEEE &
Bkt EEEEEZE T -R"F=ZA=1+—HZ
EFEREMMMAFREZFERTHES-

NTRAFEEEFGEZLBRRAEGHNLEL
8

FEEEFERRRASEREHNESHHER

No. of board No. of general

meetings meetings
attended/held attended/held
Exg BRAE
HERE, HERE
= P/ BERAHE
Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai ERGE: s 8/8 2/2
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia PR 2 o /)N 18 8/8 2/2
Mr. Zhao Kai el & 8/8 2/2
Mr. Chan Raymond® BRI S @
Non-executive Directors FFNTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming Al 2 A %4 8/8 2/2
Mr. Ho Kai Man A R 3%k A& 8/8 2/2
Independent BUIFPITESE
Non-executive Directors
Mr. So Wai Chun BRIEE S E 8/8 2/2
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing 7 & 8/8 2/2
Mr. Yam Chung Shing FEHBLEE 8/8 2/2

@ was appointed on 1 June 2016

@ R-T—

RENA-—HEZE
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A list of Directors and their role and function was posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

1.4

To maximize the effectiveness of the Board and to
encourage active participation and contribution
from Board members, the Board has established an
audit committee and a remuneration committee.
Detailed descriptions of each of these committees
are set out below. All of these committees adopt,
as far as practicable, the principles, procedures
and arrangements of the Board in relation to the
scheduling and proceeding of meetings, notice of
meetings and inclusion of agenda items, records
and availability of minutes.

The Board has devised its specific written terms of
reference setting out its duties, responsibilities, powers and
functions which include the following:

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management;

taking responsibility for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the prevailing
accounting standards and laws, approving the
financial statements and appointing and liaising
with the Group's external auditors;

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
in its Annual Report;

overseeing management in the design
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems;

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig 7 R 2 7]
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2.1

2.2

liaising with all regulatory authorities and
organisations on all matters relating to the Group,
and monitoring changes in their policies relating to
and affecting the Group; and

ensuring accountability towards and sufficient
communication with the Group’s shareholders.

Board Composition

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board
comprises nine Directors: four executive Directors,
two non-executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a
non-executive Director, is the younger brother
of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Ho Kai Man, a non-executive
director, is the nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and the son of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, a
non-executive director and deputy chairman of the
Company.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the
existing Directors are considered appropriate so
as to effectively lead, supervise and manage the
Group, taking into account the scope and nature
of the operations. The Directors have a mix of
core competencies in areas such as accounting
and finance, business and management,
production and quality control techniques, supply
chain management, industry knowledge and
marketing strategies. Details of the experience and
qualifications of Directors and Senior Management
are set out in the section headed "“Senior
Management Profile” in this Annual Report.

Board Diversity

Pursuant to Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, the
Company has adopted a board diversity policy, which sets
out the purpose and principles regarding board diversity
for the purpose of achieving the Company’s strategic
objectives of balanced diversity at the Board as for as
practicable. Directors’ appointment will be based on merit
and candidates will be considered against measurable
objectives, taking into account the Company’s business
and development.

Corporate Governance Report
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity criteria, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the Year, the Board reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and was of the opinion that
the Board is well balanced and diversified, and with the
appropriate structure, size and necessary skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives required for the
business of the Group. The Board also reviewed and
evaluated the board diversity policy.

4, Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

4.1 At each annual general meeting of the Company
("AGM"), one-third of the Directors are required to
retire from office by rotation. The Directors, since
his last election or appointment who has been the
longest in office shall retire and be eligible for re-
election at the AGM. Pursuant to the bye-laws of
the Company, the Chairman and/or the Managing
Director of the Group shall not, when holding such
office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be
taken into account in determining the number of
Directors to retire in each year. To comply with Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman
and/or the Managing Director of the Group will
voluntarily retire at the AGM at least once every
three years.

4.2 As at 31 March 2017, non-executive Directors
(except Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Ho Kai Man)
including the independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a fixed term not exceeding three
years and all non-executive Directors are subject to
the requirements of retirement by rotation and re-
election by Shareholders at the AGM in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % R 2 7]

REANKEIRE-RINZTLEE B
BARRBRRMER - Fik XEBERRERKD
MEHBEER FELR K MBNMREF
fR - ARHPRERIKIBEFAENREZEARSES
TRENEERFLNERME -

AEEN EFZeFHNEFTG2EBE NN RAE
KR/ EFENHERZ T ERGEN
BB ANDREARNREE ME EfREAEE
EBARZTILMB -EFENERANGESE
EZTTIEBR -

4, ESHNEE BEERER

41 REERRBERE ([RREFXE])
b =2 EFEARERE-BFZR
TEFER/BFA LREEXBEBENRML
PAARREISGEBRERBEAS LE
BEFE-REBEAAFMAR EETEEXE
R/ RERBEER BN FREINE
EERRBFRELABFEREIZEFTAR
B BAR R AT RETEEEETEH
ZTRMGEXAA2 SEXTFERITHRER
wELB=FERRE-

42 R-IZE—+HF=-ZA=+—H FHTES
(MERTERMBRXEERIN) BIEB
VERTESUBEEHEME HETEA
=F AR TESTAREARRAZ
AR ERBAFRE LHFERETE

yee

BT o



4.3  The names and biographical details of the Directors
who will offer themselves for election or re-election
at the forthcoming AGM are set out in the circular
to Shareholders to assist Shareholders in making an
informed decision on their elections.

4.4  Since the whole Board participates in the
appointment of new Directors, the Company
does not establish a nomination committee. In
evaluating whether an appointee is suitable to act
as a Director, the Board will consider the experience
and skills of the appointee; as well as personal
ethics, integrity and the willingness to commit time
in the affairs of the Group. Where the appointee
is appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, the Board will also consider his/her
independence. During the Year, the Board had also
reviewed and made recommendations in respect
of the re-appointments of retiring Directors, which
were approved by the Shareholders at the last
AGM.

5. Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage
on directors and officers’ liabilities arising from the group’s
business. The Company reviews the extent of insurance
coverage on an annual basis.

6. Directors’ Continuous Professional
Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction.
As part of the ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all directors
on latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements. All Directors are
encouraged to attend external forum or training courses
on relevant topics which may count towards continuous
professional development training.
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For the Year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by
attending training courses, seminars, conferences and
forums or by reading materials relevant to the Group's
business and to Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Each
of them has provided a record of training they received for
the Year to the Company. A directors’ training course was
held on 3 March 2017 concerning the Directors’ Duties,
ways of funding and takeovers and mergers. The training
each Director received for the Year is summarized as

AEE 2RESHEBLFEEIRE F
g R AwmEANEAEEEBREETREE
BEMBERZIAZRAGBZERERE
BB AER B UEFRETARAMER
ZEIRER - FT-—EtF=ZA=B&177 @
EXHIIRE ATEREFCRY B85
MIDERBBA G NEERESTRIFIZM
Zmh:

below:

Attending
training
courses,

seminars,
Reading conferences
materials and forums
IR
weE -
HEEBER SR RWiE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai Al 18 ¥ o A& v v
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia PR & ok /)N 1E v/ v
Mr. Zhao Kai =R v/ v
Mr. Chan Raymond® BRI X A v/ v
Non-executive Directors FFNTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming fa] £ A SE 4 v v
Mr. Ho Kai Man fA] /R 35 A v v
Independent HUIHHITEE
Non-executive Directors
Mr. So Wai Chun BRERLE v v
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing o= Rk v v
Mr. Yam Chung Shing FEBEE v/ 4
@ was appointed on 1 June 2016 . RIB—RERNA-—BEZRE
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7. Corporate Governance and Chairman and Chief
Executive

The Chairman should be responsible for ensuring that
directors receive adequate, clear, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner.

The chairman should:

o ensure that the board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely
manner;

° ensure that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established;

o encourage directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion
of issues and ensure that board decisions fairly
reflect board consensus;

o ensure that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the board as a
whole; and

o promote a culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution of non-
executive directors in particular and ensuring
constructive relations between executive and non-
executive directors.
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8. Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors and one of them has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Pursuant to Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules, the number of independent non-
executive Directors of the Company represents no less than
one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive director
who has served the board for more than nine years, his
further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders.

B. BOARD COMMITTEE

1. Remuneration Committee (“RC")

1.1 The Board has established the RC in June 2005
with terms of reference, comprising a majority of
independent non-executive Directors, which meets
at least once a year. It is chaired by Mr. So Wai
Chun and comprises two other members, namely
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming and Mr. Yam Chung Shing. All
RC members, with the exception of Mr. Ho Cheuk
Ming (non-executive Director), are independent
non-executive Directors. The quorum necessary for
the transaction of business by the RC is two. The
terms of reference of RC have been updated in
March 2012 to comply with the new requirements
set out in the CG Code and were posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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1.2

1.3

The principal responsibilities of RC are:

to formulate remuneration policy of the Group,
review and make recommendations to the Board in
respect of the remuneration policy;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

to conform to any requirement, direction, and
regulation that may from time to time be prescribed
by the Board or contained in the constitution of the
Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or any
applicable law; and

to determine the remuneration and incentive
scheme of the executive Directors and the senior
management.

The RC met once during the Year and reviewed its
terms of reference, the remuneration policy of the
Group and the remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management staff. It also assessed the
performance of the Directors and evaluated the
remuneration policy. The attendance record of the
meeting of RC during the Year is set out below:
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Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming
Mr. Yam Chung Shing

2L
TEMEE

BRIEREE (F/E) 11

171
171
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out
below:

EENSREEANEHH

RELTRAMBICATREEHREZTNHE &
TS FMEEZE - PHBHANAFHRMA
H2RE M MRMEE29 -

REBLEEIAT R Z T RIMEXB.1.5 @i:‘g
—tF=ZA=1T—HiI RFEMARBZ D 2SR
EEABFHMMEIINT

Number of
Remuneration bands (HK$) persons
AR (Bx) A
1 to 1,000,000 1%1,000,000 3
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,00122,000,000 4
2. Audit Committee (“AC”) 2. BEREER
2.1 The AC’'s membership, with the exception of Mr. 21 BEZFE—tHtF=-A=T—BLEFE &
Ho Cheuk Ming (non-executive Director), comprised ZEZEg (BRUERHLEE (ERTES)
the independent non-executive Directors for the SN RB N IEHATERHEK -

year ended 31 March 2017:

Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming

Mr. Yam Chung Shing

The Board is of the opinion that members of
the AC have sufficient accounting and financial
management expertise or experience to discharge
their duties.
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2.2

The operations of the AC are regulated by its terms
of reference. The terms of reference have been
updated in April 2016 to comply with the new
requirements set out in the Revised Code. The
updated terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The main duties of the AC
include:

to review and supervise the Group’s financial
reporting process including the review of quarterly,
interim and annual results of the Group;

to review the external auditors’ appointment,
remuneration and any matters relating to
resignation or termination;

to examine the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control which involves regular review in various
corporate structures and business process;

to realize corporate objective and strategy by taking
into account the potential risk and the nature of
its urgency in order to ensure the effectiveness of
the Group’s business operations. The scope of such
reviews includes finance, operations, regulatory
compliance, internal control systems and risk
management; and

to discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with management to ensure that
management has performed its duties to have
effective systems.
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2.3 The AC met two times for the Year and reviewed 23 EBERZEERAFERTMAGH ILHF
the interim results of the Group for the six months BMT&EBEE8Ez-F—"FNLA=1+TH+H
ended 30 September 2016 and the annual results EBZ-_ZT-—R"F=ZA=1T—HLFEH
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016. PFRE - BEREZEENEHTAEERN
The AC had also reviewed the Group's financial MEmESE  APESGE - B EE
reporting system, internal control system, risk R FIEE R ER J//\ﬁ@%ﬁ%“ﬁﬂﬁ
management system and associated procedures MM BREEG L HERERLHEAR
to ensure their adequacy and effectiveness. The WARIMETFE- %T?%iABA$¢rA
Company Secretary of the Company keeps all BmHERSNT
minutes of the AC. The attendance record of the
meeting of AC for the Year is set out below:

No. of
attended/held
RE
BRNE

Mr. So Wai Chun (Chairman) BEELE (FE) 2/2

Mr. Fong Hoi Shing 778 A& 212

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming A FER S A 22

Mr. Yam Chung Shing FEHEE 2/2

C. SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY C ESETESFXS
DIRECTORS

1.1 The Company has adopted a Code for Securities 1.1 AAFERAAREBEESETELFRIN
Transactions by Directors of the Group (the FESA([RAFESFA]) HERIL
“Company’s Model Code”) on terms no less T - HHEBIMERI10FTE F AR ES#
exacting than the required standard set out in TREFXSGNEESTA ([FEFA]) 2
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors RRESR °
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

1.2 Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, they 12 KAZBEZFLABETHER BEER

have confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards set out in both the Company’s
Model Code and the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2017.
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1.1

1.2

1.3

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
preparing the Group’s accounts which gives a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group on a going concern basis, with
supporting assumption or qualification as necessary.
In preparing the accounts for the Year, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

The management provides explanation and
information to the Board as to enable the Board
to make informed assessments of the financial
and other information put before the Board for
approval.

The Board endeavours to ensure the making of
balanced, clear and understandable assessments
of the Group’s position and prospects and
extending the coverage of such information to
include annual, interim and quarterly reports, price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures
as required under the Listing Rules, reports to
regulators as well as any information that is
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.
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2. Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal
controls and is committed to managing business risks and
maintaining sound and effective internal control systems to
safeqguard the Shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets.

During the Year, the Internal Audit Department under the
supervision of the Board and the Audit Committee, has
reviewed and reported on the adequacy of effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group, covering financial, operational, compliance and
risk management control functions annually. Based on the
results of the review, the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are still effective and adequate.

The Board adopted the risk management policy and
three-year internal risk management audit plan, including
structure and system of risk management of the Group.
Internal Audit Department together with the Audit
Committee will review the adequacy of the effectiveness
of the risk management at least once a year.

The Board’s annual review had considered the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of no material
mis-statement or loss and to manage instead of
eliminating risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Internal Audit Department performs regular audit
reviews and report of the risk and key controls of the
Group to the Board and the Audit Committee. The
responsible Department Heads will be notified of the
control deficiencies noted for rectification. For the Year, the
Internal Audit Department conducted audit over financial
instruments management, IT strategy management,
businesses and customer concentration management,
marching towards new markets (real estate and consumer
and service business) and other items with high risk
index. The audit results have been presented to the senior
management, the Audit Committee and the Board.
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For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside
information pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of
the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), the Group has taken various procedures and
measures, including arousing the awareness to preserve
confidentiality of inside information within the Group,
signing of confidentiality agreement, sending blackout
period and securities dealing restrictions notifications
to the Directors and relevant employees regularly,
disseminating information to specified persons on a need-
to-know basis and observing the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission in June 2012 stringently.

3. Risk Management
/. Risk Management System

The Company established an enterprise risk management
system for ensuring the appropriate control and
governance on the principal risks that are exposed to the
Group, which includes:

o specifying the concept of risk management, and
determining the scope of risk management.

o specifying the risk reporting process and
establishing risk governance framework to identify
and assess the possible impact on the Group.

o establishing risk governance control points for
establishing relevant countermeasures against the
main control matters involving risks.

o establishing monitoring plan in terms of priority,
conducting monitoring and review twice a year.
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Il Risk Management Framework

The Board is playing the role as an overseer, and the Audit
Committee is responsible for risk governance, report the
effectiveness of the risk system of the Group to the Board
and the actual risk executor is the person in charge of
each department. The Board assigns the representative of
Executive Committee the responsibility of being in charge
of implementing the risk measures. The internal audit
department of the Group will conduct an independent
annual review on the risk management system of the
Group according to the audit plan on risk management,
and submit the report to the Board.

/A Risk Identification

The Group identifies risk through a mixture of top-down
and bottom-up approaches, thereby conducting analysis
and appraisal on risk, and identifying the source, type and
index of risk.

For top-down approach, the representatives of Executive
Committee and Risk Management Department have to
conduct risk identification once every two years through
questionnaires, and once every three years by way of
workshop.

For bottom-up approach, the person-in-charge of the
risk will collect the risks from each department, complete
the risk register under the assistance of risk executor,
and submit to risk management department or report to
respective management personnel.

1\ Risk Assessment

The risk is classified into two levels, namely intrinsic risk
and residual risk. The risk assessment calculates the risk
index on these two levels according to the established
methods in respect of the possible impact of each risk on
the Group. It controls the sum of all risk indices on residual
risk within the risk limit pre-set by the Group through
taking control action and mitigation measures.
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v Risk Handling

The sum of risk indices shall at no time exceed the cap of
risk preference of the Group. The control measures shall
be taken to conduct risk governance on any risk with
high risk index in a timely manner. The governance aims
at reducing the possibility of occurrence or mitigating
the impact of risk (and may not be fully eliminated). Each
of the proposed risk management/countermeasure is
assigned to a person in charge with estimated date of
completion, so as to enable the person in charge of risk
easier to monitor the process of management to ensure
risk countermeasures are come into force.

4, Auditors’ remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid to KPMG, the Group’s
external auditor HK$3,000,000 for audit services of the
Group and for non-audit related services approximately
HK$687,000, representing mainly taxation services and
other non-audit service fees.

E. COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

1. The Company strives to convey to Shareholders
pertinent information in a clear, detailed, timely
manner and on a regular basis and to take into
consideration their views and inputs, and to address
the Shareholders’ concerned. Their views are
communicated to the Board comprehensively.

2. The Company adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy and will review it on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. The
purpose of this policy is to ensure the Shareholders
are provided with prompt and equal access to
information about the Company (including but not
limited to its financial performance, corporate goals
and strategies, significant developments, corporate
governance and risk exposure), in order to enable
the Shareholders to assess the Company's overall
performance, exercise their rights in an informed
manner and engage actively with the Company.
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3. The Company communicates with the Shareholders
through the publication of annual reports, interim
reports, circulars, results announcements and
press releases. All communications to Shareholders
are also available on the Company’s website at
www.karrie.com.

4. We had provided sufficient notice for Shareholders
on all general meetings. The AGM provides a useful
platform for Shareholders to exchange views with
the Board. The Chairman of the Board and the
Board members will make an effort to attend to
answer Shareholders’ questions. External auditor
is also available at the annual general meeting to
address shareholders’ queries about the conduct of
the audit.

5. Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

6. All votes of the Shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll according to the Listing Rules.
The chairman of the meeting will therefore demand
a poll for every resolution put to the vote of the
AGM pursuant to bye-law 66 of the Bye-laws.

F. INVESTOR RELATIONS

1. Results announcement

The Board recognizes that effective communication with
investors is the key to establish investor confidence and to
attract new investors.

As from January 2009, the Company had discontinued
its practice of adopting quarterly results announcement.
Annual reports and interim reports are prepared and
issued to all Shareholders within the prescribed period
stipulated by the Listing Rules. All results announcements
and reports are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website. The Company can still provide
the Shareholders and investors with an adequate degree of
transparency and information of the financial position of
the Company.
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2. Media and analysts briefings

Briefings for media are held on the same day immediately
after the interim and annual results released. Briefing for
analysts by way of presentation at luncheons, receptions
or telephone conferences are organized thereafter.
During the briefing, the Group’s management provides
an in-depth analysis of the Group's performances in
respect of the relevant periods and ensures that the
financial performance and accounts of the Group are
well understood. There is also ample opportunity for the
analysts and media to ask questions and interact with the
executive Directors and senior management.

3. Tea-Break with individual investors

Since the first quarter of 2004/05, the Group has been
arranging tea-break with individual investors to build up
an interactive and direct communication channel. This
allows individual investors talking to the management of
the Group. Meanwhile, the Group would give an update
about the status of the Group’s development and share of
their feelings toward the Group. Last year, a tea-break was
held on 26 August 2016.

4, Website

The Group regularly releases corporate information such
as awards received, and the latest news of the Group's
developments on its Company’s website. The public are
welcome to give their comments and make their enquiries
through the Company’s website, the management will
give their prompt response.
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G. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

1. Procedures for Shareholders to convene a
Special General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one half of the voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

2. Procedures for which enquiries may be put to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business or the Company’s website.

3. Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders; or
not less than 100 shareholders may make requisition in
writing to the head office and principal place of business
of the Company:

(@)  to give to shareholders of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting; and
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(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Any enquires or suggestions by Shareholders can be sent
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at our
head office and principal place of business or email to the
Company.

H. COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group's affairs
and assists the Board in functionary effectively. All
Directors also have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary. During the Year, the Company
Secretary has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there is no change in the Company's
constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Fai, aged 71, was appointed as a Director
of the Company in October 1996 and is the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company as well as the
founder of the Group. He is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to founding the Group
in 1980, Mr. Ho had over 10 years' experience in factory
management and in running operations specialised in
manufacturing plastic, metal and electronic products. He
is responsible for the Group’s overall corporate strategies
and objectives. He is also a director of New Sense
Enterprises Limited and Honford Investments Limited, a
corporate substantial shareholder of the Company, and
the brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-executive
Director and Deputy Chairman, the husband of Ms. Ho
Po Chu, who is a member of management team and the
uncle of Mr. Ho Kai Man, a non-executive Director of the
Company.

The solid business knowledge and working experience
gained by Mr. Ho throughout the years are recognized by
the academic. He was awarded with fellow membership
of the Asian Knowledge Management Association in
September 2003 and Honorary Fellowship by Canadian
Chartered Institute of Business Administration and
Honorary Doctorate in Management by Lincoln University
in April 2007.
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Mr. Ho was appointed as member of the 10th Guangdong
Provincial Committee of Political Consultative Conference
in January 2008 and was reappointed as a member of
11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province in January 2007. He
was also awarded as the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan
City and Honorable Citizen of Yixing City. He was also
the Honorary Vice-Chairman of Hang Seng Management
College — Foundation. Mr. Ho currently participates in
affairs of different associations, which include The Seventh
Former Dongguan Provincial CPPCC Members Association,
Hong Kong Metals Manufacturers Association, World
Dongguan Entrepreneurs, China Association of Enterprises
with Foreign Investment, Dongguan City Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Dongguan
City Fenggang Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment, Overseas Friendship Association of Dongguan,
Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community
Organisations, Dongguan Wedding Trade Association,
Jiangsu Yixing Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment, World Ho's Business Association Limited,
Guangdong Overseas Chinese Enterprises Association,
Hong Kong Fenggang (Dongguan) Natives Association
Limited, The Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporter’s
Association, Shen Zhen General Chamber of Commerce
and Dongguan Foundation for the Disabled.

Ms. CHAN Ming Mui, Silvia, aged 45, was appointed
as an executive Director in November 2010, and is the
General Manager — Human Resources and Administration
of the Group and responsible for the overall operation of
human resources, administration and IT department of the
Group. Ms. Chan is one of the members of the Executive
Committee and Internal Audit Committee of the Group.
She is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
Ms. Chan graduated from The City University of Hong
Kong majoring in Public Administration and Management.
She joined the Group in 1996 and has over 18 years’
experience in administration and management.
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Mr. ZHAO Kai, aged 42, was appointed as a Director of
the Company in November 2012. He has been appointed
as the General Manager and the Convener of Executive
Committee in Manufacturing Sector of the Group
with effect from 1 April 2013, responsible for overall
manufacturing management and operation of the Group.
Mr. Zhao graduated from Xihua University (formerly
known as Sichuan Institute of Technology) in the PRC with
a Bachelor Degree in Foundry Engineering. He had 15
years’ experience in metal plastic, mould engineering and
project management and more than 10 years’ experience
in production management and operation. Mr. Zhao joined
the Group in December 2011.

Mr. CHAN Raymond, aged 50, was appointed as an
executive Director in June 2016. He is also the Marketing
Executive General Manager and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Group, responsible for the Group’s
marketing and business development. He is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He joined the
Group in 1985 and has over 25 years’ experience in sales
and marketing.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Cheuk Ming, aged 63, was re-designated as
a non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the
Company with effect from 1 May 2011. He is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho
was appointed as an executive Director of the Company
from October 1996 to 31 May 2007, and was a Deputy
Chairman and Chief Operation Officer as well as the
Convener of the Executive Committee of the Group. He
was re-designated as a non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1 June 2007. He is responsible
for the overall supervision of the Group’s operation
business. He joined the Group in 1980 and has over 20
years' experience in factory production. He is also the
brother of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive
Directors, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, the brother-in-law of Ms. Ho Po Chu, who is
a member of the management team and father of Mr. Ho
Kai Man (one of the non-executive directors).
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Mr. HO Kai Man, aged 36, was appointed as an executive
Director from 12 July 2012 to 31 October 2012 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director in November
2012. He joined the Group in November 2005. He has
been appointed as the Assistant General Manager,
Corporate Planning and Executive Committee member and
was responsible for handling internal and external business
and political contact, establishing of communication
platform, promoting energy-saving, environment
protection and cleaner production etc and maintaining
the Group's sustainability. He is also the director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ho graduated from
Auckland University of Technology majoring in Computer
Science. He had engaged in the works of various
departments of the Group so that he has familiarized
himself with the business operation of the Group. He is
the nephew of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and is the son of Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming, a non-executive director & deputy chairman
of the Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SO Wai Chun, aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2001. Mr. So has been doing business in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China for over 20 years. His
businesses are mainly specialized in financial services and
international trading. In 2000, Mr. So was appointed as
the China Representative of Forestry New Zealand Limited,
which is a subsidiary of Evergreen Forestry Limited listed in
New Zealand.

Mr. FONG Hoi Shing, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in December 2004.
He has extensive experience in accounting, finance and
management. He holds a master degree in professional
accounting, a postgraduate diploma in corporate
administration and a higher diploma in accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an Associate of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Mr. YAM Chung Shing, aged 57, is a President of
Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment, the Honorable Citizen of Dongguan, Standing
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Dongguan City and an Executive Vice
President and Secretary of Association of the Hong Kong
Members of Dongguan’s (Hong Kong & Macau) Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference Committee.
He has invested and developed several projects. He has
extensive experience in business management and project
investment.

MANAGEMENT

Ms. HO Po Chu, aged 68, is the Director of
Administration of the Group. She is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Ho is one of the
founding members of the Group in 1980. She is mainly
responsible for supervising human resources and overall
administration of the Group. She is also the wife of Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai, who is one of the executive Directors, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and sister-in-law of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming, who is a non-
executive Director and Deputy Chairman.

Mr. CHOI Wai Hin, Henry, aged 37, joined the Group
in August 2014 and has been appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer responsible for overseeing the Group's
finance, accounting and investor relations functions. He is
also a member of the Executive Committee of the Group.
Mr. Choi graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor degree in accountancy. He is
a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in KPMG for more than ten years. He has extensive
experience in auditing, accounting, financial management
and has been involved in a number of initial public offering
transactions and capital market transactions.

Mr. LO Wai Kit, aged 47, is the General Manager —
Marketing of the Group and a member of the Executive
Committee of the Group, responsible for the Group's
business development and product management. Mr. Lo
graduated from The Hong Kong Baptist University with a
Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in Sociology. Prior to joining the
Group in 2001, he had over 15 years' experience in Sales
& Marketing.
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Mr. CHAN Wah Ying, aged 52, is the General
Manager — System Integration and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Group. Mr. Chan graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a higher certificate
in Manufacturing Engineering. Prior to joining the Group
in 1992, Mr. Chan had over 13 years’ experience in quality
management in an electronic manufacturing company.

Ms. YIU Yuet Fung, aged 52, is the General Manager of
Human Resources and Administration in the PRC service
business and a member of the Executive Committee
in service business of the Group, responsible for the
overall personnel and administration management in
the PRC service business. She joined the Group in 1984
and has over 18 years' experience in managing the
production process of manufacturing industries and 11
years' experience in overall personnel and administration
management.

Ms. LAM Po Ling, Regan, aged 54, the Assistant General
Manager of Supply Chain Management of the Group,
is responsible for the overall operation of the Group's
supply chain management. Ms. Lam graduated from The
University of Strathclyde, United Kingdom with a degree in
Master of Science in Procurement Management. She is a
member of The Chartered Institute of Purchasing & Supply,
United Kingdom (MCIPS). Ms. Lam joined the Group
since 1990. She has over 30 years’ working experience in
Purchasing, Procurement and Supply Chain Management.

Mr. HO Man Chung, Philip, aged 60, the General
Manager of Dongguan Karrie Properties Development
Company Limited ( REREFHEREZEBRQ
7)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is
responsible for the coordination and planning of real
estate business for the Group. Mr. Ho joined the Group
in 2011. He had engaged in service business for more
than 15 years and has over 20 years' experience in project
planning, operation and management of hotel and
property development. He is expertise in various projects
development and management, especially in property
development project.
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Report of the Directors

EFREHS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board has the pleasure of presenting the report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in

= Metal and Plastic ("M&P") Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products, including
server casings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and
predominately self-brand household products;

= Electronic Manufacturing Services ("EMS”) Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data
storage, point-of-sale (“POS") system, medical
products, office automation products and other
computer peripherals;

- Consumer and Services Business: building of
“Fullhouse World” Brand, provision of relevant
services, such as catering services and sales of
themed gifts; and

= Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real
estate project investment, property leasing and
development.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business and an analysis using financial key performance
indicators, can be found in Chairman’s Statement on
pages 19 to 51 and in Report of the Directors in pages
112 to 145, Financial Highlights on pages 16 to 18 and
Sustainability Report on pages 52 to 80 of this Annual
Report.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and its compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group is
contained in Sustainability Report on pages 52 to 80 and
Corporate Governance Report on pages 81 to 105 of this
Annual Report.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (Cont'd)

The Group's turnover by principal product business
segment and geographical locations for the Year are set
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of
HK4.2 cents (2015/16 final dividend: HK2.75 cents per
share) per share and special dividend of HK1 cent per share
(2015/16: nil) to commemorate the 20th anniversary of
listing of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 1 September
2017. Together with the interim dividend of HK1.3
cents per share, total dividend paid/payable for this year
amounted to HK6.5 cents (2015/16: HK3.5 cents) per
share. The final dividend will be subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the "AGM") of the Company to
be held on 25 August 2017.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 159 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group and of the Company during the Year are set
out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company's reserves
of approximately HK$379,172,000 mainly representing the
contributed surplus and retained earnings were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Year amounted to HK$271,000.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Due to the fact that the share price of the Company is
unable to fully reflect its intrinsic value, the Company
repurchased 968,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange
during the Year at an aggregate consideration paid
of HK$875,000 and these Shares were subsequently
cancelled by the Company. Details of these transactions
are as follows:

Month/year
/R

March 2017
—E—+F=HA

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not redeemed
any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company's shares during the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Embracing its motto “KARRIE ON PERPETUAL MOTION,
BENEFITS SERVED TO THE PUBLIC”, the Group has been
active in giving back to the society and environmental
protection. It is of paramount importance to have effective
communication and understanding between the Group
and its stakeholders including shareholders, partners,
employees, suppliers, regulators and the public in coming
up with benchmarks and regarding key issues.

Details of the Environmental Policies and Performance are

set out in the section headed “Sustainability Report” on
pages 52 to 80 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance
with regulatory requirements and the risk of non-
compliance with such requirements. The Group has been
implementing system and allocating staff resources to
ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the mainland
China while the Company itself was incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Our establishment and
operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, Bermuda and the PRC.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated
and it regularly reviews and improves its policies on
remuneration and benefits, training, occupational health
and safety.

The Group maintains good relationship with its customers.
A customer complaint handling mechanism is in place
to receive, analyse and study complaints and make
recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and
conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group adopts an integrated top-down and bottom-
up approach in identifying risks and thereby conducts risk
analysis and assessment to identify the sources, categories
and indicators of risks. The followings are the key part of
the risks and uncertainties identified by the Group:

(1) Finance:
The Group’s investment in financial instruments are subject

to various risks (such as market risks) and it may result in
losses and affect the cash flow of the Group.

Report of the Directors

EFREHS

B AERER
AEERAMTEERCNEEURERZS
HE # L ﬁ%liﬁ&k%ﬁ&A%ﬁﬁ

R -BEETHRRMER-

AEENEETEZERARANVARABEERPRER
HMHHBARET MARAARFIRNBERE
WA ERH W RBEBBRMER LM E
o BPIR NEEABETES BRELT
BAHHEEEEREZR AEECETFEMN
AR RIER -

HES BEERHUERz2BE

AEBEBRETHAEIAERE W E HR
MEsE HFMEHN FJ BEXRBREEZ 2RI
ﬁﬁo

AEBEBEHEEARS AKEDHETPRF
BRIEBHE WE DT RHARRFEMRIBE X
EBR UTEIREREEER-

AEEEEEHBERRT TE
FREBEBEZ-

TERBRIRERE

AEBERHABE LM FRA M ENESR T AR
BRI B - (T AE 1T R B 0 AT B Y E - PAFE R
RARR - BRI R R E S NREEEER T
JIXTRRABRNME T EERE:

HEEEETA

1 5
$$@?§§M$@IEE¥TR$ B (a5

) HBEKEBEX UERTEEERER
ji% ,Z:m Z<<< A)\ /-\b o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 4 #

115



116

Report of the Directors

EFREHS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Cont’d)

(1) Finance: (Cont’d)

In managing the respective risks, the Group formulated
the following counter-measures for the corresponding
principal risks:

o all financial instrument contracts are subject to
discussion by senior management, and submit for
approval by the board of directors;

o financial instrument contracts that are purchased
through banks are subject to the account
authorized signatory designated by the Company
before becoming valid;

° strengthen the training on senior management on
risk control and knowledge regarding investment
management through the internal and external
resources of the Group; and

o develop assessment mechanism for financial
derivatives, and conduct risk assessment by
qualified persons.

2) Operation:
(i) High concentration of businesses and clients

The customers of the Group are mainly concentrated in
global leading technology corporations. The Group may
be unable to attract new customers if no new product has
been developed. The concentration of customers and/or
the concentration of geographical location that exceeds
an acceptable level may increase the business risk and may
reduce the market share of the Group. The Group may
also be exposed to the risk of significant reduction in profit
in case a few important clients are lost.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Cont’d)

2) Operation: (Cont'd)
(i) IT Strategy

Owing to the complications of the business process of the
Group, more time is needed for testing for the customized
reform of the system. Lack of sufficient and effective
testing on the new IT system may lead to a failure in
coordinating with the operation process of the Group, and
thus affect its operation effectiveness. The IT system may
not be able to update timely and effectively to adapt to
the changes of the operation process of the Group.

The Group has already adopted the following
corresponding measures to mitigate operational risks:

(i) High concentration of businesses and clients

o develop new clients through multi-channel and
optimize designs, as well as develop new products;
and

o expand to other sectors (such as service industry

and real estate industry) for business diversification
of the Group to broaden the income stream.

(i) IT Strategy

o the Group engaged a professional consulting
company at the preliminary stage of system
development and upgrading, and had formulated a
detailed scheme; and

o Before and after the upgrading and during the
whole process, the IT department focused on
targeted training of every related department,
collected and handled problems found during the
actual operating process one after another, and
at the same time, feedback the problems to the
consulting company in solving them systematically.

Report of the Directors

EFREHS

FERBRIEERER &)

2 2E:(E)
(i)  BIBBERER

AREEXHREZNEME 2 RFETEH
HiE HEREEROAE  FEARMKRERE
TARERIBHLRBRA D HEEHEKRE
HEBEERERBA FEKEEFRX-&
AR R BT FT R A8 R B E R T LA FE S
BIERENRE -

AEECDRE T RS AR E S ER R

() EBEREFPEHREBSITH

. fZzTEMNEERRFINERIELR
A YRBFNER: X

. MEMERBER (WRBELELE)
EAREEZEKZ T BEBWARIR -

(i)  BRBXRETE

. AEBERRABRLARAMY BETE
EWEM AR L EFANGTE K

. EFRRE ARBEBRESR  EAMK
HREDE B % fIE B B O PI v St SR B A
LHERETBREPERNEBRETRSE
V——RE RAKHEEHEREZEER QA
R U BRIR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 4 #

117



Report of the Directors

EFREHS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Cont’d)

(3)  Business Diversity:

The Group endeavors for business diversity. However, it
may encounter the risks of insufficient relevant operational
experience in the new business during the process of
business diversity. Moreover, the competition of new
business could be intense, the inability to break-in, failure
to achieve the income target or market popularity rate in
market of new business, and underestimate the impact
of business costs may adversely affect sustainability and
profitability of new business.

The Group has already adopted the following
corresponding measures to alleviate the risks brought by
new business:

o conduct preliminary research and feasibility test on
newly developed business, and at the same time,
put a cap of the fund invested for new business.

o engage management teams with professional
knowledge and experience, such as project
manager, engineer and financial team.

o re-assess the new business of the Group
comprehensively, for business with poor market
prospects, contract the business gradually or re-
adjust its operation concept and direction.

o strengthen employees training in meeting the
requirements and operation mode of new business,
shorten its run-in period so as to bring profits to the
Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 24 August 2012
(the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option
Scheme are summarized as below:

M (@

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions which the
eligible participants (as defined in the Share
Option Scheme) have made or will make to
the Group or invested entity.

The Share Option Scheme will provide the
eligible participants with an opportunity to
have a personal stake in the Company with
a view to motivating the eligible participants
to utilise their performance and efficiency for
the benefit of the Group or invested entity;
and attracting and retaining or otherwise
maintaining an ongoing relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions are
or will be beneficial to the long term growth
of the Group or invested entity.

(ii) The Board may at its discretion grant options to:

(a)

any director (whether executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive
director), employee (whether full time or
part time employee), consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, joint venture partner
or advisers of or contractor to the Group or
invested entity; and

any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director (whether
executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive director), employee (whether
full time or part time employee), consultant,
customer, supplier, agent, partner, joint
venture partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or invested entity.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

(iii)

(vi)

The total number of shares that may be issued by
the Company if all options granted under the Share
Option Scheme have been exercised is 42,200,000,
which represents approximately 2.11% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this annual report.

The overall limit on the number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes for the time being of the Company shall
not, in aggregate, exceed such number of Shares
equaling to 30% of the Shares in issue from time
to time. No option may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option scheme
of the Company if it will result in the above-
mentioned 30% limit being exceeded.

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the
Shareholders (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"),
unless Shareholders’ approval has been obtained.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

(@) Unless approved by Shareholders in a general
meeting, no option may be granted to any
eligible participant which, if exercised in full,
would result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted or to be granted to
such eligible participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the
date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of such new
grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(b)

Any grant of options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company or its subsidiaries or any of
their respective associates under the Share
Option Scheme must be subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is a grantee of the
relevant options).

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any
of their respective associates would result
in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and
to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in
the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant:

(1) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the Shares in issue, and

(2) having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5,000,000.

then such further grant must be subject to
the approval by Shareholders at a general
meeting taken on a poll.

The period within which the options must be
exercised will be specified by the Company at the
time of grant, but shall expire no later than 10 years
from the relevant date of grant.

At the time of grant of the options, the Company
may specify any minimum period(s) for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. The
Share Option Scheme does not contain any such
minimum period.

Report of the Directors

EFREHS

BRESE (&)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(b) RIBFBREEIRAR A K EH B
NEIER FETHABHFTER
BRI AEESA2HBEALEL
] B8 AR - ﬂﬁ%ﬁ Gk VS
WITEE (EEWE AEHERE
CEBRAZBIENITEERIN)
EhRBL

(0 fEARAEZHRRIBILIFAT

EEFEARFEEIHMEALER
HEBRE BEHE TR RE

TERBERBRROZERER
Hi b+ — (@ A HifE A B\ & %
ATBREHNE2HERE (BEETT
150~ RESH K e R AT 150 O R AR A ) B
BIT 2B

(1) AHEEBTRHE0.1% :
&

2) REBROKRERGLAHD
bkmEFENEERSB
5,000,000/ 7T

AIRZE — T RO B IR R R R A
BRERRTAAE-

AR R 1 E AT B AE 2 5
B EEAEABRGLBEREF BB TF
JeE 7 o

REHBRER  ARRAEEBRER
TTEERT LA A R &G HR - BAE
5t 8130 51 B (E ] A 2 HATR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 4 #

121



122

Report of the Directors

EFREHS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

(ix)

At the time of the grant of the options, the
Company may specify any performance target(s)
which must be achieved before the options can
be exercised. The Share Option Scheme does not
contain any performance targets.

A non-refundable remittance of HK$10 by way of
consideration for the grant of an option is required
to be paid by each grantee upon acceptance of the
opinion.

Subject to adjustments made in a situation
contemplated under the Share Option Scheme, the
subscription price in respect of any option shall be
at the discretion of the Board, provided that it shall
not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of a share as shown in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant (which must be a
business day) in respect of such option;

(b)  the average of the closing prices of the
shares as shown in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the relevant date
of grant in respect of such option; and

(c) the nominal value of a share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
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BRETE (&

(xiiy  Details of share option movements during the Year (xii) WEBEBEBREFSNAFEZEREZSH
under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: BT
Number
Number Number Number  of options Number
of options  of options  of options lapsed/  of options
Exercise Closing Price Priceat outstanding granted  exercised  cancelled outstanding
Date of Price  Exercise before date exercise date  at 1 April during during during  at 31 March
Name Grant per share  Period of grant  of options 2016 the year the year the year 2017
ZE-RE ZE-tE
NERE RERE DRA-A WAFE  REFE  WAEE ZA=+-A
5k RHARZ €Az MEAOE BRT i RM/BE MROE
#E RUEBH TEER GRS B Bk BRERE BREHE BREBE BREXE BRERE
(HK$) (HK$) (HKS) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(%7) (%7) (%7) () (F) () () ()
(i) Directors/Chief Executives
EEREETMAR
Mr. Zhao Kai 11/08/2014 0419 01/08/2015-10/08/2024 0.420 - 5,000 - - - 5,000
faklbiki 11/08/2014 0.419  01/08/2017-10/08/2024 0.420 - 5,000 - - S 5,000
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia 271012016 0.70  01/07/2017-26/10/2026 0.69 - - 1,500 - - 1,500
B4 5/ ME 271012016 0.70  01/07/2018-26/10/2026 0.69 - - 1,500 - - 1,500
27/1012016 0.70  01/07/2019-26/10/2026 0.69 = = 2,000 - - 2,000
Mr. Chan Raymond 271012016 0.70  01/07/2017-26/10/2026 0.69 - - 1,500 - - 1,500
REXELE 2711012016 070 01/07/2018-26/10/2026 0.69 - - 1,500 - - 1,500
271012016 0.70  01/07/2019-26/10/2026 0.69 - - 2,000 - - 2,000
Mr. Yam Chung Shing 27/1012016 0.70  01/07/2017-26/10/2026 0.69 = = 150 - - 150
FERLE 271012016 0.70  01/07/2018-26/10/2026 0.69 - - 150 - - 150
271012016 0.70  01/07/2019-26/10/2026 0.69 - - 200 - - 200
(i)~ Other eligible participants
Etha AR EE
Employees 11/08/2014 0.419  01/08/2015-10/08/2024 0.420 - 4,000 - - - 4,000
135 11/08/2014 0.419  01/08/2017-10/08/2024 0.420 - 4,000 - - - 4,000
27/1012016 0.70  01/07/2017-26/10/2026 0.69 = = 4,260 - (150) 4,110
271012016 0.70  01/07/2018-26/10/2026 0.69 - - 4,260 - (150) 4,110
271012016 0.70  01/07/2019-26/10/2026 0.69 - - 5,680 S (200) 5,480

A professional actuarial firm has been engaged in the year
of 2014/15 and 2016/17to perform valuation of the share
options granted under the share option scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

According to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
2 ("HKFRS2"), the fair value of the share option on
the date grant should be amortised in profit or loss as
expenses over the period from the date of grant until they

BRESTE ()
REFEFBRELNE -5 ([FEYBHHRE
ER2))  BEREREE AN A TERREH

MEZHANEE (AREAEERATITER
P 1 ) ﬁ%&%itﬂ?ﬁé%¥ﬂl§)§¢mﬁ$ ERAR-F

are exercisable by the grantee. The expense required to be —+tFMNA-—BEZZ-_FTEF=-A=+—8BK
reported for share options granted from 1 April 2017 to HE BRI E AN HEFT BT
31 March 2020 would be estimated as follows:
Financial Year
BREE
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total
(Actual) (Actual) (Actual)  (Estimated)  (Estimated)  (Estimated) @zt
(%) (BR) (BR) (fh3F) (f&&) (fh3t)

P&L expenses (HK$'000)
Bk (FET) 1,267 1,020 2,561 2,908 1213 235 9,204
Employee share option expenses charged to the REEEaPHIR 2 EERREEZERAIIREIAN

consolidated profit or loss are determined with the
trinomial model valuation model based on the following
assumptions:
(1) The share options were granted on 11 August
2014:

Date of valuation 11 August 2014

Date of grant 11 August 2014

Fair value HK$0.176 —

HK$0.194
Market price at date of grant HK$0.405
Exercisable price HK$0.419
Risk-free interest rate 1.97%
Life of options 10 years
Expected Volatility (120 months) 52.84%
Expected Dividend yield 2.47%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

(2) The share options were granted on 27 October
2016:
Date of valuation 27 October 2016

Date of grant 27 October 2016

Fair value HK$0.239 — HK$0.271
Market price at date of grant HK$0.70
Exercisable price HK$0.70
Risk-free interest rate 1.00%
Life of options 10 years
Expected Volatility (120 months) 51.27%
Expected Dividend yield 5.00%

Note:  The vesting of the share options is subject to the performance
of the Group.

There are several relevant measures that may be
considered to assess the financial impact of the share
option schemes, including the expense of share-based
transactions under generally accepted financial reporting
standards (e.g., HKFRS2). The expense of the share-based
transactions is attributed over the period from the original
transaction date (i.e., grant date) to the date when the
recipient’s entitlement to the payment has been fully
realized (i.e., vested).

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility,
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information. Change in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

The result of the trinomial model can be materially
affected by changes in these assumptions so an option’s
actual value may differ from the estimated fair value of the
options due to limitations of the trinomial model.
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Report of the Directors

EFREHS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

In assessing the value of the share options granted during
the Year and the expense of share-based transactions
under HKFRS2 requirement, the trinomial option pricing
model has been used. The trinomial model is one of the
generally most accepted methods used to calculate the
value of options and expense of share-based transactions.

The parameters of the trinomial model include the risk free
rate, dividend yield, exit rate and trigger price multiple. The
risk free rate has made reference to the yield of exchange
fund notes as at the grant date. The dividend yield makes
reference to the dividend history and it is assumed that the
grantee will exercise the option in accordance with their
sub-optimal exercise policy.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 276 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Bye-law provides that the Directors shall
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
any actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
as a result of any act or failure to act in carrying out their
functions.

The Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability

insurance cover in respect of legal action against the
Directors during the year.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig 7 R 2 7]
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SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Particulars of bank loans and overdrafts of the Group as at
31 March 2017 are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

Mr. Zhao Kai

Mr. Chan Raymond (appointed on 1 June 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Ho Kai Man

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. So Wai Chun
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing
Mr. Yam Chung Shing

Mr. So Wai Chun, and Mr. Yam Chung Shing entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of
one year with effect from 1 July 2017 and 1 November
2016 respectively; Mr. Fong Hoi Shing entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of half
year with effect from 7 June 2017 subject to extension
by mutual agreement and retirement by rotation and
reelection at the annual general meeting of the Company
as and when required under the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company's Bye-laws
and paragraph A.4.2. of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Ming, Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia and Mr. Ho Kai
Man will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All such Directors, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.
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EFREHS

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the below section headed
“"CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”, no contracts of
significance to which any of the Group companies was a
party and in which a Director was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had the following
connected transactions, certain details of which had been
disclosed in compliance with the requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

(1) The New Cooperation Agreement:

For the Cooperation Agreement (the "Original
Agreement”) in relation to a PRC development project
("PRC Development Project”) entered into on 27 April
2015, the parties to the Original Agreement have all along
been negotiating to amend certain terms in the Original
Agreement. After taking into account of (i) the ever-
changing market conditions one year after the Original
Agreement was executed; and (ii) the completion of the
Original Agreement is still conditional upon the fulfillment
of certain conditions precedent, and in order to facilitate
the cooperation, the parties have agreed to terminate the
Original Agreement and enter into the New Cooperation
Agreement.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Cont'd)

(1) The New Cooperation Agreement: (Cont’d)

On 1 August 2016, the parties to the Original Agreement
entered into the Termination Agreement to terminate the
Original Agreement, and Massive Era Limited (”“Massive
Era”) (@ wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered
into the New Cooperation Agreement with Kar Info
International Property Limited (“Kar Info”), 52T 5218
BISEMABR A7 (the “Project Company”) and Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai in relation to the PRC Development Project to be
developed by the Project Company.

Pursuant to the New Cooperation Agreement, Massive
Era will invest HK$140,000,000 in consideration of being
entitled to a 50% of the profit to be earned from the
PRC Development Project upon the completion of the
PRC Development Project and expiry of the term of the
cooperation. The PRC Development Project will develop
a piece of land in Fenggang, Dongguan, with an area of
approximately 32,000 square meters, into a residential
project with a floor area of over 60,000 square meters.
The New Cooperation Agreement has completed its
transaction in October 2016, the details of which can be
referred to the circular of the Company published on 14
September 2016.

As Massive Era is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and as Kar Info is a wholly owned subsidiary of
a company controlled by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, a controlling
shareholder and executive Director (Chairman of the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer) of the Company.
The transaction contemplated under the Cooperation
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
and is subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Contd)
(2) Acquisition of 47 Units Properties

On 17 October 2016, HEM R B EEEGR QA (the
“Purchaser”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into 47 separate sale and purchase agreements
for each of the Properties with =Bl @& 5 i & 7 3
A ®] (the “Vendor”), pursuant to which the Purchaser
agreed to acquire the Properties from the Vendor at the
aggregate consideration of RMB36,834,200 (equivalent
to approximately HK$42,911,843). On the same date, the
Purchaser entered into the Framework Agreement with
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai (“Mr. Ho") and Dongguan Castfast Door
and Window Products Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Castfast”)
pursuant to which Mr. Ho and Dongguan Castfast agreed
to give certain representations and undertakings in
respect of the purchase and sale of the Properties. The
Properties with 47 service apartments situated at ®5¢
mEmEE A EL¥ERZESEBRR with an aggregate
floor area of approximately 3,683.42 square meters. The
said consideration is satisfied by cash through internal
resources.

Dongguan Castfast is a company established under the
laws of PRC which is beneficially owned as to 95% by
Castfast Properties Development Co., Limited (“Castfast
Properties”) and as to 5% by an Independent Third
Party. Castfast Properties is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong in which Mr. Ho, his family and Ms. Ho Po
Chu together own 97% interest. Mr. Ho is a Director,
the chairman of the Board, chief executive officer and
a substantial shareholder of the Company, whereas Ms.
Ho Po Chu is the spouse of Mr. Ho. The remaining 3%
interests in Castfast Properties are beneficially owned by an
Independent Third Party. As at the date of announcement
of the transaction, Castfast Properties directly holds
approximately 16.53% issued share capital of the
Company.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Jg % IR 2 7]

BERS (#)
(=) BAN+HEBmE

RZE—RNF+A+LtH RETREEES
BRARI(ER]) (ARAz2ENBRR)HE
REmBEEERZERAR(BEA])RNEME
YN+ +EBYIEERZ BUHEFREM
BEhWEYE BRERARY36,834,200T
(FHERH4L42,911,8438 L) B H B LA
IR E ([MAE]) RREEBMERAER
AR ([REB )l TIERDH Bt L
rEREZEREREEMEENS T B R
FoRMEMRREMBEEARIEREESR
EREAMN+HEBEERAAE BEEARBNA
3,683.42F K FHliREEFURBEREE L
1o

RxmBEA HBEPREEN LM ARLA
EEEHNENRERAR ([EBEEHE]) h—
EBIE=ZF DR BEREBIS%N5% R EE
WEA—BRESEMALAORA  [ELE &
RERABHRLZTAEEBEEZLARIT %L -
AIAERBARRTNES ESTSFRE THER
REZERR MAUBKRZLTARAEENRB =
EEMERMINIESZH BB IYE = EEH
E-RNXSAHEH ZERMWEEESEAR
AIEBITRAMNL16.53% o



CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Contd)
(2) Acquisition of 47 Units Properties (Cont’d)

The Properties were developed under a joint venture
development between the Vendor and Dongguan Castfast
pursuant to a co-operation agreement under which the
Vendor acquired the land use right in respect of the
land on which the Properties were developed, the cost
of which was funded by Dongguan Castfast. Pursuant
to the said co-operation agreement, Dongguan Castfast
is responsible for all the costs and expenses incurred in
connection with the development of the Properties, and
has the right and power to decide on the development,
sale and management of the Properties. The co-operation
agreement also provides that revenue derived from the
sale of the Properties will belong to Dongguan Castfast
and that Dongguan Castfast shall pay to the Vendor a
fixed amount per square meter for the Properties sold by
Dongguan Castfast.

In view of the circumstances set out above, although
each of the shareholders and ultimate beneficial owners
of the Vendor is an Independent Third Party, the Board
takes the view that the Acquisition should be deemed
as a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. As the highest applicable percentage ratio
as defined under the Listing Rules in respect of the
Acquisition exceeds 0.1% but is lower than 5%, the
Acquisition are subject to reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but
are exempt from independent shareholders’ approval
requirement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S

INTERESTS IN SHARES
As at 31 March 2017

The interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company and any associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO;
or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) were as

follows:

(A)  Interests in the Company

EERBETBRAEZROER
R=B-—tF=A=+—~H

ARABEERESTRABEARAR R RERM
HEEE (BER (BEMAEERD) ([ (EFH
By 1) EXVER) BB n M AR RBE B 10 HE A 1)
BRELAR MZEERLAR QRE (BFE
1) F32GATHF 2 ERMALEE © H(b)
TEAALTRRESFTETESFRZNFESTR])
(I GRESRD) NBRARBANBEEBERS
PRERAR ([BEAT]) T

(F) RALRBZ ¥z

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

SREEIBIZEERYA
Personal Family Corporate/ Total % of issued
interests interests  Other interests interests share capital
EEERD
BAARZE FEER HitE R K $ BREAL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai EBELE 278,712,000 110,350,000 1,077,608,000 1,466,670,000 73.47
(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(BzE—) (BzE—) (M=)
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming A=HEE 24,208,000 - 817,608,000 841,816,000 42.17
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(BzE=) (M=)
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia R4 /) ME 6,000,000 = = 6,000,000 0.30
(Note 4)
(BzEm)
Mr. Zhao Kai WA 12,300,000 12,300,000 0.62
(Note 5)
(P3ER)
Mr. Chan Raymond BRE L E 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.25
(Note 6)
(BtzER)
Mr. Yam Chung Shing EEHNLE 500,000 500,000 0.03
(Note 7)
(MeEt)
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing BB E 4,000 = s 4,000 0.00
Ms. Ho Po Chu EEY N 110,350,000 538,712,000 817,608,000 1,466,670,000 73.47
(Note 8) (Note 8) (Note 2)
(FtaE ) CGEDY! (HizE=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

As at 31 March 2017 (Cont’d)

A)

Notes:

Interests in the Company (Cont’d)

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai’s personal interest consists of 278,712,000
Shares. He is deemed to be interested in 110,350,000 Shares
held by his spouse, Ms. Ho Po Chu, as beneficial owner.

The 1,077,608,000 Shares comprised (i) 487,608,000 Shares
held by New Sense Enterprises Limited (“New Sense”); and (ii)
330,000,000 Shares held by Castfast Properties Development
Co., Limited ("Castfast Properties”), 87% of the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Honford Investments
Limited (“Honford Investments”). New Sense and Honford
Investments are each wholly-owned by TMF (BVI) Limited
("TMF") as trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family
Trust, and (iii) 260,000,000 Shares held by The Wedding
City Co., Limited (“The Wedding City”), 90% and 10% of
the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu, respectively. Mr. Ho
Cheuk Fai is deemed to be interested in the 817,608,000
Shares in (i) and (ii) as founder of The Ho Family Trust and in
260,000,000 Shares in (iii) through The Wedding City. Ms. Ho
Po Chu and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the discretionary objects
of The Ho Family Trust and are thus deemed to be interested
in the 817,608,000 Shares held under The Ho Family Trust.
Therefore, the interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu
and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming in the 817,608,000 Shares duplicate
with each other.

The personal interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming comprise
24,208,000 Shares.

The personal interests of Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia comprise
1,000,000 Shares and 5,000,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Zhao Kai comprise 2,300,000
Shares and 10,000,000 outstanding share options.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

As at 31 March 2017 (Cont’d)

A)

(B)

(i)

Interests in the Company (Cont’d)

The personal interests of Mr. Chan Raymond comprise
5,000,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Mr. Yam Chung Shing comprise
500,000 outstanding share options.

The personal interests of Ms. Ho Po Chu comprise
110,350,000 Shares. Ms. Ho Po Chu is also deemed to be
interested in (a) 278,712,000 Shares held and 260,000,000
Shares deemed to be held by her spouse, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai,
and (b) 817,608,000 Shares referred to in Note 2 above.

On 30 March 2017 and 31 March 2017, the Company

repurchased 516,000 Shares and 452,000 Shares respectively,
which were cancelled on 26 April 2017.

Interests and short positions in associated
corporations

Karrie Industrial Company Limited (“KICL")

EERRSTRAEBZROER (&)

R=-TB—tE=A=+—H (&)
() RARGZ#Ez (&)

N BB A Z B AR 5,000,000 R TT{E 2 B
TEARRK

t EEBELEZEAREZHS500,0000H ARITHEZ BAE
EED

N AEHREZ T ZEA#ZH110,350,0008% B2 15 485X -
AERLTWERFEQELEBAEELEERE
HHB AEH 2278,712,0008% B 5 }260,000,000
B A% 1%+ F2(b)817,608,0000% i {5 7 #E &5 - AR A (A
ERL T (M) EE 2R

he RZIZE—+FEZAZ+AR_ZE—tF=ZA=1+—
A A2 F %5 B E EE516,0000% B 1 K452,0000% i%
B YR —_F—+FMA -+ B

(Z2) RIGEZEZ #am RAE

() BANERER2A(EME®R])

Number of non-voting deferred shares

EREERELRNOHUE
Personal Family Corporate/ Total % of issued Short % of issued
interests interests  Other interests interests share capital Positions share capital
EEERD

BA%S REES Hip s Rt ER BRAAL ) BREAL

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 43,000 43,000 43,000 43,000 85.98% 43,000 85.98%
EEEE (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(M3E—) (M —) (M=) (M—) (M=)

Ms. Ho Po Chu 7,000 7,000 7,000 7,000 13.99% 7,000 13.99%
CEV T (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(MzE—) (Bzt—) (M=) (Bzr—) (M3E=)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

As at 31 March 2017 (Cont’d)

(B) Interests and short positions in associated
corporations (Cont’d)

(i) Karpo Technologies Limited (“KTL")
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EERRSTRAEBZROER (&)

i

—E—-t+tHF=A=+—R(#&)

(Z) RIGEBZEZ e RAE (B)

(ii)

REMRERAF ([RERR])

Number of non-voting deferred shares

BEREBELRNHA
Personal Family Corporate/ Total % of issued Short % of issued
interests interests  Other interests interests share capital Positions share capital
EERRD

fBARE Eq- 7 4 Hipg s R ER BRAAL iy BREAL

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 99.90% 10,000 99.90%
B (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 3) (Note 1) (Note 3)
(BizE—) (B3E—) (H3E=) (BzE—) (HzE=)

(i) Karrie Properties Management Limited (formerly
known as Karrie Investment Holdings Limited)

(i) BAFHEETEBRQR (FIBEMNKEER

BERAR) ([RHER])

("KPML")
Number of non-voting deferred shares
ERZRELRAEA
Personal Family Corporate/ Total % of issued Short % of issued
interests interests  Other interests interests share capital Positions share capital
EEERD
AR FEEL HibER AitER BRESL ) BREAL
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
fEBLE (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(=) (HzE—) (HzEm) (BzE—) (PzEm)
Ms. Ho Po Chu 1 1 1 1 8.33% 1 8.33%
CEt3 s (Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 4) (Note 1) (Note 4)
(M=) (HzE—) (Hzrm) (BzE—) (MEEm)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S
INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont'd)

As at 31 March 2017 (Cont’d)

(B)

Notes:

Interests and short positions in associated
corporations (Cont’d)

Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited (“KIBVI"), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, has been granted options
to acquire from Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu their
non-voting deferred shares in each of KICL, KTL and KPML.
Accordingly, KIBVI is taken to be interested in these non-
voting deferred shares in respect of which Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai
and Ms. Ho Po Chu have each created short positions. In
addition, by virtue of (i) their interests in the Company; and
(i) the interests as referred to in Notes 1, 2 and 8 under the
section headed “(A) Interests in the Company” above, Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are each deemed to be
interested in the long positions that KIBVI has in these non-
voting deferred shares. Such interests are duplicated with
their personal interests in these nonvoting deferred shares.

The entire issued share capital of KICL comprises 50,000 non-
voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary shares.

The entire issued share capital of KTL comprises 10,000 non-
voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary shares.

The entire issued share capital of KPML comprises 2 non-
voting deferred shares and 10 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any associated corporations which
were (a) recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Jg % IR 2 7]

EERBRSTRAEBZROER (#)

R=-ZTB—tE=A=+—H (&)

(Z) RIGBZEZ e RAE (B)

S

- Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited ([KIBVI|) » &2
R EE2EAMBAR EBRETRERERE M I
FEMAERZTIRENER RERNEREFNE
BRFENEREERELERS - AR IEE S ER
MERZTHEA LM TREENSAEERERA L
KB KBVIEREZEBIRERRIER D 2w B
HF ROESHBEARR 2R RR LM [ (F)
RARAB Z =] 2WF— ZRNAR - [AEEEE
MABKRZ T BB ABRKIBVIRZEBRERE
ERDFFISTEREE R ZEERRERA
RZEEREERERONEREE -

—  BEMEMBEITI B50,0008 2 R EEIREEK
7 R0 2 & BA A DA A -

FERREEITR H10,0000% 2 R RREE K
7 R10R 2 & BB AR -

M RAETECBTROMBZERZEEERG X
100% 2 & B AR AR 10 4B K °

R EXFEEN ARRAREZTNREITHRAR
WG AN R B KA FRIAREEE B &) - 1878
Btn BB 7 & e RS MR B MaxF s ok
B@RE EHFED) B352-BTHFZER
MATRE & E © S(b)R IR CIRESTRI) BAMAR A
Ko B 22 Ffy o



DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2017, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po
Chu were interested in certain companies established in
the PRC (the “Competing Companies”) which are or are
likely to, directly or indirectly, compete with the business
of the Group. Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu are
also the directors of these Competing Companies. Details
of the interests of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu in
the Competing Companies are as follows:
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EERHFERB 2ED

RZE—+tF=ZA=+—H AEBLERNE
KL mMREMR R B 2 A A sk A] fE 8 A
glii‘*%}ﬂzﬁﬁiﬁ?“%z A ([BFMH
NS - NEBEERMEBEKL L
Fﬁ_lﬂﬁma&lﬁ RIZEE o (218 o 4 R B Tk
RITRZERFURRZEEFBUOT:

Name of Date and place
Competing Company of establishment
BEMEAREM LA B K 3t B

Principal business

ITRER

Shareholdings
R

Dongguan Castfast

2 August 2001, the PRC

Property investment and

Castfast Properties: 95%

Door and Window
Products Co., Ltd.
(“Dongguan Castfast”)

REREMEHM® It
BROR(RERE]) NAZR +FH

Yixing Yongtai Electronic 25 March 2008, the PRC
Technology Co. Ltd.

("Yixing Yongtai”)

HIEKREFRIE —EENF
BROA ([E#KZ]) =AZ+aR $H

provision of property

management and

consultancy services

in the PRC
RPBEETHERER

REMEEEREARY

REFRME 5%

Property development Castfast Properties: 75%

in the PRC Dongguan Karrie Resort
Limited: 25%
R BUEI T R % RIBEFEME 75%

R MERIKR
BRAF:25%

REMmENAEKER 7 September 2000, the PRC  Property investment and Kar Info Property Limited:
BERAR ([RERAA]) development, manufacturing 100%
and sales of computer
related electronic devices
REmEAAEKEmR —EETF MERERFAE AR (BB)EZE
BRAR ([RxzAE]) NLAEH +FEH HEREEEN BHRAR:100%
RS TRE
As at 31 March 2017, Dongguan Castfast had developed RZE—+tF=ZA=+—H REZEEHZ

a residential and commercial property project located at
Dongguan, the PRC with a site area of approximately
48,600 sq.m. and a total gross floor area of approximately
233,700 sg.m..

*Jﬁu FEREZEEMAERAMEEBE 4
WHEEL A48,600F FK MAEEEREN A
233,700F ;5 %K -
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (cont’d)

As at 31 March 2017, Yixing Yongtai had developed a
commercial property project located in Yixing, Jiangsu, the
PRC. This project occupied a site area of approximately
107,340 sq.m. and comprised offices, staff quarters and
canteens.

As at 31 March 2017, BE3 5= sl cooperates with
Massive Era, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
to develop a residential and commercial property project
located in Dongguan, the PRC. This project occupied a site
area of approximately 32,000 sg.m. with a total gross floor
area of approximately 61,000 sg.m.

As at 31 March 2017, Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po
Chu were also interested in certain companies established
in the PRC which were engaged in the operation of a
wedding business. Details of these companies are as
follows:

BEENBREK ER (B

RITE—tF=A=+—RH HEKREHE—
BURNTPEIHEER 2 EHAYHIAR - %EE
EHEEX 107,340 F H K - Y HBFE 8
THEERERBK -

RZE—+tF=ZA=Z+—H ExxzaEH
Massive Era (AR BIZ2 BB R A) S 1EERE
—RURFPRERZEEEREAYE (hHhEEL
732,000 5K M 42 E EE &4 £61,000F
F Ko

RZF—tF=ZA=1+—"RH AREELEERFE
KL ETEPBERLEMIEFEDE
BZRAIPNEEELD ZFARZIFBNOT:

Name of Date and place

Competing Company of establishment Principal business Shareholdings

BEMARER AEf AR B OHA R 3t B ITEXE R R

Dongguan Fenggang Castfast 12 November 2009, Wedding services, related The Wedding City: 100%
Wedding City Co. Ltd. the PRC exhibitions and services
("Dongguan Wedding”)

REREZEEDH —ZTNEF 1B IR HERE KR 1B - 100%
BRAR ([R=ED]) +—A+=H +E

The Wedding City Co. Ltd.
("The Wedding City")

B AER AR
([E8m])

8 May 2009, Hong Kong

hANR - FE

Investment holding

“EENF %7

Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai: 90%
Ms. Ho Po Chu: 10%

e fal {18 5 A 1 90%

AIZE%LZL:10%

The power to make material business decisions for
the Group is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board
considers that there may be a conflict of interest between
the Group and any Director, such Director will be required
to abstain from voting. Therefore, the Board is capable of
carrying on the Group's business independently of, and at
arm’s length, from the business of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and
Ms. Ho Po Chu.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31 March 2017

The interests or short positions of the persons (other than
a Director or Chief Executive of the Company) in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO are as follows:
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EFERR

W=®—tF=A=+-FH

RFAL (FREEERARAZBBAIRA
) RARARN REWES T AEREEAA
AR GEHED) E336HFE2BRM2ER
RkR

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

BREEIEBTZEERYE
Personal Corporate/ Shareholding
Name of Shareholder interests  Other interests percentage
kA
e EPN: £ Hitb s FREDH
New Sense 487,608,000 - 24.43%

Castfast Properties 3z 1% 5= i &

The Wedding City %40 i

Honford Investments

(Note 1 BffzE—)

330,000,000 - 16.53%
(Note 2 FiizE=)

260,000,000 - 13.02%
(Note 3 MiizE=)

- 330,000,000 16.53%
(Note 2 FfizE—)

TMF - 817,608,000 40.96%
(Note 4 Fft5E1)

Notes: B 5

1. The entire issued share capital of New Sense was owned by —+  New SenseZ 22 BT T TMFLAE £ The Ho
TMF as trustee for The Ho Family Trust. Family Trusti¥ 4 °

2. 87% of the issued share capital of Castfast Properties is = RREEHMECDBITRAZ87%JIHHonford
beneficially owned by Honford Investments. The entire issued InvestmentsE z #i A ° Honford InvestmentsZ 2 &BE,
share capital of Honford Investments was owned by TMF ZEITIRATYHTMFE &2 2 #1275 The Ho Family Trust
as trustee for a discretionary trust, The Ho Family Trust. The 2ZZFAEEE ° Honford Investments 2 i 25 Ei 2 12 5=
interests of Honford Investments duplicate with those of the MEZERES-
Castfast Properties.

3. 260,000,000 Shares were beneficially held by The Wedding = 1540 ¥ B #5455 260,000,000/ B {7 « H B AT AA

City. 90% and 10% of the issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai and Ms. Ho Po Chu,
respectively. The interests of The Wedding City therefore
duplicate with those of Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai referred to in Note
2 to the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares — (A) Interests in the Company” above.

Z90% % 10% 0 Bl A/ B se 4 R A EIR L L B
BEA - Bt B 2 SR BMEERERIA L
[BEERESTRABRZBEOERZ - (F)RARQT
] M R E R

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 4 #

139



140

Report of the Directors

EFREHS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (cContd)
As at 31 March 2017 (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

4. TMF is deemed to be interested in these Shares held by New
Sense, Castfast Properties and Honford Investments by virtue
of acting as the trustee for The Ho Family Trust.

5. On 30 March 2017 and 31 March 2017, the Company
repurchased 516,000 Shares and 452,000 Shares, which
were cancelled on 26 April 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no
person, other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares”
above, had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO.

UPDATES ON DIRECTORS' INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Change of information of the Directors, which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules are set out below:

Name of Director

EEnR

Detail of Change
BEFE

i%&iﬁv
R-B—tF=A=+-8(4)

M (&)

M- TMF# 4R &L The Ho Family Trustz S 5EA & H R
New Sense * 3z & 5 b 2 [z Honford InvestmentsFT#§

RO AR
A RZE—+tF=ZA=+BER-_Z—+F=ZA=1+—

B ARR7F 5 FIE #E516,0000% A% 15 K% 452,0000% %
BN —FB—+FOAZ+RBEFH-

BREXREERGERITHRAEBRIEZRES
TRABZEMER ] PREN RZFT—LF
=A=1+t—B YEBALBEBEARRA 2N KE
Rk ERI AR MZFEAIASFR
iE (CEHED) FE336ATHFZELMATR

BEETRAE1351BOMFIEE 2 ES
BEREH

RiE FMREIE13.51BOINIEEAET
BEBEFNMT

TREZESZE

Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

annual salary increased from HK$782,496 to HK$818,496 (excluding discretionary

bonus) with effect from 1 July 2016

BR 4 k)N E FH
—EIE&

Mr. Ho Kai Man

T F1782,49678 TLIE INE818,496/8 T (TREEMERLL) B T —

NEFELA

annual salary increased from HK$408,000 to HK$426,000 (excluding discretionary

bonus) with effect from 1 July 2016

AR &
—EIE)JI

Mr. Chan Raymond

REX e R-ZT—

Mr. Chan Raymond

F 37 1408,000/8 TTIE M1 E426,00058 7T (NEIEMETEAL)

BE-ZE—XRF+tH

was appointed as the Executive Director on 1 June 2016

NENA—HEZEXAWNITES

annual salary increased from HK$924,000 to HK$960,000 (excluding discretionary

bonus) with effect from 1 July 2016

PR 3% S A
—EIE)JI
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

)

On 26 July 2016, four subsidiaries of the Company,
namely Karrie Industrial Company Limited, Hong
Kong Hung Hing Metal Manufacturing Company
Limited, Karrie Technologies Company Limited
and Karwin Engineering Company Limited, as
borrowers, and the Company and two subsidiaries
of the Company, namely Castfast Industrial (Yan
Tien) Limited and R B HEEBEZRB A AR
7 A], as guarantors, entered into a facility letter
issued by Hang Seng Bank Limited, whereby the
following bank facilities with total limit up to
HK$373,377,777.65 and US$23,000,000 are
granted to the borrowers: (i) a term loan facility
up to HK$180,000,000 for a term of 3 years from
the date of drawdown; (i) the outstanding term
loans of HK$5,555,555.44, HK$12,222,222.25,
HK$39,999,999.96 and HK$27,500,000 with final
maturity date on 28 April 2017, 15 May 2017, 4
June 2018 and 13 October 2016 respectively; and
(iii) other facilities, including overdraft, documentary
credits, trust receipt, import trade loans, revolving
loan facility, treasury product facility and corporate
credit card, up to the limit of HK$108,100,000
and US$23,000,000. The above facilities imposes,
inter alia, a condition that the borrowers undertake
and ensure that Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, shall not pledge his
shares in the Company without Hang Seng Bank
Limited’s prior written consent.
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BE ETRAE1B21FEH 2K E

(1) RZE—RFLtAZ-ZF+AB AQFMHE
FHBAR BEFMEMBRAR FF
HESBEBAER AR BAIRKEE
ERAGIAEERMIEBRAA (£
BERF)EREARNRF RARRMWEKNB
AREAEREESRBRASHER QA
MREBEEZEB2BASER QA (1
BERA)FIHEELERITER QA%
2R ERE B mERSEE T
48 PR KA £ % 373,377,777 .65 T &
23,000,000 T2 RTERE : (\RZE
180,000,000 T2 EHEFME 812
g B AR AR =4 (ii)5,555,555.44%
JC~12,222,222.257% 7~ 39,999,999.96
77T &27,500,0008 T2 REEEHE
O mRRINBESF AT —LFNA
—_t+tN\B ZE—+HFRA+HH =
—NENANBR-_ZE—R"E+At+=
B &Gi)REEE&ZR%Z108,100,000/8 7T &
23,000,000k 2 H gt & - B 155 T/t
E-EZRANRK kB - E0E2ER.
BIREXME EXERMENRARER
R EREBETHAZHEP —HEHAER
FERENERAEEARITERARSEL
EER B AT AR E) 2R A% R A (8 8 kA
BreEHRERARR ZBRG -
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES (Cont'd)

)

On 26 September 2016, Karwin Engineering
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
as borrower entered into a facility letter issued by
China CITIC Bank International Limited, whereby
China CITIC Bank International Limited agreed to
make available to the borrower a term loan facility
up to HK$150,000,000 for a term of three years
from the date of the drawdown. The facility letter
imposes, inter alia, a condition that the borrower
shall ensure that the Company undertakes that
(i) the major shareholder, Ho's family, does not
reduce the shareholding of the Company below
50.01% and maintains management control over
the Company at all times and (i) Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai, a controlling shareholder of the Company and
an executive director (the Chairman of the board
of directors and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company) or his direct family member shall
continue to be a director of the Company.

On 20 December 2016, Castfast Industrial (Yan
Tien) Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) as
borrower (the “Borrower”) and the Company and
Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited (a subsidiary of
the Company) as guarantors (the “Guarantors”)
entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank Limited (the
“Bank”), whereby the Bank agreed to make
available to the Borrower a term loan facility up to
HK$240,000,000 for a term of 48 months from the
date of Facility Agreement.

The Facility Agreement imposes, inter alia,
conditions that each of the Borrower and the
Guarantors shall ensure and procure that (i) Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and his associates together have
and will maintain not less than 65% direct or
indirect shareholding in the Company; and (i) Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and his associates will not create or
permit to subsist (or agree to create) any security
over any of their shares in the Company without
the Bank's prior written consent.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % R 2 7]

BIE ETRAFB21FREH 2 E (2)

2) RZE—RNFENAZ+/B KQFZH
BRARREMWMIEAER AR (EAEXK
FIRIZAFERT (RER)BRAREL
ZRERMY  BHPERT (BEBR)ERA
AR B mE R &%ZE 150,000,000
BLZ EHERRME BRINE B A
H=F - &R GFIBZER—BEH A
EBERFBEERRADAAFNEZREM
KXETERLVEMBEAQRRRESRR
R50.01%E —BEHEFEAARG 2 ER
Tl M)A R AR ERRITES
fAlEBEE (BAARAEETETFERITHR
RE)NEEREBEEELAARRIZE
$o

3) RZZE—R"F+ZA=Z+H XRAIZH
BRARERNZEYBRASHAR DR ({F
BERAF) ([BRF]) AR REAR
T2 Mt EB A FlKarrie International (B.V.1.)
Limited (TEBERA) ([HERA])HEHE
FRTBERAR ([ZFETEALRE D
F(BEWBZ]) BUEZRTREERE
AR M A& % 1#240,000,0008 T Z E
HEFRE s B BB AN
M+ \{EA -

BMEBRE A (APERE) RERERT
RIERABRE B HERRREG A EEEE
REBBAAARBHEFHENDRAR
BIHY65 % B 3% S A 32 B - R (i)l 18 5t
EREBMBABTITEEREZRITERL
EERAENBEATHREERARA 2K
MEREFMERKAFEFE (KRAEE
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES (Cont'd)

(4)

On 23 March 2017, Dongguan Karrie Properties
Development Company Limited (R 3523 &lFE i
EFE AR AR]) (a subsidiary of the Company)
as borrower (the “Borrower”) and the Company,
Castfast Industrial (Yan Tien) Limited and Karrie
International (B.V.l.) Limited (a subsidiary of the
Company) as guarantors (the “Guarantors”)
entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility
Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited
(the “Bank”) , whereby the Bank agreed to make
available to the Borrower a term loan facility up to
RMB270,000,000 for a term of 48 months from the
date of first draw down.

The Facility Agreement imposes, inter alia,
conditions that each of the Borrower and the
Guarantors shall ensure and procure that (i) Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and his associates together have
and will maintain not less than 65% direct or
indirect shareholding in the Company; and (i) Mr.
Ho Cheuk Fai and his associates will not create or
permit to subsist (or agree to create) any security
over any of their shares in the Company without
the Bank's prior written consent.

As at the date of this annual report, the above specific
performance obligations by the controlling shareholders of
the Company continue to subsist.
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BIE ETRAFB21FREH 2 E (2)

4) RZEBE—+tFZA=Z+=Z8 &RAIZK
BRARAR=RAEHEREARAR (£
BREFXRA) (BXA)) ARRAERAXA
AZHBRAERZEERASHERA
a] K Karrie International (B.V.l.) Limited
(ERERA) (TERAL)BEEBERT
(FE)BRAR ([%RIT])FTLME W
Z((mEWZ]) BEZRTRAEME
R RMH&RZEARK270,000,000T 2
THENBME BEXERBEF A
M+ NAfEA -

BMEBRE A (APER) RERERT
RERANAS BHERMEREG) MIERL
EREBBEAASARBHERHENDRA
XA HY65 % B 1 ok I IR - K (i) e
BEENEBBEABTSEEREKRITE
AEERBNERTHRBRERARE 2
MEREFMERKAFEFE (KRAEE

®) o

RAFHRAH ARRERKRREERT Lt A
BEM-
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended
31 March 2017 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 44%
Five largest suppliers combined 68%
Sales
The largest customer 39%
Five largest customers combined 93%

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had a beneficial
interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted
above.

DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

Assuming that the final dividend and special dividend
are approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
AGM, for the purposes of ascertaining the entitlement
to the final dividend and special dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
31 August 2017 to Friday, 1 September 2017 (both dates
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend and
special dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 30 August
2017. It is expected that the final dividend and special
dividend will be payable and issued to those entitled on or
around Tuesday, 19 September 2017.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM to be held on 25 August 2017, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
21 August 2017 to Friday, 25 August 2017 (both dates
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify to attend and vote at the
AGM, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 August 2017.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on public
information available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
sufficient public float, being 25% of the issued share
capital of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
KPMG who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Cheuk Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017

Report of the Directors
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Independent Auditor’s Report
W % B A

cRnac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Karrie International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Karrie International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 157 to 275,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2017, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2017 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Timing of revenue recognition

Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policy note 2(x).

The key audit matter
HRESTER

Revenue from sales of the Group’s metal and plastic
products and electronic products is recognised when
the goods are delivered to the customer’s designated
location which is considered to be the point in time
when the Group transfers the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of goods to the customers.
Em.fﬁﬁﬁg&;ﬁ”ﬂ%%ﬂﬂ&E&%FDDZH&AEFDD
REZFPETZMH NEEERERMEE LLZE
RER &R EBR LT P RHER -

The Group’s sales contracts with customers, which
principally comprise large-sized international
technology corporations, have a variety of terms
and conditions relating to goods acceptance. Such
terms may affect the timing of the recognition of
sales to those customers. The Group evaluates the
terms of each sales contract in order to determine the
appropriate timing of revenue recognition.
EEEEEF (FEBHEAULERMEARGIZLZ
HESNREAN A MBI — R H R IE
o M#{%fkT’ﬁ‘é@%iﬁEEEZJ\%TL%%?}E%EG@%J’%Z
Ry A %ll%xﬁﬁ%ééﬁﬁxﬂ REE 2 B RIRR
ztﬁmhlézi\ﬁ&w BERE-

Independent Auditor’s Report
W v 1% WA
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEzENNEEZSEE

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of
revenue recognition included the following:

EERBWARR KB EHREFEEAT:

- obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the Group's key internal
controls in relation to revenue recognition;

- TEREVHRESEENRAERZ BN
2l 2 R B LB R UL

- inspecting key customer contracts to identify
terms and conditions relating to goods
acceptance and assessing the Group's
revenue recognition policies with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

— REEREFAANUBMIEEMBRER
R R 1 AR B RRIBITEFH R 2 EK
A ERE 2 WATERBUR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
W 1% WA

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Timing of revenue recognition (Cont’d)

The key audit matter
HRESTER

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a
key audit matter because each sales contract may have
different terms and conditions which increases the risk
of error in the recognition of revenue and because the
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the
Group and could be subject to manipulation to meet
targets or expectations.
EERWAER KRN RBARETFE ARHE
B RIETE T RHRR S AR - B T AT s 38 0 A BE R 85
mZ BRI AWASESEEF —HERES
IR AT R DA RBIRAL AERK B IR HIE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEzENNEEZSEE

- comparing, on a sample basis, specific
revenue transactions recorded before and
after the financial year end date with
delivery documents with the customers’
acknowledgement of goods acceptance
and underlying sales invoices to determine
whether the revenue had been recognised in
the appropriate financial period; and

- WBREBEFRAZREARZABBRARS
HRAHERENEEPERARKEMZE
e NETHBWASETEEE ZFHA
T AR A K

- inspecting underlying documentation
for manual journal entries relating to
revenue raised during the year which were
considered to be material or met other
specific risk-based criteria.

— HAEERNRRKE/RERZFERE flW
EHOBRTFIRASE RELWRAFGHZ
oA EEER



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policy note 2(n).

The Key Audit Matter
BRET BN

The Group is primarily involved in the manufacture and
sale of metal and plastic products as well as electronic
products.
EEETIZNERENHESBRENAR UKE
FEm-e

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The Group maintains its inventory
levels based on customer orders and forecast demand.
FEERKAEIERFE A REERE - EEE
BEEFPIEMBHTERKEREFEKTF-

A significant proportion of the Group's products are
manufactured to meet specific customer requirements.
There is a risk that inventories may be stated at more
than their net realisable value if a customer experiences
financial difficulty or there is a demand issue with
a customer’s product that includes a component
manufactured by the Group.
EEENARBIERERAMWEARBEFR 22 RKME
EoMREFEBMBRE FFzEm (BEAE
SEELENAMN) FEFKEE Mg KFEIARE
VABRTE B3 LA - & 2 [@LBg -

Independent Auditor’s Report
W v 1% WA

BREESTEE (&)
FEME

PR E BEHEEXN 16 KM iE2(n)2 &5
% o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EE2EMMBEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

B FERECEFEFEERA TSR

- obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key internal
controls over the process for assessing
provisions for inventories;

- THRNFGREEERATEMEZBRAL
EH(RRESEHRGFE 2 BEEH)
BVERET - B MBTT AL

- comparing the cost of raw materials with
supplier invoices, on a sample basis;
-  WMBEEERMHEZEKAEEEBREERLZ

TR

- for work-in-progress and finished goods,
challenging the key assumptions concerning
overhead absorption by assessing the cost of
items included in the overhead absorption
calculations, on a sample basis;

- HRFENGEEND FRMEEEREE
ERORABEZRA EHEMEEERSD
ARz BRRE:

- assessing the classification of inventory items
in the inventory ageing report by comparison
with supplier invoices and other underlying
documentation on a sample basis;

— ERMRLERERE REMAERE Y T
HEERKBREAZFEBRREDRA:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Valuation of inventories (Cont’d)

The Key Audit Matter
HRESER

Management assesses the level provisions for
inventories required at each reporting date after
considering inventory ageing and other relevant
factors. This assessment involves significant
management judgement and estimation.
EREREFAFEZRENAMEBERR NEE
wE R AR TFEIREERSR ZREKTF - L EP
NEREREHE &5

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because the Group held significant inventories
at the reporting date and because of the significant
degree of management judgement and estimation
involved in evaluating the provisions for inventories.
EEEGEEMENRARETFE ERESENR
ERARBEABZFE URENEFEEGRFNT
BREBEHE NG

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % IR 2 7]

BREESTEE (&)
FEME (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEzENNEEZSEE

selecting inventory items, on a sample
basis, at reporting date and comparing
their carrying value to their subsequent
selling prices as indicated in sales invoices
subsequent to the reporting date;
MEEENBRSACERER  LEAKRE
BEEREARHEERELZEE:

comparing material slow-moving inventories
items with customers’ orders and production
forecasts and assessing the financial
condition of key customers; and
HBREAFHTFEHEBREFAIEREETR
Bl AREHEEERR 2B BN AR

assessing the historical accuracy of
management’s process for making provisions
for inventories by examining the utilisation or
release of the provisions for inventories made
at the end of the previous financial year
during the current financial year.
BABEETNELH I METE 2ERANED
TBERRE R AE R Z MBS -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

Recoverability of trade receivables

Refer to notes 3(a)(iii) and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies notes 2(p) and

2(m).

The Key Audit Matter
HRBETER

The Group generates revenue from sales of its
products and services to customers in several different
jurisdictions including Hong Kong, the People's
Republic of China (“PRC"), North America, Western
Europe and other Asian countries.

EEEERERE PEARAME ([HE]) -
E EREEMIMNBEREAZ ZETREDEEER
FHRAAR P HEEm IR MmEEKA -

Customers located in different jurisdictions are subject
to different local risks (including political, currency
and interest rate risks) specific to those jurisdictions in
addition to the effects of the global economic climate.
BT 2REERRAZZEIN LR TRBNEERER 2
FEFEHEIRMREE AR (BEBARR &%
[\ B B M B ) o

Management assesses the level of allowance for
doubtful debts required at each reporting date after
taking into account the ageing analysis of trade
receivables and any other factors specific to individual
debtors concerned and a collective element based
on historical experience adjusted for certain current
factors.
EREREEZRE S RUIRTR Rk D T ERIEREA
FAZEMAEMER URNABRLKLRAENE AR
FRFAZAREARZFEARRER REBERSEH
AR 2 RIREEMR Z IKF o
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PARETEE (&)
B 5 WOR R T E

L BIA5 A R AR WY AL 3(a)(110) W 3 14 R Y 2
2(p)F12(m).2 &5 HF

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEzENNEEZSEE

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of
trade receivables included the following:

BEERBUIRRGEZRITRFEEATEE:

- obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the Group’s key internal
controls over the processes of credit control,
collection of trade receivables and follow up
of overdue balances;

-  THEFGEEEEAHECERN EFREK
R FR U B K2 260 HA SR IR BR 3 2 A BRI ) 2 5R
B AETR L

- evaluating the Group’s policy for making
allowances for doubtful debts with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

- Z2RBATEHEL FEEEERREEZ
R

- assessing the classification of trade
receivables in the trade receivable ageing
report by comparison with sales invoices and
other underlying documentation on a sample
basis;

— FERMELEEERBHEEMABRE Y T
8 ZEUIR R IR RS 2 B 5 EUIRZ D

o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

Recoverability of trade receivables (Cont’d)

The Key Audit Matter
HARESER

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables
as a key audit matter because of the significance of
trade receivables to consolidated statement of financial
position and because of the significant degree of
management judgement involved in evaluating the
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful debts.

EEEBYIRR 2 AT EIES | RERETEE AR
B RYIR KBRS MBI KR ZERE - LAREHE
RIREH 2 TR P RERZ EIEEHIE-
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PARETEE (&)
B 5 EWIRR 2 T B W (4F)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EE 2B NMMEEZEE

obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of individual trade receivable
balances and evaluating the allowance for
doubtful debts made by management for
these individual balances with reference to
the debtors’ financial condition, the industry
in which the debtors are operating, the
ageing of overdue balances, correspondence
between the Group and the debtors and
historical and post year-end payment
records;
THRESELHERNE S EUKIRKEZ TR
W E iz HET KR - W2 RBAERSAZ B
Bk B PTBR 2 173~ B HASRIE 2 IR
EEEEEBAZEZ BB NESL NFREZ
2B RAAEE IR B L FE R AR
FTIR 2 IEIRSE

assessing the assumptions and estimates
made by management for the allowance
for doubtful debts calculated based on
a collective assessment by performing a
retrospective review of the historical accuracy
of these estimates and recalculating the
Group’s allowance with reference to the
Group's policy for collective assessment; and
AL B EEBIRIRER GG 2
Mt W2REEEEBEAES T EZBE
REFAEERE ZZIRER KM EE
SEHENES HT AL E ZBIRERA
1EZ B K fhat e

inspecting bank receipts from customers and
other relevant underlying documentation
subsequent to the financial year end relating
to trade receivable balances at 31 March
2017, on a sample basis.
MEREEMBFRERE  REPKERR
ZE—+HF=A=T—HZEFERIRRH
ARz RELDR-



INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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The Directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yip Ka Ming, Alice.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i 6 MR T A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIR)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF
=A=+-—AH =A=+—H
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 SPo Tz
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Land use rights + bR A A 6 17,135 17,607
Property, plant and equipment ER N 7 439,017 440,510
Investment properties KEMHE 8 301,710 316,800
Intangible assets | EE 9 24,760 28,417
Investments in associates REEERR 2 "E 11 14,136 15,223
Available-for-sale financial assets At EemEE 15 18,597 18,393
Other non-current assets EMIEREBEE 14 36,676 84,738
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 25 1,524 638
853,555 922,326
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 16 384,883 350,584
Property development MEER 17 479,811 146,142
Trade and bills receivable B 5N EEEWRK 14 321,113 329,321
Prepayments, deposits and other R -EkeRk
receivables H At & H R 5K 14 80,078 52,465
Current tax recoverable N HA AT Y B £ IR 25 1,701 712
Cash and bank deposits e RRITERK 18 215,363 276,541
1,482,949 1,155,765
Total assets EEH#E 2,336,504 2,078,091
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable KREEBREFREA
to equity shareholders of the FEAERA R #E
Company
Share capital i N 19 199,620 199,620
Other reserves H b 21 212,604 240,785
Retained earnings RE = F 666,279 576,775
1,078,503 1,017,180
Non-controlling interests FERER (1,750) (1,344)
Total equity ESEE 1,076,753 1,015,836
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i 6 M B A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHIR)

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

—E—tHF —E—REF
=A=+—H =ZA=+—H
Note $'000 $'000
M aE T Tz
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables H B EMIRRK 22 230,309 259,352
Accruals and other payables EstER KR
H e IR 5K 22 315,565 284,296
Receipts in advance 78 Wk X 35,191 36,184
Bank borrowings RITIEE 24 50,333 331,528
Obligations under finance leases BEHE TRE 23 17 6,848
Amounts due to an associate AR NEIL SN 11 2,992 6,741
Amount due to a related company FET R A AR X 12 65,067 —
Current tax payable RNERFET B IR 25 55,402 59,262
754,876 984,211
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred revenue PEIE LA 7 = 515
Bank borrowings IRITEE 24 489,467 60,278
Obligations under finance leases BEE TARE 23 111 -
Provision for long service payments RERBSERE 26 5,642 7,653
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEEE 25 9,655 9,598
504,875 78,044
Total liabilities B EHEE 1,259,751 1,062,255
Total equity and liabilities EERaEHEE 2,336,504 2,078,091
Net current assets REEEEE 728,073 171,554
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERARBAERS 1,581,628 1,093,880

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 29 June 2017.

Ho Cheuk Fai
1 J2 8
Director

EF

The notes on pages 166 to 275 form part of these

financial statements.
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Chan Ming Mui, Silvia

R & Ik
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

for the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ_—ZF—+F=A=+—H L F/E (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& ITII7R)

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5 Fr T
Revenue ON 27 2,715,859 2,897,605
Cost of sales fHE AN 28 (2,361,314) (2,546,039)
Gross profit EF 354,545 351,566
Distribution and selling expenses SIERIHEER 28 (24,087) (44,450)
General and administrative expenses — M RITBER 28 (136,419) (143,064)
Other income/gains and (losses) HAb WAz &
(E18) 27 3,727 (2,400)
Net valuation gain/(loss) on REYEEEWRS
investment properties (E18) 58 8 1,358 (11,281)
Operating profit wEER 199,124 150,371
Finance income B S A 1,063 1,533
Finance costs B 7% AR AR (11,580) (16,039)
Finance costs, net MR FE 30 (10,517) (14,506)
Share of profits of associates P& & B & 1 B R 11 247 294
Profit before taxation BR 4 A0 % A 188,854 136,159
Income tax FR15H 31 (20,642) (19,488)
Profit for the year FERA 168,212 116,671
Attributable to: FEAL -
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFR A 168,333 117,076
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B = (121) (405)
168,212 116,671
Earnings per share attributable to ZA2QFERFTEA
equity shareholders AL S R T
of the Company
Basic and diluted ERREE 33 8.4 cents &l 5.9 cents F Ll

The notes on pages 166 to 275 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for

the year are set out in note 34.

F166E275B 2 AXRMBHREx 2 — 5
EEREERMZEMRERARBIRERSE
2B IR 34 -
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEHEEREM P TWNA R

for the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z - —+t%=A=-1—H [LF/Z (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TFII7R)

2017 2016
=B+ —E—-R
Note $'000 $'000
ih=g T Tt
Profit for the year FERA 168,212 116,671
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEBA:
for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified to TEET T IEE
profit or loss: Bam 2 H 5
Remeasurement of provision for long ~ KEIRE & EHE 2
service payments EXFE 26(b) 2,017 (1,374)
Items that may be reclassified HEAJEE TIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BamHE -
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEE I B
of financial statements of overseas FREFEZRBER
operations, net of $nil tax EHIE 2 FE 21 (29,876) (17,447)
Reversal of translation reserve upon BEEBEATZ
liquidation of an associate BB 2 O 21 - 769
Fair value gains on available-for-sale At EeREE
financial assets, net of $nil tax NEEZ WA
ENIE 2 FE 21 9 53
Reclassification of fair value gains on —H;i(.‘jj% BEE
available-for-sale financial assets to NREBEZREREE
profit or loss upon disposal REFHDEZER 21 - (201)
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEKA
for the year (27,850) (18,200)
Total comprehensive income FE2HBALE
for the year 140,362 98,471
Attributable to: PEAL :
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFER A 140,483 98,876
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR HE A (121) (405)
Total comprehensive income FEXHBRALE
for the year 140,362 98,471

The notes on pages 166 to 275 form part of these

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GalmZHR

for the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ_—ZF—+F=A=+—H L F/E (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& ITII7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders

of the Company
ARARERBEEAERL
Share Other Non-
capital reserves Retained controlling Total
(Note 19) (Note 21) Earnings interests Equity
%N Hitn i
(KiE19) (KtE21) REEF  FERER BEAE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Balance at 1 April 2015 “Z-nEMA-AZER 199,620 256,591 531,938 (939) 987,210
Changes in equity for the BE-E-R"EZA=t-H
year ended 31 March 2016: LEERREH:
Profit/(loss) for the year FERM/ (F8) - - 117,076 (405) 116,671
Other comprehensive income Hip2EMA = (16,826) (1,374) = (18,200)
Total comprehensive income 2ERARE - (16,826) 115,702 (405) 98,471
Dividend paid in respect of the previous year ~ +FEE RS 34(b) = = (55,894) = (55,894)
Equity settled share-based transactions IRBER 2R 5 20 = 1,020 = = 1,020
Dividends paid in respect of the current year ~ RFE 2 REE 34(a) = = (14,971) = (14,971)
Balance at 31 March 2016 ZE-REZA=t+-HzEH 199,620 240,785 576,775 (1,344) 1,015,836
Balance at 1 April 2016 ZE-AENA-HREH 199,620 240,785 576,775 (1,344) 1,015,836
Changes in equity for the BE-Z-tF=A=+-H
year ended 31 March 2017: LEEEREZE:
Profit/(loss) for the year FERM/ (B8) - = 168,333 (121) 168,212
Other comprehensive income Hi2EMBA - (29,867) 2,017 = (27,850)
Total comprehensive income RN E = (29,867) 170,350 (121) 140,362
Liquidation of a subsidiary BEERBLE - - - (424) (424)
Change in ownership interests in a subsidiary B A AIEA A2 &
without change of control (R irtlE) - - - 139 139
Dividend paid in respect of the previous year ~ EFE 2 IRE & 34(b) - - (54,895) - (54,895)
Equity settled share-based transactions RO Z R 2R 5 20 - 2,561 - = 2,561
Dividends paid in respect of the current year ~ AFE BRI & 34(a) - - (25,951) = (25,951)
Repurchase of shares EES) 21() - (875) - = (875)
Balance at 31 March 2017 —E-tEZf=t+-AE& 199,620 212,604 666,279 (1,750) 1,076,753
The notes on pages 166 to 275 form part of these F166E275HE 2 M RAMB MK — &5 -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Hed e g

for the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ=F

—+&F=A=+—H L% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETTHIR)

2017 2016
—E—tF A
Note $'000 $'000
ih=g Fr Tt
Cash flows from operating activities & EZFH 2 HERE
Profit before taxation B 5% Al g A 188,854 136,159
Share of profits of associates FE(REE & A &) A 11 (247) (294)
Depreciation of property, mE - HE &
plant and equipment wEZE 7 58,188 83,870
Amortisation of land use rights T b AR 2 6 472 620
Amortisation of intangible assets B\ EE BN 9 3,657 3,543
Amortisation of deferred income BEEW A 2 B3 7 (515) (619)
Gain on liquidation of an associate BEEE AT 2 W 27 - (1,684)
Loss on disposal of investment in an HERBE QR Z
associate KEZ BB 27 - 58
Equity settled share-based transactions AWK X235 20 2,561 1,020
Impairment losses of property, Y% - B Mk
plant and equipment 2 REEE 27 - 13,129
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, tﬂ%%% T
plant and equipment w2 (W) &8 27 (1,095) 388
Impairment loss on investments in REERRIZIZE
associates 2 RIEEE 27 2,490 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At EemEE
financial assets 2R EEE 27 201 299
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary BEWB AR Z W 27 (487) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEE
financial assets TEREE W 27 = (1,086)
Recognition of allowance for B 5 & B Ah FE YR R
impairment of trade and other BB 2 TR
receivables 14 - 3,220
Write-down of obsolete and slow RERFHTFE
moving inventories Z WOR 16 9,873 -
Provision for long service payments RHRE & EH 26 245 235
Net valuation (gain)/loss on KEMHEMLE
investment properties (W) BEFHE 8 (1,358) 11,281
Interest expenses FEX H 30 11,580 16,039
Interest income F B A 30 (1,063) (1,533)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss SN [ 3,
W), EER (3.973) 3,655
Operating profit before working EEES#ERIZ
capital changes carried forward RE R 269,383 268,300

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F [ B # & 7 R 4 &



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GARBeRERF
for the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ_—ZF—+F=A=+—H L F/E (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& ITII7R)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5 Fr T
Operating profit before working EELESBPRZRE
capital changes brought forward mAEE 269,383 268,300
(Increase)/decrease in inventories F& (#m,m (44,172) 52,086
Increase in property development e Y il (253,549) (67,510)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5N EEEWRK
bills receivable ZRA, (Em) 7,701 (53,589)
Increase in prepayments, deposits AR Re REAM
and other receivables JE WS BR SR 2 1 0 (2,990) (37,756)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables & 5 ENMNIRF Z
CRd) /1 (27,426) 40,582
Increase in accruals and other payables &=+ 2 F & H th fE <
S il 45,507 14,323
(Decrease)/increase in receipts TEWRRZ
in advance CRd) /18 (993) 25,122
(Decrease)/increase in amounts FETHE & A BRI Z
due to an associate CRA) /& (3,749) 2,461
Increase in amount due to FEREEALIRZ
a related party 0 1,129 -
Decrease in financial derivatives PTESMITAZ R - (26,280)
Net cash (used in)/generated gE (A BEZ
from operations BHRE (9,159) 217,739
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENBEENER (25,132) (13,230)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REBRBNEMN 1,218 3,283
Overseas tax paid B2 AN (910) (1,771)
Long service payments paid BN RERES 26 (239) (312)
Net cash (used in)/generated ReEEE (A,
from operating activities BEEZRERSE (34,222) 205,709
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GRBeREH
for the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ_—ZF—+tF = A =+—HILF/E (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 7T5I7R)

2017 2016
—E—tF A
Note $'000 $'000
ih=g Fr T
Cash flows from investing activities REZEH2HERE
Payment for the purchase of property, BEE %  HE &&
plant and equipment CPARE S (63,233) (121,083)
Payment for additions to investment ~ AREBREWE ZHK
properties 8 (2,092) (5,181)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME KBER
plant and equipment BB RGN 1,294 12,129
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- & At H & 4 &l
sales financial assets BEZREBR - 5,264
Proceeds from capital injection from JEERERTEZ
non-controlling interests Frig 3 139 —
Payment for capital injection in an FEREERRZ
associate (NE 11 (2,131) (1,080)
Proceeds from liquidation of an BEEENEZ
associate FR1SK - 15,896
Payment for acquisition of intangible  WEEER EE 2 K
assets 9 - (3,396)
Interest received B W F 8 667 1,137
Decrease in pledged deposits BIRFR 2B = 30,815
Net cash used in investing REZEMAZ
activities BRE (65,356) (65,499)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GRBeRERF
for the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ_—ZF—+F=A=+—H L F/E (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& ITII/R)

2017 2016
—E-tF A
Note $'000 $'000
Bt 5 Fr Tt
Cash flows from financing RMETHZRERE
activities
Interest paid EAAHE (18,485) (15,949)
Payment for the repurchase of shares  [Bl8& %15 2 fF X 21(c) (875) =
New bank borrowings HIRTTIEE 921,705 321,921
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (773,711) (275,315)
Decrease in trust receipts bank loans  {EFEWIERITE R
Z R - (5,610)
Capital element of repayment of EEMEMEZ
finance leases K E1p (6,856) (7,891)
Dividends paid 2R & (80,846) (70,865)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBHESE (FTA)
financing activities ZEREE 40,932 (53,709)
Net (decrease)/increase in cashand B RBEESZEEY =
cash equivalents FORL) % (58,646) 86,501
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUOZzHEER
beginning of the year REZEEY 276,541 193,599
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEERSE 2 E
changes (2,532) (3,559)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRzESRESEE
end of the year 18 215,363 276,541

The notes on pages 166 to 275 form part of these

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Karrie International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in

- Metal and Plastic ("M&P") Business: manufacturing
and sale of metal and plastic products, including
server casings, moulds, plastic and metal parts and
predominately self-brand household products;

- Electronic Manufacturing Services ("EMS”) Business:
manufacturing and sale of magnetic tape data
storage, point-of-sale (“POS”) system, medical
products, office automation products and other
computer peripherals;

- Consumer and Services Business: building of
“Fullhouse World” Brand, provision of relevant
services, such as catering services and sales of
themed gifts; and

- Real Estate Business: urban renewal, real
estate project investment, property leasing and
development.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda on 29 October 1996. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The shares of the Company have been listed on Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 December 1996.

These consolidated financial statements are presented

in unit of Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), unless otherwise
stated.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig 7 R 2 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx R A SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2017 comprise the Group and its interests in
associates. The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for investment properties and available-for-sale
financial assets which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses.

2 EEGHEX
(a) MpIEH

WM BHRRDREMEER BB K RESE
A(TEEMHHRELA]) ERREBEELES
sEag ([BEEEAE]) R ZPEER
BRZBEEMBREER FEGAEAN([F
BEAELERE BEAREARILEE
B R AR 2 358 5 5E T A B o It B 7% R R4S
ABXMAES EWARA ([EHRA]) ZERE
BRE AEERMEZSHHRBERIIM
To

EEEHHAGERMEZENTRERIZE
BMBREED YR AEERARRRZANGE
HIF B RERK AT R F RN - M aE2(c) iR HEH
ENERZFEASEERYCERRNA GG
HE BTSN PRI BERRAZ G BER

(b) MEBHRRZEREE

BHE_Z—+HF=A=+—-HILFEZHEY
BREEEANEEREBRE QB EE - NI KR
RERBEERNERFTEELERH  EREME
LRAHHESRMEELT AR FEFTE

RUENEBEEMBRELEN LV BRERFTREE
BEFLHE B RBEREFERRZERAR
EE A WARXHZERZEZR-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Cont’d)

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 4.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows, and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Cont’d)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate (see note 2(e)).

(e) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see note 2(m)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(e) Associates (Cont’d)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to $nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the investees, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment is an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(f) Goodwiill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(g) Other investments in equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s accounting policies for
investments equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at
fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx R A SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(9) Other investments in equity securities (Cont’d)

Investments in securities which are not held for trading
are classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the available-for-sales assets revaluation reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note
2(m)).

When these investments are derecognised or impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified to profit or loss.
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

(h)  Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(k)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at
the end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot
be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit
or loss.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 548 &SN - IABITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(i) Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction-in-progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction of
buildings, the costs of plant and machinery, installation,
testing and other direct costs. No depreciation is made on
construction-in-progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to other property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in
below.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives. The annual rates
used for the calculation of depreciation are:

- Leasehold land Over the lease term

- Buildings 2% t0 4%

- Fixtures and leasehold 8% 10 33.33%
improvements

= Machinery 6% to 15%

- Moulds and tooling 15%

- Furniture and computer 15% to 33.33%
equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

LN % &3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BxRA SN - LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

)] Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which
various plant and buildings are situated for periods varying
from 10 to over 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the
land use rights.

(k) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

1) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are included in property,
plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities,
net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, in accordance with the accounting policies as set
out in note 2(i). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(m). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(k) Leased assets (Cont’d)

(i) Sale and leaseback arrangement resulting in finance
lease

A sale and leaseback arrangement which results in a
finance lease is a means whereby the lessor provides
finance to the lessee with the asset as security. To reflect
the substance of the transaction, any excess of sales
proceeds over the carrying amount of the asset, or any
deficit of sales proceeds lower than the carrying amount
of the asset, is deferred and amortised as an adjustment to
the depreciation of the asset.

(i) Operating leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases. Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets.

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Operating rights
acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Amortisation of intangible
assets is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx R A SN LABTTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(m) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

() Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Cont’d)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates accounted for under
the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 2(e)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance note 2(m)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2(m)(ii).

- For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

- For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
financial asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these financial assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx R A SN LABTTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Cont’d)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the financial asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss on
equity instruments are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and bills
receivables and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(m) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

= property, plant and equipment;
- land use rights;

- intangible assets;

= goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is indication of impairment.

- Calculation of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx R A SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(m) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)
(1) Impairment of other assets (Cont’d)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 2(m)(i) and 2(m)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(m) Impairment of assets (Cont’d)
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment (Cont’d)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unguoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in any
other period subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

(n) Inventories
0] Manufacturing

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method and
comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sales.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx R A SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(n) Inventories (Cont’d)
(i) Property development

Inventories in respect of property development activities
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost and net realisable values are determined as follows:

- Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development for sale
comprises specifically identified cost, including the
acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages and other direct expenses
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less estimated
costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
property.

- Completed property held for resale

In the case of completed properties developed by the
Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the
total development costs for that development project,
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(o) Joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under a joint
operation, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in the joint operation:

- its share of any assets held jointly;
- its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

- its share of revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

- its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale
or contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B 2 W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(p) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

(q) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and the redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

(r) Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.

(t) Employee benefits
) Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

Group companies operate a defined contribution plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due and are not reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B 2 W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(t) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(i) Defined benefit retirement plan — Long service
payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees upon the termination of their
employment or retirement when the employee fulfils
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting
period on high quality corporate bonds which have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability.
The actuarial gains or losses are credited or charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the current period.

(iv)  Other compensations

Other directors’ and employees’ compensations are
recorded as a liability and charged to profit or loss when
the Group is contractually obliged or when there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation and the
associated services are rendered by the employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(u) Share-based payments

The Company operated an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the Company received
services from employees in return for the granting of
equity instruments (options) of the Company. The fair
value of the employee services received in return for the
grant of the options was recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted:

- including any market performance conditions;

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

- excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting
period, the entity revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision to the original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The cash received for the shares issued when the options
are exercised is credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to employees of a subsidiary in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in the subsidiary, with a
corresponding credit to equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v) Income tax (Cont’d)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair values
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
2(h), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those
assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B 2 W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(v) Income tax (Cont’d)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group's policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income. The amount of
the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with note 2(w)(ii)
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Cont’d)

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(x) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of returns and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as
described below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(x) Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the
products are delivered to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and the related risks and rewards
of ownership and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Advance payments received from customers prior to
delivery of goods are recorded as receipts in advance.

(1) Service income

Revenue from the provision of wedding-related services
and catering services is recognised when the service is
rendered.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset.

(iv)  Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held for sale
is recognised upon the later of the signing of the sale and
purchase agreement and the completion of the properties,
which is taken to be the point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the property have passed to the
buyer.

v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B 2 W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(y) Translation of foreign currencies
() Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the closing foreign exchange rates at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the translation
reserve. Goodwill is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the operation
outside Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(y) Translation of foreign currencies (Cont’d)
(1) Transactions and balances (Cont’d)

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

(2) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

2

(aa)

BEESHBE &)

BBEAL

H@EATAL BIZFALTHZA LT ZER
EAREEERE

() HEBHAEE ZIE G HKREH
1

(i) HAKREEEAFE N

RASERAKEG R
X8 e

AIZERE

ﬁTATWEHf#
BRE

() ZEREASEBR-SEZKE
NE(BIBRERR WEBARKLRA
EAMBRRARILEERE) -

(ii) —EFM%—§%Z%%@TiA
LR (X—ERAKEETKE
RAIZBERAIHAELEMS —

E%%%EWEQE%

(iii) ﬁﬁ BORA-—F=2z8%D1

(v, —ERA/RF=TER
RAEERRANEEGRE

HEES
> Ei B 2R R AT

(vi) EBXR@FM#ENZALTENHR

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 4 #

197



Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(aa) Related parties (Cont’d)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Cont’d)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(ab) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

198  Karrie International Holdings Limited % 7 [ B # I§ % IR 4 &

2 EESHBX#®)

(aa) BBEEAL(Z)

(b) HRFE TIMEMGES A —EREAKHE
BRE: (&)

(vii) R@OFBMNATHERBEEAFY
ENXEZER (ARERZER

AETEEEEKE

(vii) ZERIZERBMBEE Z(EMAK
BERAR/AEEHAEE 2 RA]
RHETZ2EBABRS-

B FEHAEERALTHS
g5 o

(ab) 7 EBI/E

LENMRYBHRRFPEOHBRBEZER TR
REHAAEBESZETREEABER 2 M
ERUHAEEATNEFPFIRBEELERD
PR fEERR -

BRIEAZEEBY BT RS ETHBER
BRIELSEDBEREUZLERS  ERERE M
 LEBREME FFERKAR DHEESR
KEBEBRE 2 HE ARETRENEY - % @5
W RERZELEDFA LMAILD G e
BEERE-



Notes to the Financial Statements

W B 2 W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group's Finance
and Accounting department (“Group F&A") under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. Group F&A identifies,
evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close co-operation
with the Group's operating units. The Board is responsible
for overall risk management which covers currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and cash management.

) Currency risk

The Group operates primarily in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in HK$, United States dollars (“US$") and
Renminbi ("RMB"). Currency risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations that are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
As HK$ are pegged against US$, management considers
that the Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk
with respect to Renminbi. Management will continue
to monitor foreign exchange exposure and will take
measures to minimise the currency translation risk. The
conversion rate of Renminbi to foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC Government.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

) Currency risk (Cont’d)

The following table details the currency portfolio of the
Group’s monetary assets/(liabilities) denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts
of the portfolio are expressed in HK$, translated using the

spot rate at the end of the reporting period:

B =B FEASN  AEBTTIIR)

3 UBEREERESMIAEAQFE
(&)

(a) HEEKBEZE(Z)

) IMEEE ()

TRFVAEEUEBEREEEUIINEME
a1

BREUEBHEE (BB 2ERBEE-
RIMRAE AR Z 2 BIARS BRI HE X

B WAE TR

At 31 March 2017

—E-t+tf=A=t1-H
Carrying

value HK$ us$ RMB Others

IREE BT S AR Hits

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Bt zx Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

Trade and bills receivable and B REBRIIER R
other receivables Hfth FEURIR 5K 14 372,099 1,857 322,455 42,274 5,513
Available-for-sale financial assets HEESHEE 15 18,597 303 18,294 = =
Cash and bank deposits Re RBAFER 18 215,363 35,810 136,768 41,053 1,732
Trade payables BHERIER 22 (230,309) (54,594) (140,886) (33,450) (1,379)
Accruals and other payables FEEH B A R E R IRR 22 (315,565) (45,607) (9,229) (256,624) (4,105)
Obligations under finance leases RMEME AR 23 (128) - - = (128)
Bank borrowings PITIRE 24 (539,800) (539,800) = = =
At 31 March 2016
e = e ped=
Carrying

value HK$ Us$ RMB Others

IREE BT E AR Hit

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Bt zx Fr Tr Tr Tr Tr

Trade and bills receivable and B REBRIER R

other receivables H IR 14 382,429 3,979 325,066 48,505 4,879
Available-for-sale financial assets MHEESHEE 15 18,393 504 17,889 = =
Cash and bank deposits Re RBAFER 18 276,541 48,494 183,119 43,454 1,474
Trade payables BHERIER 22 (259,352) (49,202) (182,257) (26,500) (1,393)
Accruals and other payables T ERAREMERIRR 22 (284,296) (44,347) (36) (236,451) (3,462)
Obligations under finance leases BERETHE 23 (6,848) (6,849) = = -
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 (391,806) (391,806) = = =
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Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
) Currency risk (Cont’d)

At 31 March 2017, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened
by 5% against the RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year and retained earnings
would have decreased/increased approximately $63,000
(2016: $771,000 decreased/increased), mainly as a result
of the net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
Renminbi-denominated trade and other receivables, cash
and bank deposits and trade and other payables.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate of HK$
against the RMB had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk, including inter-company payables
and receivables with the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2016.

(i) Interest rate risk

Monetary assets/liabilities acquired at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group's
interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings and bank
deposits which are primarily issued at variable rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W B # 2% W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(i) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

3 UBEREERESMIAEAQFE

(&)

(@) BHBEABRER (&)

(i) FEmEE (E)

The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRFVWRBERRAEETEEERAER
Group interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the end of T2
the reporting period:
At 31 March 2017 At 31 March 2016
“E2-t5=A=t-B T AF=A=t+—H
Effective Effective
interest interest
Note rate % $'000 rate % $'000
s BERFIE% Fr EBRFIE% T
Fixed rate interest-bearing EENEEREE/ (BF):
assets/(liabilities):
Time deposits B 18 2.20% 9,226 0.30% 117,137
Obligations under finance leases BEMRE TAE 23 4.98% (128) 4.44% (6,848)
Variable rate interest-bearing TPHARBEEE/(8F):
assets/(liabilities):
Cash and bank deposits BITIFH 0.01% 204,603 0.01% 157,770
Bank borrowings BITEE 24 2.82% (539,800) 2.29% (391,806)

At 31 March 2017, with all other variables held constant,
if the interest rate had increased/decreased by 50 basis
points, the corresponding increase/decrease in interest
expenses on bank borrowings and interest income from
bank deposits at variable rates will result in a net decrease/
increase in the Group’s post-tax profit by approximately
$1,231,000/$2,233,000 (2016: decrease/increase by
$847,000/$1,620,000).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(i) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group's profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2016.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The Group’s
credit risk mainly arises from financial assets and deposits
with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding trade and
other receivables. For banks and financial institutions, only
independent parties with high credit rating are accepted.

3 UBEREERESMIAEAQFE
(&)

(@) BHBEABRER (&)
(i) FEmEE (E)

MU FBREDITETR  BERRHEPRF K3
EBE MEEFTEAEERFREZEBEATE

GRSy Zim&*&lﬂ AEBBRHEEN (R&F
B A Rab o a2 B A ERCER 0 5 & E A B

53 ifﬁ’\zliﬁlﬁ’\#ﬁiﬁﬁi?—rﬁz/%ibﬂ
j’Ff/THEI/E\F/_:EZIEIiMLE%‘JTJ_HZ = HK
E.B‘%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ(&f%&axmﬂ)&%\ 2 H Atz

REBD) 27 @‘Tjﬁﬁééiiﬁ{'ﬁz&z %TEF%'J
gﬁiﬂjﬂz%kz CEMETR T —RFZ
DITARR 2 EZEETT-

(iii) 1B

EERBRREGHTAETRE -AEBEEFERARTIE

XKBE ﬁﬁ?&fﬁﬂéﬁiﬂﬁﬁ&%ZT/ WITER N
BEEFPZEERR BREAEEZEINEME

Wk TR o R ERT &ﬁﬁx@i&%% RezmiERF
MR 2 FBTT °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(i) Credit risk (Cont’d)

Customers are assessed and rated based on their credit
quality, taking into account of their financial position,
repayment history and other factors. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with satisfactory credit history. It performs
periodic credit evaluations/reviews of its customers. Other
receivables are assessed by reference to the historical
information on the default rates of the counter parties.
Individual risk limits are set by management and the
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. No credit
limit was exceeded during the year, and management does
not expect any significant losses from non-performance by
these relevant parties.

There is a concentration of credit risk in respect of trade
and bills receivable as the Group's sales are made primarily
to a few key customers. At 31 March 2017, the trade and
bills receivable from five largest customers accounted for
approximately 89% (2016: 93%) of the total trade and
bills receivable.

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies. Transactions in
relation to derivative financial instruments, if any, are only
carried out with financial institutions of high reputation.
The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A &SN - IAETLIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

(a) Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(iv) Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available at all times.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
classified into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within twelve months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

3 UBEREERESMIAEAQFE

(&)

(@) BHBEABRER (&)
(v) HEEZER

BEEZADECARERSEERARRER
ERMERMCEERERBUHIAER A&
ERERNRBEENHARENERESH|
ez BRI -

UATIEIMASEZEREE ZREZAR
SEHRREANIHMBEHTHRARADBEEGTRE
HIAR c RPFTHRBESEAANARMBAZEAER
E-ARNMBBAZFELITEXN- RTZABAR
M AR EEREERS -

Less than Between Between Over
On demand 1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years
RER DPR—F —EWF —ERF REUE
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
At 31 March 2017 R=-2—+t&
=ZA=t+-H
Trade payables B 5 IR R - 230,309 - — —
Accruals and other FEETE R K H fth e
payables iR % - 255,498 - — -
Obligations under BEMRETHE
finance leases - 23 23 69 37
Bank borrowings RITHEE - 62,959 115,995 391,261 -
- 548,789 116,018 391,330 37
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HX¥EREERSMIAATRE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (&)
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'a)
(a) Financial risk factors (Cont'd) () HBEEMRE (&)
(iv)  Liguidity risk (Cont’d) v) wEEzERE (&)
Less than Between Between Over
On demand Tyear 1and2years 2andb5 years 5 years
REX DR—F —Z@|F —EREF AENE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T FT Fir T
At 31 March 2016 RZT—RE
=A=+—8
Trade payables B 5 R - 259,352 - - -
Accruals and other FESTE A I EoAth e
payables 1R - 232,962 = = =
Obligations under MEMEETAE
finance leases = 6,988 = = =
Bank borrowings RITEE 281,528 53,976 35,419 30,467 =
281,528 553,278 35,419 30,467 -
(b) Capital risk management by EBcEBER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEEESER ERERREBEAEERBAEK
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going EEREBRBLEE RN AEGIFAEATRE
concern in order to provide returns for equity shareholders W RRRBEEMASBEE 2 MG TSR
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an EZERERE -

optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the RERIARERGEE ~EEXERABIMNT
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to REZBRE -BETREZRAN  BITHRIE
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new EEENURIEER -

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

(b) Capital risk management (Cont’d)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the net gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total bank borrowings and obligations under
finance leases less cash and bank deposits. Total capital is
calculated as the total equity as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group's strategy, which is unchanged from prior year,

3 UBEREERESMIAEAQFE
(&)

(b) =2SEBRER(Z)

HEANEMA AEBERBFRITEEL
ﬁ—mgﬁézﬁ lttttTHz RIFEEBEBRUNEER
FE-FEEEARTIEEERMIBERE T A
ERERSRRITEFR - BERNREDAE (W
A MBARREKAI) -

AEBzREEFFIE RA/RFTIEXZ

is to maintain an acceptable net gearing ratio. The net FRITBEELER - RZTE—LFRZFE—RF=
gearing ratios at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: A=+—B2Z2FRITEELEAT:
2017 2016
—E-tF A
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Total bank borrowings RITHEBER 539,800 391,806
Obligations under finance leases BhEMRE TARE 128 6,848
Less: Cash and bank deposits R e RIBITHER (215,363) (276,541)
Net borrowings FEE 324,565 122,113
Total equity R EE 1,076,753 1,015,836
Net gearing ratio FIRITIE X 30% 12%
(c)  Fair value estimation () 2DFEME
The carrying value less impairment provision for trade B NEBRYRREE ZEMNIKRRZIREE
and bills receivable and trade payables are a reasonable BERBBEEFEREEBEOAEATE -EREEE
approximation of their fair values. The fair value of B MBEEATEZMFAERERAKEHNRERE

financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

L/(ZK%@BAE RIm ATz &/ TR 2 F X,
Bt &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

((9) Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (Level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (Level 3).

The Group has a team headed by the Assistant Accounting
Director performing valuations for the insurance contracts
which are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. A valuation report with analysis of changes in
fair value measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is reviewed and
approved by the Chief Financial Officer. Discussion of
the valuation process and results with the Chief Financial
Officer is held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting
dates.

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at 31
March 2017:

3 UBEREERESMIAEAQFE
(&)

(9 2DPEME(E)

TERAABEASTEATEAEZSRIL -
TRAEMRZEHRNT :

- RAERAGEEEDSRE (KE
AE) (5—F)

- RIS EBMERZIBEN ZEEXE
BEzABR2B8E (IRER (B E
R)HEE (REER) (F2E) -

- IRREABEDTSEBECEEXAGL
ZE (AFABREE) (F=8) -

AEERBHRBESTREMTACER Y08
RAFEEBRFE=EZRBRAEAETEHE A
N EEBAESITZ2EERSIAZEFR
BRATPHLRFEREERYE YHERMBER
BIN#tE - RECERER BFEEFEMBES
MG EBRERERMNX -

RITE—tF=A=1T—"H FAEEUKLEUE
RAFEFEEHRZEMEENT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Assets: BE:
Level 3 EF=
— Key management insurance contracts —EZEBRERREH
(note 15) (Bff5E15) 18,294 17,889
18,294 17,889
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

((9) Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
that are recognised at cost less impairment losses at 31
March 2017:

3 UBEREERESMIAEAQFE

(&)

(9 2DPEME(E)

BaEEF-RENEGBMSRBEHEBIAZRE
KRERNFEEERSETE AR LR EE
BR-ZE—tF=A=1+—HER:

2017 2016

—g-t& —T-AF

$'000 $'000

Fx Fit

Unlisted equity securities (note 15) JEEMREZRFES (MzE15) 303 504

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

EEBTHSEECeRmIAZ A FERERS
B2 TI5RE SR o fis T E 7] BB Jo & HI{E & 75
R RPE B FRAAL EBRBERL
EEREES MIXEFBMERKKRRIFRIZEE
ETZERRERMERHE XS R QA
B-AEBERBEZERMEECTSRE/ERE
THRE- HETEBREEE E-

RAEERTSRERE eI A (FII5INTE
TR)ZAFEFRAEERMER - HEXME
ENAABETSEE(0F) GELKER
BZREME M HE —SMIAZAFEMRT
ZIABEABBAEBRYE  AIZEMIAS
ABZE-
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(9]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in Level

3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

The fair value of structured foreign exchange
forward products is determined using Monte Carlo
simulation, taking into account of observable
market parameters such as forward exchange rates,
volatility and interest rates at the reporting date.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis including dividend growth model, are used
to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

There were no transfers of financial assets/liabilities
between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy
classifications.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % R 2 7]
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

((9) Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

3 UBEREERESMIAEAQFE
(&)

(9 2DPEME(E)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BHE=E L FE;GEZH
Significant
Valuation unobservable Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
i 1B £ it FABEERBA EE hnEF B
Key management insurance  Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 2.0% - 2.65% 2.22%

model

BB REE

contracts

EEEIE{%N\D )j

The fair value of insurance contracts is determined using
the discounted cash flow model. The duration of the cash
flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are
determined by conditions in accordance with the terms
of the respective insurance contracts. The periodic cash
flow is estimated as gross redemption value and interest
income less surrender charges. The series of periodic net
income for the contracting periods is then discounted.
The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount rate. As at 31 March 2017, it is estimated that
with all other variables held constant, a decrease/increase
in discount rate by 1% would have increased/decreased
the Group’s other comprehensive income by $2,916,000
(2016: $3,034,000).

BT

RGO A FEDRBURRESREEET
iﬁimugzﬁﬁﬁﬁJ//(&/}lb)\&uwtﬂZ#TIEETFHE
BREZRBEHNZGREE THESREDNG
AAREEREELRNEBARERRER - 245
Mz —@REHFWATTRITE - A FEHE
HEREIRMABE R T—tF=A=+—
E! M EMAEEMEBERRBEZBERT - &

DI % i i*JJD//Dz’J RNEE 2 EAtd
1@”&)\2916OOO7E( T — 7<% :3,034,000
JL) e
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'ad)

((9) Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Cont’d)

3 UBEREERESMIAEAQFE
(&)

(9 2DPEME(E)

BBE=ELFETEEN (&)

The movement during the period in the balance of these HAZEFE="RATEFEZEHRESHNT
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF A
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Key management insurance contracts FEEBEREEA
At 1 April mA—H 17,889 17,440
Interest income recognised in profit or loss RIBEERZFEHA 396 396
Net unrealised gain recognised in FAREMEERAER
other comprehensive income EAREIR WA
during the year 9 53
At 31 March =—A=+—H 18,294 17,889
There were no gains or losses for the years included in RZE—tFRZFE-—RF=ZA=+—HFH

profit or loss for these assets held at 31 March 2017 and
2016.

4  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates may be
different from the actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in future years are discussed below.
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4  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation for its property, plant and
equipment. The estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual economic lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Management will adjust the depreciation where the useful
lives are estimated to be different from the previous
estimates. It will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold. Periodic reviews could result in a change in
depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in
future periods.

(b) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(m). In performing the impairment test,
the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations required the use of estimates.

(c) Impairment of operating rights

The Group tests whether the operating rights have
suffered any impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(m). The recoverable amount of
the operating rights is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations required the use of
estimates.

4 BIHERMER 2

(@) WX -BERREBZERAFH

AEEEEEBREME BMERRBETMEA
ERFHARARTEER - WEFERBEBEL
BUBRRMEERNEZDE BELARBZER
ERFHET BERZEEFHAREMG &
REREZR - BRI 2T AFHEZ AT Z A5
EEZER EEECRHEFEEA -CEESAED
Z PR AT L 38 B K IR SRS 1 B B AR B =l MUK
EHRISEREHRRFRZNEFHRINE
gM-

(b) FEZMETRE

R H 2 ()P 2 BB AR E S A
BEETHRME  BETRENN ReEE
W A B % R A B E (E A TR
B BEBR M

() RERZRE

AEBRBEHME2MAAZ ST R EEHE
EIERAERRIREES A e M eedE - B
REBEDLBRE KERZARESRRR
EREEFEMEE HWEFEFENBMGET-
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4  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

(d) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes allowance for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Allowance for impairment is applied to
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment of receivables requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectations
are different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and the
impairment loss recognised.

(e) Write-down of inventories

Inventories are written down to the net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories.
Write-downs on inventories are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value and write-downs
of inventories.

(f) Income taxes and other regulatory provisions

The Group is subject to income tax and other regulatory
provisions in various jurisdictions. There are transactions
for which the ultimate determination of such provisions is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax, deferred tax and other regulatory
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group's chief operating decision-maker reviews the
Group's internal reports periodically in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into four
main operating segments. They are (i) metal and plastic
business; (i) electronic manufacturing services business;
(i) consumer and services business and (iv) real estate
business.

Management considers the business from both a
geographic and products and services perspective. From a
products and services perspective, management assesses
the performance of metal and plastic business, electronic
manufacturing services business, consumer and services
business and real estate business. In addition, there is
further evaluation on a geographic basis (Japan, Hong
Kong, the PRC, Asia (excluding Japan, Hong Kong and the
PRC), North America and Western Europe). Management
assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on operating profit. Segment information provided to
management for decision making is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the financial statements.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and accordingly, no segment assets or
liabilities information is presented.

5 oEmE

$'§.§f BEARETHENAER 2 AL
W& ME%E KMo & J? B IR B LA % L 3R
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ EiE oy EL e

$&.L&ﬁ/l :liﬂJZ%?rk ABNAXFELE
S DRRNASBRBES: (VEFEERT
%i‘kv (iii ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁi&%%i‘k K (iv) =t 7 2
ir!%o

BEERR ERMRBcAEEREER-
EEEBREMERBZAEMELEBBES
EFEXERIEH BEEMRBEZHEE
WERB KRR -LEE—FAMESER (A
A-FR FE - TM(ABEAR - FERF
B) - B XM R PR RAE - BEEERBL SR
M hEEN e RE -RHTEEBRRALZ
DEEHMZAETNEMBREK —H -

DHEENBEBEZAEYETHREAETAKE
ZERERATERE Al IEZ2JNHHEE
HREER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

5  SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd) 5 2E®E#E
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2017 are BHE-_ZT—tHF=-A=1+—"BHBLFEZH&E*
as follows: BN
2017
“E-t%
Electronic
Metal and manufacturing ~ Consumer Real
plastic services and services estate
business business business business Total
Le¥R ETE% HEER B E
£% RIXB BEEER £% &t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Segment revenue 2EHBA
Reportable segment revenue BESBEA 1,487,929 1,256,973 18,802 4186 2,767,890
Inter-segment revenue - EL N (52,031) = = = (52,031)
Revenue from external customers KESMPEP 2 WA 1,435,898 1,256,973 18,802 4,186 2,715,859
Gross profit/(loss) 5,/ (£8) 282,048 81,240 (11,974) 3,231 354,545
Distribution and selling expenses and PHERHEBRAR—MRK
general and administrative expenses THER (114,814) (32,105) (9,697) (3,890) (160,506)
Other income/gains and (losses) Hig A/ sk (BE) 1,994 795 (13) 951 3,727
Net valuation gain on investment BRENERERRZTFE
properties - - - 1,358 1,358
Operating profit/(loss) BERH,/ (B8) 169,228 49,930 (21,684) 1,650 199,124
Operating profit/(loss) includes: "ERR/ (BB 8E:
Depreciation nE 51,191 3,089 3,763 145 58,188
Amortisation of land use rights TR # i 281 71 - 120 472
Amortisation of intangible assets BV AE 2 HIH 1,257 - 2,400 - 3,657
Write-down of obsolete and BREREHEFEEHA
slow-moving inventories 8,382 1,491 - - 9,873

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F [ i # ¢ 7 R 4 &



5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)

Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

5 o®mEE)

2016
—E-RF
Electronic
Metal and manufacturing Consumer Real
plastic services  and services estate
business business business business Total
hikax:d BFEX HEER FinE
£% RIZE®E REEES £% RS
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Segment revenue pin 1 ON
Reportable segment revenue BED KA 1,565,623 1,369,868 26,068 1536 2,963,095
Inter-segment revenue D ERRUA (65,490) = = = (65,490)
Revenue from external customers RENBER ZHA 1,500,133 1,369,868 26,068 1,536 2,897,605
Gross profit/(loss) R,/ (£8) 277,729 89,101 (16,511) 1,247 351,566
Distribution and selling expenses and NHEREEERAR MR
general and administrative expenses THRER (135,118) (34,218) (17,031) (1,147) (187,514)
Other income/gains and (losses) Hth A/ Wk (B8) 7,883 5,422 (16,254) 549 (2,400)
Net valuation loss on investment REMEHEBETE
properties - - - (11,281) (11,281)
Operating profit/(losses) s/ (BR) 150,494 60,305 (49,796) (10,632) 150,371
Operating profit/(losses) includes: meRi/ (BR)B8iE
Depreciation e 72,638 3,431 7,625 176 83,870
Amortisation of land use rights T fE R 424 187 = 9 620
Amortisation of intangible assets By EE B 1,143 - 2,400 - 3,543
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of ~ HREREREE
obsolete and slow-moving inventories MR (MR 2 B188) 7,081 (7,081) = = =
Recognition of allowance for impairment 2 5 & E i FEUUIR 505 B
of trade and other receivables BEZBER 3,220 = = = 3,220
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITHIR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Contd) 5 DEHE (&)
A reconciliation of operating profit to profit before KEBENHADERBANE NPT -
taxation is provided as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Operating profit £ 199,124 150,371
Finance income A 1,063 1,533
Finance costs B 7 kA (11,580) (16,039)
Share of profits of associates FEAR B & 2 =) A 247 294
Profit before taxation B 5 A a K 188,854 136,159

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue and (i) the
Group's land use rights, property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets and investments
in associates ("specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of revenue is based on the country

TRINFHARBHRE R 2 ()A K B2 WA K (i)
AEBzEIERE - VE BELERE RE
ME - BREEMRBERRZRE ([FEXIH
MBEE|)ZAEMRZER - WAFMEMR
REBEFEMNER R RBIEREPMIEBRR DA

" which the final destinati f ohi tis located ETERBEEMEMRZESD AT HMEA
Isr(]er\\:\i/cef aree rg]vaidedeS 'll'r;ae '0200 ras f:?crglerl]ocgtic?ncaoef tf?er BoNE RERRGEELEANKIBRERRE
specified noE curren;[ assetgs isg bgsed on the physical AHZEPOLE yuﬁéﬁﬁ/é?&ﬁ\ BB AR
. } . _ & H 2B b %
location of the asset, in the case of land use rights, ALRBARS L RIS -
property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and the location of the operations to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets and investments
in associates.
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMBEF ZWA EEFRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
“2-tF —T-RE “E-tF NS
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T Tr T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) E (Frfeit) 778,201 828,689 69,265 80,608
Japan =P 260,004 397,688 = =
The PRC H 744,756 854,398 724,125 735,145
Asia (excluding Japan, oM (TeEER.

Hong Kong and the PRC) BB RFE) 183,192 87,302 3,358 2,794
North America IEEM 351,899 370,674 10 10
Western Europe A 397,807 358,854 = =
Sub-total INEF 1,937,658 2,068,916 727,493 737,949

2,715,859 2,897,605 796,758 818,557

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % R 2 7]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A &SN - IAETLIIR)

5 SEGMENT REPORTING (Cont'd)

The Group's customer base includes three (2016: three)
customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group's revenue. For the year ended 31 March 2017,
the total revenue from sales of merchandise in the metal
and plastic business and electronic manufacturing services
business, including sales to entities which are known
to the group to be under common control with these
customers, amounted to approximately $2,253,045,000
(2016: $2,283,542,000) and arose in all geographical
regions in which the businesses are active. Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from these customers
are set out in note 3(a)(iii).

The Group’s sales are made primarily to a few key
customers. For the year ended 31 March 2017, the
revenue derived from five largest customers accounted
for approximately 93% (2016: 91%) of the Group's total
revenue.

5 o®mEE)

AEBEZZ(ZE—RF Z)BPZR S
EBBAEBRVAZION BE_ZT—+F
A=+t HLEFE REHERLSBRBREY
NEFEERIEB 2BEMIBA (BERBR
AREBMMZIZERFPEARZEN ZERZ
tHEEE) 49 /52,253,045,000T (ZF — N F:
2,283,542,000L) TR EBEKEZR A
WEEEA BRSRFELEZEERRET
B E YA FE3(@)(ii) °

AEBZHETERALEBRREFEK &
BT +F=ZA=+—HIEE - WAKE
ARBFMEAEBBEWBALIZ% (ZT—RF:
91% ) °

6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6 TiFERRE
2017 2016
—E—+1F —E—REF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Net book amount at the beginning FYIREFE
of the year 17,607 24,072
Amortisation charged to cost of sales BT ASHE AR (472) (620)
Transfer to property under development EREELERYE
for sale - (5,038)
Transfer to completed property held for sale 88 = £FH Y% - (807)
Net book amount at the end of the year FRIREFE 17,135 17,607
Cost PR AN 23,614 23,614
Accumulated amortisation RET (6,479) (6,007)
Net book amount at end of the year FRIREFE 17,135 17,607

The land use rights located in the PRC are held under lease
terms of 50 years expiring in April 2043 to October 2055.

RERz T EREDREAHA+FE (IR
—EN=FNMAE_ZERRETAIL) 2 THE
REmMEA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 4 #

219



Notes to the Financial Statements

LS &
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7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 VX -HBERRHE

Furniture and

Machinery computer equipment

HE GRREKRE
Fixtures and

Leasehold Construction-  leasehold Tools and
land  Buildings in-progress improvement Owned Leased  equipment Owned Leased Total

ZER

ARLH BF ERIE MREE B g IARRE B i af
§/000 §000 $/000 §/000 §000 §000 §/000 §/000 §000 §000
T T Fr T T T T T T T

Cost: HA:

At 1 April 2016 —Z-X¥BA-H 1,663 328,704 289 85,612 464,902 23,650 26,713 83,916 - 1,015,449
Additions RE - - 292 12,584 32,864 - 7761 9,726 142 63,369
Disposals LE - - - (28) (22,751) - (1,981) (2,430) - (27,190)
Exchange adjustments HEER - - = (390) (13,191) = (1,327) (2,950) - (17,858)
Transfer b - - - - 23,650 (23,650) - = - -
At 31 March 2017 —2—+£=R=1-H 1,663 328,704 581 97,778 485,474 - 31,166 88,262 142 1,033,770
Accumulated depreciation, ZiRE BHR

amortisation and AEFS:

impairment losses:

At1 Aprl 2016 -7 ERA-R 817 52,236 - 50367 34 1320 2359 63483 - 54939
Charge for the year EENR 2 6,871 - 8,551 21,799 4,618 2,001 8,306 14 58188
Written back on disposals HEZHE - = = (18)  (22,645) - (1,912) (2.416) - (26,991)
Exchange adjustments REHE - - - (218) (7,985) - (980) (2,200 - (11,383)
Transfer a2 - - - - 17,888 (17,888) - - - -
At 31 March 2017 “Z—+¥=f=t-H 845 59,107 - 58682 387,504 - 21,468 67,133 14 594753
Net book value: RERE:

At31 March 2017 e o 818 269,597 581 390% 97970 - 9698 21,129 128 439017
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the directors BE_ZT—+tF="A=1+—HLEFERN E=F
conducted a review of the Group's property, plant and EHAREEZYE BERREETERILH
equipment and no impairment indication was identified REHNBRE(ZE—A"F - CHERARNESE
(2016: Impairment loss of $13,129,000 was recognised). 13,129,0007T) °
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g N N
7  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 YE - BERSKE#H
(Cont’d)
Machinery
e
Fixtures and Furniture and
Leasehold Construction- leasehold Tools and computer
land Buildings in-progress  improvement Owned Leased equipment equipment Total
2ER FiLR
HELH B¥ EEIR nERE BR ME IEREE BB A
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr i Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost: RA:
At 1 April 2015 “Z-nEMA-A 1,663 214,025 143,929 149,382 443,390 23,650 28,824 85,899 1,090,762
Additions nE = 8,589 46,250 12,376 42,356 = 1,293 10,219 121,083
Disposals HE - (588) - (28,199 (12,667) - (2,545) (10,212) (54,211)
Exchange adjustments HmRE - - = (557) (8177) = (859) (2,149) (11,742)
Transfer Bl - 184,269 (189,890) 5,462 - - - 159 -
Transfer to property under ~ BEEFAERNE
development for sale - (75,168) - (52,852) - - - - (128,020)
Transfer to completed EREEINE
property held for sale - (2,423) - - - - - - (2,423)
At 31 March 2016 —E- f=fA=t+-A 1,663 328,704 289 85,612 464,902 23,650 26,713 83916 1,015,449
Accumulated depreciation, ZHTE  ##R
amortisation and HEFE:
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2015 —Z-n§mA-A 790 83,942 = 87,533 362,025 8,065 22,105 62,110 626,570
Charge for the year FENKR 27 23,388 = 18,200 27,979 5,205 1,643 7428 83,870
Written back on disposals HEZHE = (588) = (19,212) (12,463) = (916) (8,515) (41,694)
Exchange adjustments HmAE - - - (144) (5,094) - (659) (1,530) (7,427)
Transfer =2 - = = (158) = = = 158 =
Transfer to property under ~ BEEFAERNE
development for sale - (53,997) - (45,003) - - - - (99,000)
Transfer to completed EREHINE
property held for sale - (509) - - - - - - (509)
Impairment losses HEER - - - 9,151 - - 186 3,792 13,129
At 31 March 2016 —E-REZA=+-AH 817 52,236 - 50,367 372,447 13,270 22,359 63,443 574,939
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2016 “Z-AFzZA=t-H 846 276,468 289 35,245 92,455 10,380 4,354 20,473 440,510
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont’d)

Depreciation expense of $52,470,000 (2016:
$77,865,000) and $5,718,000 (2016: $6,005,000)
has been charged to cost of sales and general and
administrative expenses, respectively.

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and buildings at
their net book values are analysed as follows:

7 WE -BERRE#®)

WEEMH$52,470,0007m (= 7N
77,865,000t ) 5,718,000t ( = T E
6,005,0007T) D A FF ASEHEK A K — ﬁx TR
BH -

ZK%@Efﬂﬁifm&%?ZT HIRHEREFE
SR i/

2017 2016
—E-tHF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
Fx Frr
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, R&##FA 2SN

held on leases between 10 to 50 years EF10250F 2 HBE 2,293 2,398

Buildings in the PRC, held on leases R EFEEFI10E50F 82
between 10 to 50 years HE 268,122 274,916
270,415 277,314

Property, plant and equipment held under finance
leases

At 31 March 2017, the net book value of property, plant
and equipment held under finance leases was $128,000
(2016: $10,380,000). There were additions of $142,000
(2016: $nil) to furniture and computer equipment held
under finance leases during the year ended 31 March
2017.

Sale and leaseback transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group entered
into a sale and leaseback transaction on certain machinery.
A disposal gain of $1,803,000 has been deferred and
amortised over the lease term of three years. At 31 March
2017, the deferred revenue amounted to $nil (31 March
2016: $515,000). Amortisation of deferred revenue of
$515,000 has been recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2017(2016: $619,000).

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % R 2 7]
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R_E—tF=ZA=Z+—HBH A5ERERE
BEZYE BERZEIIREFER128,0007T
(ZZE—7%:10,380,0007T) - BHE-T—+
FZAZ+—BLEFR AEREHEEAEZR
MR EIEHRE 142,000 (ZE—RNE &) o

ERERXRS

HE-_ZT-—NF=ZA=+—BLEFR K&
EpE THEBITIVEAEALDRIZ -BE R
1,803,000t R =FHEHRNELEREH -1 =
T—+HE=ZA=+—"H ERETRA(ZZT—X
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IEFFR RIBESERZEEELE WA A515,000
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 KREWXE
2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—REF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Beginning of the year F9 316,800 336,250
Additions nNE 2,092 5,181
Exchange differences HZER (18,540) (13,350)
Fair value adjustment NEERAE 1,358 (11,281)
End of the year FK 301,710 316,800

The investment properties are under construction and
located in the PRC under lease terms of 40 years expiring
in August 2050 to January 2051.

Fair value measurement of properties
0 Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, the fair value
measurement of the Group’s investment properties is
categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

EFBEZERTERENENIRESHE+F (R
ZERTFNAEZTSR—F-ANBZHE
Hm#EH -

Wz AT EH B
() AFEER

RZE—+tF=ZA=+—BERZZE—X F=
A=+—RB AEEREMEZ AT EIFERK
ERUBRELELNFZ 3R [AFEBEFEIZFE
EoPBAFE-EBATERER-

BE-_Z—+tERk-FT—R"EF=H=+—81t
FERN FHE_ERAZATESE ME=
BARMEE T NE A - REB 2 BURER S H
RAERRAFEBREZEEZEHRE-
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair value measurement of properties (Cont’d)
() Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

The valuation of the Group's investment properties as at
31 March 2017 was conducted by RHL Appraisal Limited,
an independent professional valuer, which has among its
staff members of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The
investment properties were valued on the basis that it
would be developed and completed in accordance with
the Group's latest development proposals. In arriving at
the fair value, direct comparison approach by making
reference to the comparable sales transactions as available
in the relevant market was adopted. And it had taken into
account the construction costs that would be incurred
to complete the development to reflect the quality of
the completed development. The Chief Financial Officer
has discussion with the independent professional valuer
in the valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “net valuation gain/(loss) on
investment properties” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

224  Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7 B J* # J§ # IR 4 5]
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contd) 8 BREWE &)
Fair value measurement of properties (Cont'd) MEZAFETE(E)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements ()  FEHE=ERLFETEZEN
Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs Range
fRERKRI TAIBE @A fhat €8 E
Investment properties —Investment Market comparison Discount rate on quality and
properties in the PRC approach location of the properties 5-10%
REME-NHPBEZREDHE M5 L EUE BFEENME ZBLIR
9  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 BFEEE
Operating Computer
rights Goodwill software Total
ReE GRS BB &t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Cost: AR
At 1 April 2015 “Z-RFWNA—H 24,000 1,091 8,873 33,964
Additions NE = = 3,396 3,396
At 31 March 2016 —E-RF=A=+—H 24,000 1,091 12,269 37,360

Accumulated amortisation: 2T

At 1 April 2015 “E—hFMA—H (5,400) - - (5,400)
Charge for the year FE Nk (2,400) = (1,143) (3,543)
At 31 March 2016 —E—-X"H¥=R=+—H (7,800) - (1,143) (8,943)
Net Book value: W T8 B
At 31 March 2016 —ZE—-XRE=R=+—H 16,200 1,091 11,126 28,417
Cost: A :
At 1 April 2016 and ZE-RFmA-AR

31 March 2017 —ET—+H=A=+—H 24,000 1,091 12,269 37,360

Accumulated amortisation: Rt #:

At 1 April 2016 —Z—RFEMA—H (7,800) - (1,143) (8,943)
Charge for the year FENk (2,400) = (1,257) (3,657)
At 31 March 2017 —Z—+H=R=+—H (10,200) - (2,400) (12,600)
Net Book value: R T FE

At 31 March 2017 —Z—+HF=F=+—H 13,800 1,091 9,869 24,760
Amortisation of $3,657,000 (2016: $3,543,000) was 3,657,000c 2 #3H ( = F — /4% : 3,543,000
included in general and administrative expenses in the T)BEREEReERRT - RETHER -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

Operating rights represent the rights to use the trademark
“Fullhouse” for the restaurant business in the PRC and
South East Asia. Goodwill arose from the acquisition of
the Fullhouse Group and is allocated to the restaurant
business, which is an identified cash-generating unit
within the consumer and services business segment.
Management determines the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit of the restaurant business to conduct
an impairment assessment of goodwill and operating
rights.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period for the restaurant business. Cash flows
beyond the period covered in approved budgets are
extrapolated using the key assumptions stated below.
The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average
growth rates for the business in which the cash-generating
units operate. The discount rates used reflect specific risks
relating to the restaurant business within the consumer
and services business segment.

9 HEEEE@#

LR KX FIEA [Fullhouse | 2 BB K&
REDREEREB 2EM - 8% EFullhouse
SEELAZBHE PERERXT HASHEE
ENRBEEGOBRNZACELEM - EEE
BErEREScReEL BNz KOS
B E R EEEETRERR-

BeEEETZAREREEREENE
AETANARBEEBHECEREBOLF
MM RBEEZHRAMRERETRD - BBZAFH
ZHEERERAUTEAERRELHEE %G
RENBARCELETREZEBZRYF
ERRER-PRERRNEEERREXXEHD
Mz EREB2RHKRER -

2017 2016
“E-t#F ZT-RE

The PRC Hong Kong Malaysia The PRC Hong Kong Malaysia

HE &k BRAEE e B SRAEE

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

1 1 1 T 5 T

Budgeted gross margin BEERER 17% 17% 14% 17% 14% 17%
Growth rate used to extrapolate b ERBTES B

cashflows beyond budget period LR ERE 2% 3% 2% 2% 3% 3%

Pre-tax discount rate HAIA R % 16.64% 15.53% 12.77% 2092% 16.04% 11.96%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for market
development. Gross margin represents revenues less
directly attributable costs of operating restaurant business.
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
higher than its carrying amount, including goodwill and
operating rights, based on value-in-use calculations.
Accordingly, no impairment was recognised in respect of
the restaurant business cash-generating unit during the
years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % IR 2 7]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

10 SUBSIDIARIES 10 MIEBLF
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as KRR _E—+EF=A=T—HBFEWER
at 31 March 2017 are: CIP&-¢=

Place of incorporation/

establishment and Principal activities and Particulars of issued/
Name types of legal entity place of operation paid-up capital Interest held
2 RILBHR
B EEEERR TEXBREERH BRT/BHRE BHEE
Karrie Industrial Company Limited Hong Kong, Sale of server casings, office automation products, ~ Ordinary shares of $1,000 100%
limited liability company visual accessories, plastic and metal parts, Non-voting deferred shares

metal stamping dies and plastic injection moulds of $5,000,000 (i)
and provision of management services,

Hong Kong
EHNERBERAA BEERELEAT HERRBIR BRAEXEER FRAMT &3#AR1,0007
EBREBH # SEHBRARIERAR BRRERTR
REERRY BB 5,000,0007C(i)
Karrie Technologies Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, Manufacturing and sales of plastic parts, sales of Ordinary shares of 100%

limited liability company metal stamping dies and plastic injection moulds, $30,000,000
provision of electronic manufacturing services and
investment hoIdings Hong Kong
EHRFBRBERRA BEERELEAT HERHELRHN HELBAERAIER ZiBR30,000,0007
L ME%E%%KIW%&&J%HX B

Karwin Engineering Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, Design, manufacture and sale of server casings, office  Ordinary shares of $10 100%
limited liability company automation products and visual accessories; sale of ~ Non-voting deferred shares
plastic and metal parts, metal stamping dies, plastic ~ of $100 (i)
injection moulds and investment holdings,
Hong Kong
FEEBIRERR BEERELEAT Rt BERHERRBIR PRAENEERLY TRRI0T
RAH HELBREBHM SBHEEA T ERZEETRI007T)
BERARKREER BE

REEHEREBRERA The PRC, Manufacture of server casings, office automation Paid-up capital 100%
limited liability company products and metal parts, the PRC $72,000,000 (i)
FEBREEAT HERRBIR BRAEXBEERR B 81 772,000,0007T (i)
SEBM PE
RERHERBEBRSERA The PRC, Manufacture of server casings, Paid-up capital 100%
limited liability company office automation products, visual accessories, $45,000,000 (iii)

moulds and plastic parts; provision of
electronic manufacturing services, the PRC

FEERETAR HEMRENF BRENEER FRMAM HA BEHER45,000,0007T(i)
REBBY RASTFEERIRE +E
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

10 SUBSIDIARIES (Conta)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

10 KMIEBAT (&)

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued/

Name types of legal entity place of operation paid-up capital Interest held
HZM/ Bt SR
A% EEEEER TEERREELY BRIT/EHRE BEEE
RERBETEEXARAA The PRC, Property holding, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
limited liability company $335,123,306 (iv)
FEAREEAA BEDR E B #4%335,123 3067 (v)
FREAEEAEREERAF The PRC, Property development and management, Paid-up capital 100%
limited liability company the PRC US$20,000,000 (v)
FEERETAR MERRRER TE B 41& 420,000,000 7T(v)
REmEERERREEBRATF The PRC, Operation of restaurants, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
limited liability company $10,000,000 (vi)
FEEREFAR BREE 1H 2 4& 7510,000,0007T (vi)
FREFEEERDA The PRC, Property holding, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
limited liability company US$16,000,000 (vii)
TREREEAR RENE TH B 514 7516,000,000% 7T (vii)
RERbEHEREARAR The PRC, Property development, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
limited liability company US$22,500,000 (viii)
FEEREFAR WEER TE B #1& 422,500,000 7T viii)
REMEREEERAT The PRC, Property trading and management, the PRC Paid-up capital 100%
limited liability company RMB1,000,000 (ix)
FEEREFAR NEBHRER TH EHER

228  Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7 B J* # & # IR 4 5
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Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx R A SN LABTTHIR)

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group.
These shares have no voting rights, are not entitled to
dividends, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding
up unless a sum of $200,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the relevant companies to holders of the ordinary shares.

REREBRELZBRASBMR AT is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
15 years up to 19 May 2026.

FERAERRLEBALBMR AT is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
15 years up to 24 May 2026.

HERTETEEXAMRAF is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
25 years up to 18 February 2030.

HEZMEBEANEREZEGR AR is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
40 years up to 2 December 2049.

REEmEHRBERKREER AR is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
15 years up to 17 September 2029.

HEG¥EEARAF s a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
established in the PRC with an operating period of 40 years
up to 22 March 2051.

REEsAlE M EMEFR A Fs a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with an operating period of
20 years up to 17 September 2033.

HEMzHEEXAMRAF is a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise established in the PRC with a long-term operating
period.

= -
O

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

LI=PNGIRE D)

EIRERECERO L IEEANEBAES - LSRG
EIRERE NEESZRE -BRIFBBEARTERR
) L 3 3 AR SRR 2% 2 4B KB B #8200,000,000,0007T
LBRIZEROHBEES ZEMDIK-

HEBEEEERASERAR N —RPBEKTE
BMANELE HEEHBRATRFE RZTZX
FRATNABER-

R EELEBRASERAR N —RPBEKT 2
BMANELE HEEHBRATRFE RN
FRAZ+THEBER-

REREEFEEERAA N RPBERIEERE
BIMNERE HEXHRA/-+RFE RZB=FF
—RA+NBER-

BEEEMNEEAERBEAERAR N —RPERIE
BHRANELE HLEHPRAN+TE R-TMA
F+-_A-HEH-

REREERERRBERRA I —RHBERIE
BHANELE HEXPRATRFE RN-Z2-h
FAA+EREM-

HEGFBEERAB I —RABEKLIEZERF I
B HEEHMBRAN+FE KRR —F=A
“t+ZHE®-
RERAEHEREERAR NI -—RPBEKLEE
BENELE HEEHRA-TF RZT==F
hA+tBE®R-

RETRREEARAR N - RPBEXRI2EHES
INEDE HEXHR AR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 548 &SN - IABITHIR)

11  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 11 REZEQATZRE
2017 2016
—E—+1fF —E—REF
$'000 $'000
SPoE Tt
Share of net assets EHREESRE
Beginning of the year F1] 15,223 30,737
Capital injection AE 2,131 1,080
Share of profits of associates JEAG B & A B0 A 247 294
Impairment losses VERENSEi! (2,490) -
Disposal & = (16,261)
Exchange difference HirER (975) (627)
End of the year FIE 14,136 15,223
Balances with an associate S N Tzt
Amounts due to an associate (note 36) JE - B 2 A AR F0 (BT EE36) 2,992 6,741

During the year ended 31 March 2017, management
conducted an impairment assessment of the recoverability
of the investment in ERBZEHKBARBEROHEBRA
A]. Accordingly, impairment losses of $2,490,000 (2016:
$nil) had been recognised to write down the net carrying
amounts of the investment to $14,136,000.

The outstanding balances due to an associate are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, and
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Particulars of the material associate of the Group is as

follows:

HE_Z—+F=ZA=Z+—HLFERN BTEE
HEERERRBRERSARERNDBR AR Z
A E e EETRAEN G Al S ERBEE
$82,490,0007C (=T —RF : ) UAMURZIEE
Z WREFEZE 14,136,000 °

A% L B

PERBIRHARBEERMN ZRRSEET
TEHFLE

CWEBREBEE MABTREMN-
AEEBBSEBREARZHMABRAT

Proportion of
ownership interest

BEERLA
Place of incorporation/ Principal activities Particulars of Group's
establishment and and place issued and effective Held by a
Name of associate types of legal entity of operation paid up capital interest subsidiary
AR B K A
BENEARE EEREER TEXBREELE BB/ EHAREK AEEES NCESEC]
BREEMBARBRMBAERRLDE  The PRC, Research, sales of industrial Ordinary shares of 30% 30%
("Cuifeng”) limited liability company robots and robot peripheral RMB10,000,000
automation equipment,
and provision of
automation solution,
the PRC
BRBERBANMBROERAF +HEERELRA MR HEIERRIAKR ERRARE 30% 30%
([Rg]) BEABREBRE R 10,000,0007T

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F [ B # & 7 R 4 &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 38 &SN - IAETLIIR)

11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd) 11 REEQXRZRE #)
Cuifeng is a quoted corporate entity on the National BERPEARAMBEANEEROEERS
Equities Exchange and Quotations of the PRC whose B WREMISWE -

qguoted market price is not available.

Summarised financial information below represents UTHETEES RERAEZEZERAER
amount shown in the material associates adjusted by SEERERN KAEERABRZERBEAQT
the Group for equity accounting purposes and before ZEH:

adjustments for the Group's effective share:

Cuifeng
2l
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZT—RF
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Gross amounts of the associate BEQNTZHAEE
Current assets mENEE 32,580 18,833
Non-current assets JEMBNEE 1,519 1,435
Current liabilities nEBE (8,203) (1,208)
Net assets/equity BE/twFE 25,896 19,060
Revenue A 27,179 29,637
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations SECEEB BT (F518) 824 (303)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2mEMWAEEE 824 (303)
Reconciled to the Group's interests R EREEREE
in the associate DR 2R
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate B4 QT 2 FEFE4E 25,896 19,060
Fair value adjustments on identifiable intangible U 8% 71 8838 2 7] ¥ uﬂﬁﬁ/ﬁ%
assets upon acquisition N EAE 29,719 31,560
Capital injection by the Group KEETE (13,560) (14,400)
42,055 36,220
Group's effective interest REBE 2 ER#ER 30% 30%
Group's share of net assets of the associate ~ ANEE BB L AR EEFE 12,616 10,866
Goodwill kS 4,010 4,258
Impairment losses VERENSEi=! (2,490)
Carrying amount in the consolidated RERE W B mERFIREE
financial statements 14,136 15,124
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

11 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd) 11 REBEARZRE(#)
Aggregate information of associates that are not BRI FEERBE T 2EFTER:

individually material:

2017 2016
—E—tHF ZT—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Aggregate carrying amount of individually e BmETEBIZEEXR
immaterial associates in the consolidated BERNRZAEIREEB
financial statements - 99
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share AEBEEEZEBHE AT 2
of those associates’: et
Profit from continuing operations REFBREEBZHA - 385
Total comprehensive income FEHKABE - 385
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A &SN - IAETLIIR)

12 INTERESTS IN A JOINT OPERATION
IN RESPECT OF PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT

On 1 August 2016, the Group entered into a cooperation
agreement (the “Agreement”) with Kar Info International
Property Limited (“Kar Info”), a related company of the
Group, regarding a real estate development project (the
“Project”) in the PRC. In the Agreement, an area of land
held by REMRMBEKEDRBMR A A (the “Project
Company”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Kar Info),
would be used for construction of residential suites and
public amenities. The Group agreed to participate in the
Project by making an investment in the amount of $140
million in consideration to Kar Info of it being entitled to
a share of profit to be gained from the Project through
selling the properties to external customers in the future.
The transaction contemplated under the Agreement
constitutes a connected transaction under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The details of the joint operation is as
follows:

12 RERYERRZBESLEE RS

RZE-—RNENA—B XEBGREBARF
FHEMBEIEE ([ZEB])BAEERBERA
Kar Info International Property Limited ([Kar
Info DT atEmaE ([&E]) - RZih=
N BAREMEMEEKERARAR ([1EEB
AR Kar Infoz 2 EWBARBEZ—BL
WEARRETEERERAHFRM -AEERE
# % 140,000,000t fE B ff FKar Infoz KB
LEZER  UHSZARBBRAIIBEFHEZ
EMEMBZBEEG AN -BREFHHRAUE
T4AE  ZHEE N RET IR S EK —HRE
R -BRABEEEZFHBOT:

Expected

Total completion

gross floor area date

Location Land Use (m?)  (calendar year)
vE HEEEER 2 BEERIBH
T AR (FAK) (B%)

Phase 3, Castfast Villas, THEERERED Residential 61,730 2018/2019
Fengang Town, Dongguan City, BHEERRE=H FE -0/
Guangdong Province, the PRC —T-NE

The Group's assets held in relation to the joint operation
include the investment cost contributed by the Group and
the related construction costs capitalised. The balance is
shown on the consolidated statement of financial position
as property development (note 17). As at 31 March
2017, total property development in respect of the joint
operation was $207 million (2016: $nil).

As at 31 March 2017, there is an amount due to the
Project Company in relation to the joint operation
amounting to $65,067,000 which is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and with no fixed repayment terms (2016:

$nil).

AEERBHAEERBECEERRASE A
ZIEERAREAR 2 BARERAR - AR ER
EHBRRERPIEDEZTRE (MF17) R
T—+FZAZ+— B BFHMBMALEZMES
[ 4258 4207,000,0000 (ZZFE—/RF ) o

R-ZE—+F=ZA=+—H HBAEEEENE
H AR Z 865,067,000 T AEIKE - 15+ 5] 2
NMEBRTFTENERE (T —NFE)o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 13 RERS2EZERMIA
CATEGORIES
Available-for-sale
Loans and receivables financial assets Total
EFRERIRR THHESRHEE as
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tfF TR E “E-tf NS —E-tf ZT-RE
$/000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Fr T T
Assets BE
Trade, bills and other receivables &5+ Z 1% K H & IR 3
(note 14) (Btzx14) 368,078 378,408 - - 368,078 378,408
Prepayments (note 14) B (HE14) 14,479 35,760 = = 14,479 35,760
Deposits (note 14) & (Hi14) 55,310 52,356 = = 55,310 52,356
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AIft HELREE
(note 15) (HizE15) - = 18,597 18,393 18,597 18,393
Cash and bank deposits (note 18) & KR/ (Hi318) 215,363 276,541 - - 215,363 276,541
653,230 743,065 18,597 18,393 671,827 761,458
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E-RF
$'000 $'000
T Tz
Liabilities =i
Trade payables, accruals and other payables & 5B IRFK - BT E A &

(note 22) E MR (Mi5E22) 545,874 543,648
Bank borrowings (note 24) RITIEE (MiFE24) 539,800 391,806
Obligations under finance leases (note 23) BEME A (HF23) 128 6,848
Amounts due to an associate (note 11) JEEE & R AR (BFFE11) 2,992 6,741
Amount due to a related company (note 12) B BE R FIRK (M:E12) 65,067 =

1,153,861 949,043

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F [ B # & 7 R 4 &
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Fx R A SN LABTTHIR)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

14

EZREBRVIRR AN EE
K EL At BE W2 e 3R

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Trade and bills receivable B REERIIIKRZR 325,134 333,342
Other receivables H b R UL IR 5K 46,965 49,087
372,099 382,429
Less: Allowance for impairment of BB 5 BIR &AM R
trade, bills and other receivables VRIS (4,021) (4,021)
368,078 378,408
Prepayments SEER T 14,479 35,760
Deposits b 55,310 52,356
437,867 466,524
Less: Other non-current assets (Note) B B IERENE E (MIEE) (36,676) (84,738)
401,191 381,786
Representing: Rk
Trade and bills receivable, net of allowance B 5 REERIIRR - MR E 321,113 329,321
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables, FEfT 7K« & & & E b E UK bR 3¢ -
net of allowance Bk B 80,078 52,465
401,191 381,786

Note:

Other non-current assets represent deposits paid for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately $17,014,000 (2016: $43,858,000), a
government grant receivable from Jiangsu Yixing Economic
Development Zone Investment and Development Company
Limited amounted to approximately $19,662,000 (2016:
$20,880,000) in relation to the acquisition of a piece of land
in Yixing, Jiangsu, the PRC in 2010. At 31 March 2016, there
was a prepaid investment cost to Kar Info, a related company
of the Group, in connection with a property development
project in Fenggang, Dongguan, the PRC, amounted to
approximately $20,000,000, such prepaid investment cost
was reclassified into property under development for sale
upon commencement of the joint operation during the year
ended 31 March 2017.

HthERBEERKRBEEDE BELERB2EN
& & R#/517,014,0005T ( == —7X 1 43,858,000
T REBR_Z—ZEFRPEIHTEKE T
BUIHEREEREEREERER AR ZBN
A& 519,662,0007T ( —=ZF—75 20,880,000
) RZE—A"FE=ZA=1+—H0 EERHIER=
BENEFEREEREZENTAEE@ELR
Kar Info International Property Limited 2 & £ 5849
/320,000,000t REBE=T—tF=A=+—H1t
FEN ZBNREFAMBESEEEMAER
L EEmE-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The Group generally grants credit periods ranging from
30 to 90 days, except for one of the customers who is
granted a credit period of 150 days. An ageing analysis of
trade, bills and other receivables, based on invoice date, is
as follows:

14 EBSREREWIR MK &S
K H At FEWBR R (&)

BEP-UEPZHEHA/IS0AN REB—KR
MTEFPZEHHIOEEIOR -BEH FEMH
IR IR ER B E 2k DT a0 T

2017 2016

—E—tfF —E—RF

$'000 $'000

SFoe Tt

0 to 90 days 0%£90H 333,045 373,075
91 to 180 days 912 180H 31,687 8,614
181 to 360 days 181£360H 4,196 733
Over 360 days 360H A E 3,171 7
372,099 382,429

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivable,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables approximate
their fair values.

The receivables are expected to be recovered within one
year. Any amounts not expected to be recovered within
one year are not included in current assets.

Movement in the allowance for impairment of trade, bills
and other receivables is as follows:

BIRFRHERKIRR ANR e REMBEK
IR ZIREERE N FEMELT-

ZUERBIRRBRE - FAKRE  TAEEBEH
TeE—FARDUITBERRDEENRN -

n

\
/

25 ERLAEMEBIRFRERE ZZH I

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

$'000 $'000

Fi FI

Beginning of the year F9 4,021 801
Recognition of allowance for impairment BB TR (F1aE28)

(note 28) - 3,220

End of the year FIK 4,021 4,021
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A &SN - IAETLIIR)

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE,
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The recognition of allowance for impaired receivables is
included in general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. At 31 March
2017, the Group’s trade, bills and other receivables
of $4,021,000 (2016: $4,021,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that the amounts
are not expected to be fully recoverable. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debt of $4,021,000 (2016:
$4,021,000) were recognised.

At 31 March 2017, trade and bills receivable of
$42,777,000 (2016: $30,894,000) was past due but
not impaired. These relates to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in the
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The ageing of this trade and bills receivable,
based on due date, is as follows:

14 EBSREREWIR MK &S
K H At FEWBR R (&)

HERBERKIERERZBRELEN GRS ER
KPR —RETHREBR - R _Z—+&F=ZA=+—
H AEBZES EBEREMERIRRD B A
4,021,000 ( =& — X% :4,021,0007T) )3
& 51 728 € 1% TR E o B Bl 2 5 B FE YR R EE B B
BR#$E2ZFER mMEREBTHEHESEES
Tee2gkbE -Ei EMREEREEEES
4,021,0007T (=& — 754 :4,021,0007T) °

R-ZE—tF=A=+—RH BZEEBRWKIEK
M R42,777,0007T (ZF — 75 30,894,000
TT)REBRELERE - LLFRBS RS EE
REBRFZBIRF ERERBEAELR
MEZRAEFERERGE ARNEEERRE
ERBENZFBENRERAIZ2HEO -BFRE
BERUKIRRIRIMEAEZRESTOT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—REF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

1 to 90 days 1290H 39,083 29,733
91 to 180 days 91£180H 3,593 1,161
181 days to 360 days 181£2360H 101 -
42,777 30,894

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying value of trade and bills
receivable, deposits and other receivables stated above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The credit quality of the Group's trade and bills receivable,
deposits and other receivables that are past due but not
impaired has been assessed by reference to the historical
information about counterparty default rates. The existing
counterparties do not have significant defaults in the past.

RBEHR EERARZERAERLAES R
SREWIRSK ReREMERKIRR ZREE-
AEERBRATAERERZEAR -

REBEFEFPHBRE HAKETC 2 HM = KR
B2EZNEBREIIRT R K HE MR YIRS
ZEEERFELTE BRZEPEBEREE
R ZHBR G0 8E °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 58 &SN - IAUBITTHIR)

15 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 15 A#HESREE
ASSETS
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Equity securities — Hong Kong (unlisted) EnEH-E8 (FEL™) 303 504
Key management insurance contracts BEZEEERREHN
(unlisted investments) (ELmHE) 18,294 17,889
18,597 18,393
At 31 March 2017, the insurance contracts represented RZE—LEtF=ZA=Z+—"H ZRBEYAE

life insurance plans with investment elements relating to a
key management personnel of the Group. The total sum ZANERE
insured is US$4,681,000 (approximately $36,278,000)
(2016: US$4,681,000 (approximately $36,278,000)), with
an annual minimum guaranteed return of 2% to 4.2% for
the first 10 years and 2% for the years afterwards.

36,278,00075) (==

At 31 March 2017, if the Group terminated the insurance RZE—LtF=A=+—8"
contract, the account value, net of a surrender charge Z 1% a8 Rk
of US$2,002,000 (approximately $15,516,000) (2016:
US$1,921,000 (approximately $14,887,000)), would be

AEE— %EEMEJ\?—\Zﬁ&iﬁﬁZﬁ
4 IR E A4,681,000%E 7T (4
— 7N 4,681,000 7T
(#936,278,0007T) ) ' B T F R ERFRE R =X
BEFE2%EA2% REBEE2% °

EAREEKIE

Y IRFIBRERERRE A
2,002,000%73(,%’315,516,00073) (ZZE—R
% :1,921,000% 70 (#714,887,0007T) )%%{L

refunded to the Group. The amount of surrender charge Bl FAKE - RRWEBEREMRDRR&ZE A
decreases over time and is no longer required from the BERETNFRTAYRE -
19th year of contract conclusion onwards.
16 INVENTORIES 16 T?‘Ef
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) GEVBERRRZ2FERE:
financial position comprise:
2017 2016
—ZE—tF AN
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Raw materials JRF 122,744 112,170
Work-in-progress FBIAK M 37,374 49,608
Finished goods SR o 224,765 188,806
384,883 350,584

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F [ B # & 7 R 4 &



Notes to the Financial Statements

L E &3

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A &SN - IAETLIIR)

16 INVENTORIES (Cont’d)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in “cost of
sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

16 =FE(#)

(b)y HFEZEWOHEIA/ILNMEBENES
BRRAMEEXRN] DM :

is as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZIREE 2,013,656 2,125,294
Write-down of inventories FE Z MR 9,873 7,081
Reversal of write-down of inventories FE Z#MUR 2 Bl — (7,081)
2,023,529 2,125,294

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior
years arose due to an increase in the estimated net
realisable value of certain inventories as a result of a
change in consumer preferences.

MHFEZ FEREL B EEREARES
HRLES Y BT HEMIENE TR b

A B -

17 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 17 YIXRBRE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Property under development for sale FhERmME 435,013 143,709
Completed property held for sale SRR /ES 44,798 2,433
479,811 146,142

(a) The analysis of carrying value of land held for
property development for sale is as follows:

(a) HFAVEZEERLWZIREFESTOT:

2017 2016
—E—tF NS
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Outside Hong Kong TEBR B LA
— Less than 50 years —VRAE+F 85,749 69,002
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17 PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (Cont'd)

(b)  The analysis of the amount of properties recognised
as an expense and included in “cost of sales” in the

17 YEER(#)

(b) %%Z%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁw%iﬁ&ﬂ FL%E
SERERANHEKAR] (Mi328)5 WZZD

consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 28) is ™~
as follows:
2017 2016
— B+ —E—RF
$'000 $'000
SEoE Tz
Carrying amount of properties sold EEMEZIREE 955 288

18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

18 BERBITER

2017 2016
—E—+1fF —E-RF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Cash at bank and in hand BRITFEREEE 206,137 159,404
Time deposits FHAFER 9,226 117,137
Cash and bank deposits in the RESUBRARZRE R
consolidated statement of financial position RITFER 215,363 276,541
19 SHARE CAPITAL 19 K&
2017 2016
—E—t& “—E-RE
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
g E (iRl B8 E [EE
'000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
5 T T T
Authorised: EERAE:
Ordinary shares of HK$10 cents each & @k & AR EE 10751 4,000,000 400,000 4,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREMERE:
Ordinary shares of HK$10 cents each 3@ &R EE 1078l 1,996,196 199,620 1,996,196 199,620
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive EERBEAEAERKEBRTEERZRE WEA
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled EXRABRERGELEBR—B2REHE-FTA
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All TERMOEARABRTEEME ZEARSH

ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 F [ B £ g 7 R 4* &
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20 SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24
August 2012 (the “Scheme”) under which it may grant
options to employees of the Group (including executive
directors of the Company) and other third parties
to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to a
maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time excluding for
this purpose any shares issued on the exercise of options.
The exercise price will be determined by the Company’s
board of directors and shall at least be the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’'s shares on the
date of grant of the options, and (ii) an average closing
price of the Company's shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options.

On 11 August 2014, a total of 18,000,000 share options
(the "2014 Share Options”) were granted to certain
qualified participants of the Group (including an executive
director of the Company) under the Scheme. The 2014
Share Options entitle the grantees to subscribe for a total
of 18,000,000 new shares of $0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company. Depending on the financial
performance of the Group and other conditions of the
2014 Share Options, not more than 50% of the 2014
Share Options will be vested on 1 August 2015 and not
more than 50% of the 2014 Share Options will be vested
on 1 August 2017. The exercise price of the 2014 Share
Options is $0.419 per share, which represents the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company of
$0.405 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company of
$0.419 per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company of $0.10 per
share. All the 2014 Share Options were accepted by the
grantees.

20 HERRAE

ARBAR -_ZE——FNA_+UBEKHB—EE
BREE TBRLAAEEZEE (BEAAR]
ZHITEZ ) REZERLEREUNERBAQ
AlZlEh MEERZURARAFEETRAR
BE(TRRETEEREMEBET RN )IZ0% A
Ro-ZBRETEESRARRIZESSET
LYV R BIRH R EBRERTFBE 2 WHE : &)
ZERTEREBINABISBARARKRG
FHUWTHE -

—ZT—WEN\A+—BE18,000,00017 i A%
B(IZE—UERENDERTAEBIETES
BERZ228E (BEARZHNITESR) %
—ERERTFTEARARESREMEAI0T
ZRNTIZRAE 18,000,000 1% - 1R 15 & F 8
BEEREM T —HEREGKYE  THBiB50%
ZE—NERESER_ZE—HEFENA—B®
BB RTHBBS0% S —MBEREBRN -
TE—t+tFNA—HEREB - — T —UERETE
BEAEM0.4197T - PA>)A R &) AR 10 7 B AR 3%
FHEZHHEER0.4057T: (NBER THRE
HAMAEARXSAARGRG ZFHRTEER
0.41970: K (iNARAFRKRD 2 S REEO.107T
—HEURSERE -MAE T —WEREL A
N
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

On 27 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
24,700,000 share options (the “2016 Share Options”)
to certain qualified participants of the Group (including
executive directors of the Company) under the Scheme.
The 2016 Share Options entitle the grantees to subscribe
for a total of 24,700,000 new shares of $0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company. The exercise price
of the 2016 Share Options is $0.70 per share, which
represents the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
of the Company of $0.70 per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of
the Company of $0.656 per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately proceeding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company
of $0.10 per share. All the 2016 Share Options were
accepted by the grantees.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Jg % IR 2 7]

20 BRE#)

T E-XEt+A-t+tEtBEARBHA
24,700,000 B8N ([ —"BRE]ER
FAEBIETAERZREE (BEARAZH
TEE) T "HERER TARARBESR
HEA0.10TT 2 A ZIRA & $£24,700,000%7
Be —ZT—NBRETEREAERO. 70T ' LAG)
ARAEIBRORERER TR ZHMESRO0.70
T(NEERTEREBINAERS B AR A
B 2 U B & AK0.6567T ¢ M (iii) AN A AR
DZEREEIOT ZEURSEARE-TA
TE - NEBRERAEARAZER-



Notes to the Financial Statements

W B 2 W it

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

B ()
BREZ HRREENT

20 SHARE OPTIONS (Conta) 20

(a) The terms and conditions of the Share Options (a)

are as follows:

Exercise price Number of
per share options Vesting condition  Expiry date
BRITEER BREHE BT Rt EIRER=R -
Options granted to directors: BERERTES:

-on 11 August 2014 -RZE—F $0.419 5,000,000 Not more than 10 August
NA+—H 5,000,000 options 2024

will vest on

1 August 2015 *
T%H5,000,0008 _—T_MF
BEER-_Z—HF NA+A

NA—BEB*
—on 11 August 2014 -R-E—N&F $0.419 5,000,000 Not more than 10 August
NR+—H 5,000,000 options 2024

will vest on

1 August 2017 *
T%H5,000,0008 —FTMF
BREBN_T—t5F ARTH

NA—BEB*
—on 27 October 2016 -RZZE—RF $0.70 3,150,000 Vestingon 26 October
+A=-++H 1 July 2017 2026
R-ZB—+F _—ZTRF
tH—BEE +tA=-+X<AH
—on 27 October 2016 ~-RZE—RF $0.70 3,150,000 Vestingon 26 October
+AZ+tHA 1 July 2018 2026
RZZE-N\F ZTZRHE
+tA—-BEE TAZ-+7X<H
—on 27 October 2016 -RZZE—RF $0.70 4,200,000 Vesting on 26 October
+A=-++H 1 July 2019 2026
RZZE-NFE TR %
tA—BEE +tA-+XAH
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (cont'a) 20

(a) The terms and conditions of the Share Options (a)
are as follows: (Cont’d)

fEE ()
B8 AR A

=k
% TA

RGEHOT: (£)

Exercise price Number of
per share options Vesting condition  Expiry date
BRITEER BREHE BTt B A

Options granted to employees: BRERTFEI:

-on 11 August 2014 -RZE—NF $0.419 4,000,000 Vesting on 10 August
NA+—H 1 August 2015 2024
RZZ—hF ZTZ@EF
NA—BEE NA+A
—-on 11 August 2014 -RZE—NF $0.419 4,000,000 Vesting on 10 August
ANA+—H 1 August 2017 2024
R-ZB—+F Z—T-_MmF
NA—BEE ANR+A
—on 27 October 2016 ~-RZE—RF $0.70 4,260,000 Vestingon 26 October
TAZTtH 1 July 2017 2026
R_TB—+tF _—TRF
+tA—BEE TtAZ-+X<AH
—on 27 October 2016 —-RZE—RF $0.70 4,260,000 Vesting on 26 October
+A=-++H 1July 2018 2026
R-ZB-NF Z—ZT_RF
+tA—H®BE THZ-t/<AH
—on 27 October 2016 ~-RZE—RF $0.70 5,680,000 Vestingon 26 October
+AZ+tHA 1 July 2019 2026
RZB-NF ZTRHF
+tA—-BEE TAZ-+7X<H

Total number of share options BB HE BB 42,700,000
* The vesting of the Share Options granted to an executive g MARFMTEETR T HEREZ FBIUARASE

director of the Company is subject to the performance of the
Group and other conditions.
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (cont'a) 20 fEhesE (@)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BEREHERMELHITEEDT:
prices of share options are as follows:

2017 2016
il 3 ZE-RE
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
g INEF
TEE BREE 1TEE BREHE
‘000 ‘000
T +
Outstanding at the beginning of ~ RE#HKITE
the year $0.419 18,000 $0.419 18,000
Granted during the year RERRE $0.70 24,700 - -
Forfeited during the year REAKE $0.70 (500) - -
Outstanding at the end of the year R FJE KT $0.58 42,200 $0.419 18,000
Exercisable at the end of the year W& A] 471 $0.419 9,000 $0.419 9,000
The Share Options outstanding as of 31 March 2017 had RZE—tF=ZA=+—HB ®HERTEZIEBR
an exercise price of $0.419 or $0.70 (2016: $0.419) per EZITEEBRSR0.4197T8%0.707T (ZF — X
share and a weighted average remaining contractual life of F:0.4197T) R INEFHITEE L F HI8.6445F
8.64 years (2016: 8.37 years). TE—RF:8.37F) -
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (Cont'd)

(d) Fair value of the Share Options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the 2014 Share Options and 2016 Share Options granted
was measured based on the Trinomial Model, after taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. The contractual life of the
share option and expectations of early exercise were
incorporated into the Trinomial Model. The significant
assumptions and inputs used in the valuation model are as
follows:

Fair value of and assumptions for 2014 share options

Fair value at $0.176 to $0.194
measurement date
Share price $0.405
Exercise price $0.419
Risk-free interest rate 1.97%
Expected volatility 52.84%
Expected dividend yield 2.47%
Expected exercise multiple 221028

Fair value of and assumptions for 2016 share options

Fair value at $0.239 to $0.271
measurement date
Share price $0.70
Exercise $0.70
Risk-free interest rate 1.00%
Expected volatility 51.27%
Expected dividend yield 5.00%
Expected exercise multiple 1.8t04.0

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Jg % IR 2 7]

20 BRE &)
(00 BEE>ATVEREBER

PR B R ERBREZRBE 2 AFEDZ
BAIRLBEEZAFEAE-IRH TN
BREN T R"BREZFEMARG R
ZEBBREBARL 2GR EGHRRE=]
ABRAE -BREZANFHRRETEZE
HEMNAZEABRR - HEEAMERZEKR
BRMEAEET :

“E-IBEREAFERMEEREBR

ReAEHZAFEE $0.176% $0.194
mGEE $0.405
TEER $0.419
1 [ b ) R 1.97%
TEH R IR 52.84%
TEHARR Bz 2.47%
TEHTTEEH 2.2%2.38

ZE-NBEREQAFERMEBERER

ReE2EHZRAFE $0.239 = $0.271
miZEE $0.70
ITEER $0.70
4 2 b FI & 1.00%
T8 5K 1R 51.27%
TEHARR B s 5.00%
TEHTTEEH 1.824.0
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20 SHARE OPTIONS (Conta)

(d) Fair value of the Share Options and
assumptions (Cont’d)

Risk-free interest rate is based on the yields of the Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Notes at the grant date. Expected
volatility is based on the historical volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share
options). Expected dividend yield is based on historical
dividend trend of the Company and expected future
dividend policy determined by management.

The vesting of the share options granted are subject to
the performance of the Group and other conditions. Such
non-market conditions have not been taken into account
in the grant date fair value measurement of the share
options. There are no market conditions associated with
the share options granted.

The Trinomial Model is subject to certain fundamental
limitations because of the subjective nature of and
uncertainty relating to the assumptions and inputs to the
model as well as certain inherent limitations of the model
itself. Any changes in the above assumptions or inputs may
materially affect the fair value estimation.

(d)  The total expense recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2017 in respect of the Share
Options is $2,561,000 (2016: $1,020,000) (note
29(a)).

20 BERE (@)
© BREZAFPERMBBEERR (&)

LR R R AR R S0 B 2 9 B S AE SR
Z W3S o TE AR IR AR IR BE 04 0 (AR VR AR AR
B2 NETHHBERAE) EEREKRE
WA 2 IR L AR R E IR B A R AR
B -

REzcBREZEBERANAEE 2 XENME
ORI - SEIEM IS RHEZBRER L AR KRE
BEIAFEZFE -BAEREER L BRIERRE
ZHISEEAHZE-

“HEABMSREEARRS REBZ2HEENE
ARRLBIE 2 THEEN  ARETEARAR
FZRBY D RRIBIBEBEEAE TS
NP EEFELEEARZE -

d BE-F-—LtF-A=-t+t-HLEFE"
RESCHIAZEBBRELERS
2,561,0007T (=% — 734 :1,020,000
7t) (KfEE29(a)) °
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21 OTHER RESERVES 21 HvfREE
(a) Group (a) &&
Available-for-
Capital  Share-based sale assets
Share Treasury Capital Merger  redemption compensation  revaluation  Translation
premium share reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
URG%N THEERE
R EE ERR EXRE AURE EARERE  HERE  ZERRE BERE S
$'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $/000 §'000 $/000 $'000 $'000
r i i r i Tz i r i
Balance at 1 April 2015 “E-IEMA-BEH 274,454 - 2,608 (38,000 459 1267 204 15,599 256,591
Currency translation differences ERHEER - - - - - - - (17,447) (17,447)
Reversal of translation reserve upon BEBENRZAEHE DR
liquidation of an associate - - - - - - - 769 769
Equity settled share-based transactions  AARR(A 1225 (Mf520)
(note 20) - - - - - 1,020 - - 1,020
Fair value gains on available-for-sale ARHESREEATE NE
financial assets - - - - - - 53 - 53
Reclassification of fair value gains on AHLEREEATE ME
avalable-for-sale financial assets to REERENHBEEE
profit or loss upon disposal - - - - - - (201) - (201)
Balance at 31 March 2016 “E-RESASt-AzER 274,454 - 2,608 (38,000) 459 2,287 56 (1,079) 240,785
Balance at 1 April 2016 “E-AEMA-AzER 274,454 - 2,608 (38,000) 459 2,287 56 (1,079 240,785
Currency translation differences BHAGEER = = = = = - = (29,876) (29,876)
Equity settled share-based transactions ~ BABR{3 3 2% % (Mf3¥20)
(note 20) - - - - - 2,561 - - 2,561
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AHLERREEATE ME
financial assets - - - - - - 9 - 9
Repurchase of shares (note 21(c)i) IR (HEE21 (o)) - (875) - - - - S S (875)
Balance at 31 March 2017 ZE-+EZAZt+-AzEH 274,454 (875) 2,608 (38,000) 459 4,348 65 (30,955) 212,604
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21 OTHER RESERVES (Contd)

21 HMREE )

(b) Company (b) &AF
Available-for-
Capital Share-based sale assets
Share Treasury redemption  Contributed compensation revaluation
premium share reserve surplus reserve reserve Total
URGAXE WREEEE
R 1R E ERFR EBXBEERE AR ZHMERE ZEfRE At
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Balance at 1 April 2015 “E-nEMA-AzEt 274,454 - 459 193,185 1,267 204 469,569
Equity settled share-based IR X T2 % 5 (HiiE20)
transactions (note 20) - - - 1,020 - 1,020
Fair value gains on AREESREEATEL
available-for-sale financial assets Y - - - - 53 53
Reclassification of fair value gains on A HESBEEATEL
available-for-sale financial assets to ~ WHERHEBEHHEE
profit or loss upon disposal B# - - - - (201) (201)
Balance at 31 March 2016 “E-XE=A=t-AZ
&8 274,454 459 193,185 2,287 56 470,441
Balance at 1 April 2016 “E-NEMA-AzEtH 274,454 459 193,185 2,287 56 470,441
Equity settled share-based WD X T2 % 5 (Hi3E20)
transactions (note 20) - - - 2,561 - 2,561
Fair value gains on AREESREEATEL
available-for-sale financial assets Yo - - - - 9 9
Repurchase of shares (note 21 (i)  BIEERLR (B 721 (c)iii) = - - - S (875)
Balance at 31 March 2017 “E-tf=f=t-A2
<33 274,454 459 193,185 4848 65 472,136

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

At 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was $379,172,000 (31 March 2016:
$260,681,000). After the end of the reporting period, the
directors proposed a final dividend of HK4.2 cents and
special dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share (2016:
final dividend of HK2.75 cents and special dividend of
HK$nil per ordinary share), amounting to $103,540,000
(2016: $54,895,000) (note 34(a)). This dividend has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

BREARE-NN—FRRVER  SARGKGAH
DIERTRE  BEXMNREEZROARR TN
ARG HMEBEECAEREGEHSEAM
IPREBEREERHRITRAREMNDHEE Z A
BE RIARRAATAEN  XABRE  HREBA
BHIEH DK ©

RZE—+tF=ZA=+—H AJ#}OELERF
oA A EERTEEA379,172,000t (==&
—7 % :260,681,000T) *HEHRE EFE
BRRERBRESR T ERS. 2B X5 RIR
BEREEKRI.OBWN (ZE—RE: KRBKREFT
REBI2.75B U R EBREENRE) -85
103,540,000 ( ==& — 7<% : 54,895,0007T)
(MFsE34(@a)) - ERBEBRRIEAERAEE

%Eo
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21 OTHER RESERVES (Contd)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
0 Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of entities outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2(y).

(i) Available-for-sale assets revaluation reserve

The available-for-sale assets revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale equity securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 2(g).

(i) Treasury share

The Group repurchased a total of 968,000 of the
Company's shares during the year ended 31 March 2017,
of which no shares have been cancelled as at 31 March
2017. The total consideration paid to repurchase these
shares was $875,000, which has been deducted from
equity attributable to the owners of the company.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Jg % IR 2 7]

21 HREE 2
(0 HEZHEREN

0  BEEE

BREREERARETEUNINEBMBHRRM
EXZBIINEEZR - BRREIIREME2Y)
Iz Bt RREE -

(i) AHRLEEEEE (G

AL EEEELHBERNBEHRTAZ
AL EREESFAFEZEAFAEFHFHR AR
B E2(g)E I 2 A BUREHE ©

(i) EFR

HE T +tHF=-A=+—HIFER AEH
HEBE968,000l A RARE-R_TE—tF =
A=+—8B YERMNERTH BOBEZRH
B R EARS875,0000T ZRBERAR AR
REMESP G-
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22 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 22 EBFREMER BtERARHEAE
OTHER PAYABLES LCEN
2017 2016
—E—tF A
$°000 $'000
Tr Tt
Trade payables H S EMIRNK 230,309 259,352
Accruals for rental expenses et E 30,805 42,746
Accruals for purchase of property, EETIEEME BB K& HE
plant and equipment 22,928 24,268
Salaries and staff welfare payable EftEHe kB IR 139,294 113,464
Accrual for properties under development et 12,586 1,588
Other payables and accruals HiENIRR R ETER 109,952 102,230
315,565 284,296
545,874 543,648
The carrying amounts of trade payables, accruals and other BORNIER B ERREMEMNIRRZIRE
payables approximate their fair values. All trade payables BEEAFERE RE—tFR_FT—-RF=
and accruals as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are expected R=+T—BZFEESERNERREFERRE
to be settled within one year. HR—FABN-
Trade payables ageing analysis, based on invoice date, is as EoRMEFRREZAMAEZRESTAT -
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZE—RF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
0 to 90 days 0&90H 220,017 240,857
91 to 180 days 91£180H 9,216 15,439
181 to 360 days 1812360H 276 2,928
Over 360 days 360H A 800 128
230,309 259,352
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23 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE

23 mEHRETEE

LEASES
At 31 March 2017, the Group had obligations under RZB—+EF=ZA=+T—RH FAEEFEEHRE
finance leases repayable as follows: HEAERNT :
2017 2016
ZE-tF ZEREF
Present value
of minimum Present value
lease Total minimum of minimum  Total minimum
payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
RIEHEE RIEHEE HEHE HEHE
MEZBRE REHEE FEZBE BB
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tr Fr T
Within one year —FR 17 23 6,848 6,988
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 55 —EEHFR 77 92 = =
Over five years AFAE 34 37 - -
128 152 6,848 6,988
Less: future finance charges W RRBMEE A (24) (140)
Present value of lease obligations HEAEZRE 128 6,848
Representing: €
Non-current portion L= 111 -
Current portion e D 17 6,848
128 6,848

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental

payments.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % R 2 7]
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L E &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A &SN - IAETLIIR)

24 BANK BORROWINGS 24 HBITHE
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ET—RF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Portion of bank borrowings repayable —FREBZRITEEZHHD
within one year 50,333 331,528
Bank borrowings classified as current liabilities DB ARSI BB ZEITEE 50,333 331,528
Portion of bank borrowings repayable —FREERRDER/IERE
after one year and classified BEZRITEE 2N
as non-current liabilities 489,467 60,278
Total bank borrowings IRITIE BB 539,800 391,806
Representing: Rk
Secured B 100,000 188,005
Unsecured i 439,800 203,801
Total bank borrowings RrTEE RS 539,800 391,806

As at 31 March 2017, banking facilities of $240,000,000
were secured by the share capital of the two wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, Castfast Industrial
(Yan Tien) Limited and RE=mAIEMERZE AR QA
such facilities were utilised to extent of $100,000,000
as at 31 March 2017 (2016: banking facilities of
$188,005,000 were secured by land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of $99,389,000, such facilities
were utilised to the extent of $188,005,000 at 31 March
2016).

At 31 March 2017, borrowings totalling HK$50,333,000
(2016: HK$331,528,000) have a contractual maturity
within one year or are subject to repayment on demand
clauses. Some of the Group’s banking facilities are subject
to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group's statement of financial position ratios. If the Group
were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at 31
March 2017 none of the covenants relating to drawn
down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate
their fair values and are denominated in HK$.

RZE—+F=ZA=Z+—H £KEBEETEE
%6240,000,000t AA R B2 EWBE AR FEH
EEPBRRAEBERARERTRAEER
BERRARIZBRAEETR MR _E—+F=A
—t+—HE#®HsAZHE /100,000,0007T (=
T—RF R{TEE% A188,005,000 T LA L b
M F A HIRHEEA99,389,000 T R - M
R-E—RNFZA=ZT+—HEWPBAZRE A
188,005,0007T ) ©

R-ZE—+F=ZA=+—H RITEELEHD
HAA—FARARIBRRIZEREERIZEHE
$#50,333,000c (=& — /X% :331,528,000
TL) cAKBESRITHEAFARNEERS TH
BARRKRLEL BB RAEBITEAIEE - #
AEEERBBER B\Jaiﬁxzmﬁﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁéi
BE - AEETHEREBETEBEREZS
R-_E—+F=ZA=+—8" Tﬁiﬁﬁéﬁﬁiﬁmﬂﬁ
ERZRLEER-

fEEZREEREE A FERIRAETREN -
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25 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 AEEHBRRKRPHIE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Current taxation (a) AHIFIE
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—REF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FEBRBNEH 2 EMHE
for the year 18,431 18,896
Provisional Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREREBNEN (14,514) (9,946)
3,917 8,950
Balance of Hong Kong Profits Tax provision — LART & & & B FI15 5 &4
relating to prior years 3 4,333 5,364
Provision for overseas taxation BINFTIS B 2 24 45,451 44,236
53,701 58,550
Current tax recoverable 7K BR AT U [o] 7 78 (1,701) (712)
Current tax payable 7K B S R 18 55,402 59,262
53,701 58,550
(b) Deferred taxation (b) EEFHE
Fair value
gain of
Accelerated investment
depreciation properties Others Total
REME
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE MERE LAFEZUE Hit i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
At 1 April 2015 “E-HTFMA—H 4922 4,473 4,257 13,652
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss R1ExE 4,/ (5t A) 1,261 (2,754) - (1,493)
Exchange difference HRpER = (133) = (133)
At 31 March 2016 and —E-X"E=ZA=1+-H
1 April 2016 ER-—E-x<§MA—AH 6,183 1,586 4,257 12,026
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss F82% (5HA) /734 (502) 338 = (164)
Exchange difference HBZER - (74) - (74)
At 31 March 2017 —E—+E=H=+—H 5,681 1,850 4,257 11,788
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25 TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Cont’d)

(b) Deferred taxation (Cont’d)

25 RESHBERRERPHRIE 2)

(b) EEHIEA (&

Tax losses Others Total

Deferred tax assets EEHREBEEE BEERE Hit A

$'000 $'000 $'000

Tt Tt Fr

At 1 April 2015 “E-HFEWMA—H (1,012) (1,548) (2,560)

(Credited)/charged to profit or loss RiE% (5t A) /X8 (1,416) 910 (506)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 —-R"E=ZA=+-HEK

—A~ENA—H (2,428) (638) (3,066)

Charged/(credited) to profit or loss RBEXHE,/ (GTA) 296 (887) (591)

At 31 March 2017 —E—+t&=H=+—H (2,132) (1,525) (3,657)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same tax jurisdiction.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

EREERMNIBECERIAEEREENIRE
B METHEHR Y ME —HEHEE BIF
RREHRIBEEEREERERBEEREN- E(‘E
ANBERFR  TIHBEREEVBIRRRAE
N

2017 2016

—®-—tF -TAF

$'000 $'000

SFoe Tt

Deferred tax assets TR TEE E (1,524) (638)
Deferred tax liabilities R IEEE 9,655 9,598
8,131 8,960

At 31 March 2017, in accordance with the accounting RZE—+tF=ZA=Z+—H BRI RN T
policy set out in note 2(v), the Group had unrecognised B3R W B2V AEBEARBERELERIBEEL

deferred tax assets of approximately $17,622,000 (2016:
$14,679,000) primarily representing the tax effect of
cumulative tax losses (subject to agreement by relevant tax
authorities) which can be carried forward against future
taxable income, of which, tax losses of $119,725,000
(2016: $103,677,000) can be carried forward indefinitely.

17,622,0007C ( — & — 75 :14,679,0007T) °

TERRRFAPABBIVNAZE (AXEBEN
BHRERE) L2/ ERRHHKALE -

M EE B 4119,725,00070 (Z & — N F:
103,677,0007T ) A] #E[R HY 45 85 o
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26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(a) Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group and its employees makes monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group's and the employees’ mandatory contributions are
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000
and thereafter, contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group’s
annual contributions to these plans represent defined
contributions, and the Group has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

(b) Defined benefit retirement plan - Long service
payments

Provision for long service payments represents the Group'’s
obligations for long service payments to its employees
in Hong Kong on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plans
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
Such long service payment obligations are valued by
Mercer Human Resource Consulting Ltd, an independent
qualified actuary valuer.

Karrie International Holdings Limited 3 7l [ B # Ig % R 2 7]

26 RIAENEE

(a) FREMKEE

AEEELHBEEELUEBHFHURNESETE
([BE2sE]) BBESFTIBRRTEHKG
B BABURIEAEE -RBERBEHE A&
BErHEEEBAHEEHEEBE ZAR (X R
FlERNEEED )% B ZATEIELHR - A E
MEEBZHAABSZLA30,000t A LR HiE2
HRAUNBEEME -

RIEPEERBE AKREARATEEE MR
BEZBARE RN EIEH K - ARBAL
S FERBREHEI LM E A ERENR
& X SRR AR A R BB b ] A o RAK
BEZHARKEH—HHBERE ZEK
FEIEME

(b) HRERKBAFE-ROERKE

EHRBEEBRASERETARERRBEMNE
ETEHBATRIEREEMX N2 EHRE
PTEZEE

ZEETRNEABMEELAAE U EMBRE
R A SR BRRET 8 T A KB HRAHEZE
AR RRPREEETHBISERBEM
XEANERERARARGE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (FxRA SN LABTTHIR)

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(Cont’d)

(b) Defined benefit retirement plan - Long service

payments (Cont’d)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are determined as follows:

26 RBRAREFEE &)

(b) HRERAKBAAE-REBRKE (&)

RESVBARNRER 2 SRRIZ NI T AEE

2017 2016
—E—tHF NS
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Present value of unfunded obligations and REEEAZBHEERR
liability in the consolidated statement of REMBRARRNZBE
financial position 5,642 7,653

A portion of the above asset/liability is expected to be
recovered/paid after more than one year. However, it is not
practicable to segregate this amount from the amounts
payable in the next twelve months, as future contributions
will also relate to future services rendered and future
changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions.
The Group expects to pay $323,000 in contributions to
defined benefit retirement plan for the year ending 31
March 2018 (2017: $353,000).

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as
follows:

FMEE BBz BLoBHENBE—FE&
WE TR SheBERARK+T—EA
ERzeBEI>AL AT REBRKERIN
BRARBEHZBEERARBEBRZIEMIEE
Mz REBEE-_ZE—\F=ZA=1+—HILE
EA - AEBBEH AR TERARBRE L FHER
323,0007C (=& —+ 4 :353,0007T) °

ARG MEMEABRARERZESENT

=
K12
op

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Current service cost 7 HA AR 75 BX AR 115 135

Interest on obligation BEEHMR 130 100

Total amounts recognised in profit or loss REBEZERR B LR

(note 29(a)) (Fff5E29(a)) 245 235
Net actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in REMEPEBACHERZEE

other comprehensive income F () BB (2,017) 1,374

Total FEElE] (1,772) 1,609
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26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 26 ERAREBEINEE 2
(Cont’d)
(b) Defined benefit retirement plan - Long service (b) HRERKENFHE-RBEKRES(Z)

payments (Cont’d)

The current service cost and the net interest on obligation RNERBRARFEANECEBRERGEER
were included in the “general and administrative KP—REITHERA-

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Movements in the provision for long service payments of AEBRARBEFBEHOT :

the Group are as follows:

2017 2016
—E 4t ZE—REF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
At 1 April RMWA—A 7,653 6,356
Remeasurements: EHFEr=E
— Actuarial gains arising from changes in —HBVBRENEMELE L
financial assumption BE W (272) (267)
— Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from — SR AERESE 2
experience adjustment BE (=), /BB (1,745) 1,641
(2,017) 1,374
Payments made during the year FREMNER (239) (312)
Current service cost 7R BR AR 7% AR AR 115 135
Interest cost B A 130 100
At 31 March N=A=+—H 5,642 7,653

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit AEBMNBEEZMEFHERF/13.8F (ZF

obligation is 13.8 years (2016: 14.0 years). —NEF14.0F) o
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26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(Cont’d)

(b) Defined benefit retirement plan - Long service

payments (Cont’d)

Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis are
as follows:

26 RBRAREFEE &)

(b) HRERAKBAAE-REBRKE (&)

EEREZBEREBBRES>HTAT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Per annum Per annum
8F ESEaS
Discount rate AL IR & 1.80% 1.70%
Expected rate of future salary increases RRF - TEHE R 5.00% for 2016,
4.00% p.a.
thereafter
ZE—RF:
5.00% -
4.00% H 124.00%
The below analysis shows how the defined benefit RZFE—tERZZFE-R"F=ZA=+—H EER
retirement plan — long service payments as at 31 March BEREM CRD)0.50%E R ERFBKE

2017 and 2016 would have increased/(decreased) as
a result of 0.50% change in the significant actuarial
assumptions:

B-RERBEZTZESNOT:

2017 2016
—E—t& —E-RF

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

in 0.50% in 0.50% in 0.50% in 0.50%

12 110.50% #40.50% 12 100.50% H40.50%

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Tr T Fr T

Discount rate BhIH = (1,230) 1,446 (1,404) 1,567

Expected rate of future salary R R E BN > 78 HA

increases # R R 173 (178) 211 (223)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption
that changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated
and therefore it does not take into account the correlations
between the actuarial assumptions.

AEBRESTRERR EE&Q#"”’TE“ZF‘?

RABEBMEE RSB ERIAEBEE 2
o,
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27 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME/GAINS 27 WA -HttA hERk (EE)
AND (LOSSES)
2017 2016
—E—tHF ZT—RF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Revenue KA
Sales of merchandise and provision of services 7 & $5 & K& 12 (R 7%
— Metal and plastic business —TeBRBER 1,435,898 1,500,133
— Electronic manufacturing services business ~— & FHER T 7% 1,256,973 1,369,868
— Consumer and services business —HBEMREEED 18,802 26,068
2,711,673 2,896,069
Sale of properties MEEE 4,186 1,536
2,715,859 2,897,605
Other income/gains and (losses) Hil A Wz RK (E8)
Rental income e WA 2,719 2,353
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BELREZ
equipment Wz, (E518) 1,095 (388)
Realised loss on forward derivatives EHNTETAEL B - (1,228)
Impairment losses on property, plant and M WEREE 2 RESE
equipment (note 7) (MI5E7) - (13,129)
Gain on liquidation of an associate BEBE AR 2 s - 1,684
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary BEMB AR KR 487 -
Loss on disposal of investment in an associate HEREE R A 2K E 2 E1E - (58)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEEREEZRERSE
financial assets (201) (299)
Impairment loss on investment in an associate FAEE4 A E 2 & 2 REERE (2,490) =
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEESEE W
financial assets - 1,086
Others HAh 2,117 7,579
3,727 (2,400)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B3 A &SN - IAETLIIR)

28 RMESIEZEHN

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
$'000 $'000
Fx Fr
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEZREE (MFE16(b))

(note 16(b)) 2,013,656 2,125,924
Carrying amount of properties sold (note 17(b)) B & ¥ % Z IR EE (M 3E17(b) ) 955 288
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % &= K& &2 T E

(note 7): (FF5E7) -

— owned assets -BBEE 53,556 78,665
— leased assets —HEEE 4,632 5,205

58,188 83,870
Amortisation of land use rights (note 6) b fsh P 2 # 3H (BREe) 472 620
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9) B EE ZEHE (M59) 3,657 3,543
Employee benefit expenses EERNASZ (BREZFHE)

(including directors’ remuneration) (FtEE29(a) )

(note 29(a)) 367,272 378,200
Operating lease rental of premises MEZKEHERS 14,758 23,322
Net exchange (gain)/loss FEH (W), B8 38 (2,993) 1,367
Auditor’s remuneration 2% BB BN & 3,092 2,792
Recognition of allowance for impairment of B 5 K H b fE W IR ZORBE B 2

trade and other receivables (note 14) TR (MIzE14) - 3,220
Other expenses Hh 62,763 110,407

2,521,820 2,733,553
Representing: R&:
Cost of sales HE AR 2,361,314 2,546,039
Distribution and selling expenses DERHEER 24,087 44,450
General and administrative expenses — R RITHER 136,419 143,064
2,521,820 2,733,553
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

- INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

29 REERAMZH-BRESEHE

REMUNERATION
(a) Employee benefit expenses during the year are (@) FREEREANXZHMOT:
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Wages and salaries FMRIE 345,884 355,448
Contributions to defined FE HEFUR KRG Bl 2 it
contribution retirement plans 18,582 21,497
Provision for long service payments (note 26) KEIRRE & &M (M 7E26) 245 235
Share option expenses (note 20(d)) BB AR RE S B (BTEE20(d)) 2,561 1,020
367,272 378,200

(b) Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

(b) EBMS

RIBF AR AMEHIEIIERDAIGHIZEZF
N(BEBREEENZHEENRIIZEZHE

Companies Ordinance (Disclosure of Information about WEWMT
Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:
2017
“E-tf
Employer's
contributions Share-based
Discretionary to retirement payments
Name of director Fees Salary bonuses plans Subtotal (note) Total
MERHz BASHE MR % 4
EZEE ik e B ZEEHR PR (HEE) &
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tr Tr Tr Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors HITEZE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai ks - 4,676 2,388 - 7,064 - 7,064
Mr. Zhao Kai ik e - 952 1,729 13 2,694 277 2,971
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia B2/ MA - 809 649 18 1,476 396 1,872
Mr. Chan Raymond BREE A - 797 739 15 1,551 396 1,947
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming A% E 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Ho Kai Man 8¢ 420 - 115 18 553 - 553
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE
Mr. So Wai Chun BEREE 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing pibdib: 100 - - - 100 - 100
Mr. Yam Chung Shing FERLE 100 - - - 100 40 140
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 29 EERAZH-ERESEME 2
— INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION (Cont’a)
(b) Directors’ remuneration (Cont’d) (b) EE=ME (&)
2016
ZE-RF
Employer's
contributions Share-based
Discretionary ~ to retirement payments
Name of director Fees Salary bonuses plans Subtotal (note) Total
BB RIKS5E AR A
FEE ik ¢ T ZEEER IR (E) =2
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000
T Fr i i i Fr T
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Fai gL = 4616 1,890 = 6,506 = 6,506
Mr. Zhao Kai iyl = 958 1,601 12 2,571 525 3,09
Mr. Lee Shu Ki FREEE = 870 77 17 964 S 964
Ms. Chan Ming Mui, Silvia RAaRNMA - 774 545 18 1337 = 1337
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming PEL P 325 = = = 325 = 325
Mr. Ho Kai Man R EE 405 = 91 18 514 S 514
Indevendent non-executive directors BUHHTEE
Mr. So Wai Chun REREE 100 = S S 100 S 100
Mr. Chan Shui Sum, Raymond vy 58 - - - 58 = 58
Mr. Fong Hoi Shing FERLA 100 - - - 100 = 100
Mr. Yam Chung Shing FERLE Y] - - - 4 = Y]
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted BisE: HWRRBEAAGTBREFESIRTES ZMHTER

to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payments as set
out in note 2(u). The details of these share options, including
the principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

A L SRR R R A R AR K 52(0)
AR S 1 R 2 B B R < U S IEIR A2 3
- REEEHERRERENE AN HRRN

201K R
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
- INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

(c) Five highest paid individuals (0 EHBBEFMAZL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include four (2016: three) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented

29 REERAMXH-BRESEME &)

AEEEBELERSFHZALEENS (ZF
—RNEFZR)EF - EMEEIRN LEXDT R
FRESB B (ZE-—RF: _R)RaFHFAL

above. The emoluments payable to the remaining one ZEMMEIT
(2016: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

2017 2016
—E-tF —ET—REF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Basic salaries and allowances HARH & K2 1,058 1,504
Discretionary bonus 158 2 TEAL 459 877
Contributions to retirement plans RIRET &I 2 3K 18 36
Share-based payment LA RR 19 32 1<) 3 BM 176 495
1,711 2,912

The emoluments fell within the following band:

ZEMEETIHAGHENR

Number of individuals

AT EE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017C % 1,500,0007T - 1
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,0017T %2,000,0007T 1 1
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30 FINANCE COSTS, NET 30 BAESEAS FE
2017 2016
—E-tHF —T—RF
$°000 $'000
T T+
Finance costs BTG AR
— Interest expense on bank borrowings —RAFREEEEZRIT
wholly repayable within five years BEMEZH 18,343 15,544
— Finance charges on obligations under —BERETREMNBER
finance leases 142 495
Less: interest expenses capitalised B FATERMEN R
into property under development X HE AR
for sale* (6,905) =
11,580 16,039
Finance income BRI
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITTF A B U A (667) (1,137)
— Other interest income —H b F 2 WA (396) (396)
(1,063) (1,533)
Finance costs, net B RAN - 5 5R 10,517 14,506
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 2.73% i BERANFFE273% (ZT—RF E)HEAX
(2016: $nil) per annum. ko

31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 31 MGEBEZERTAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

The amount of taxation charged to consolidated statement RigeBERRXBEIHBERAT
of profit or loss represents:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Current taxation AEABLIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEM
— Current year —KREE 18,431 18,896
— Over-provision in prior years —FF 2 BREERE (581) (728)
Overseas taxation N IR
— Current year —RFE 3,547 3,319
Deferred taxation (note 25(b)) EFERIE (HMsE25(b)) (755) (1,999)
20,642 19,488
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31 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 31 MEGEEBEERTABH (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Cont’d)

ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁ;‘%ﬁﬁzjz;ﬁl“ﬂmwfﬂ&iz&ﬁ
JERT & F1£16.5% T—XNF:165%)27
MEFIRBBRNG %ﬂfiﬁ N A 2 Bk RlliR
BAFEMTERBEMEKAEBE L E LK
FBRRZBRITHMETE -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year for all group companies incorporated in Hong
Kong. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

AEBRBAGHRMEN W BEERERAEL
AEBMAEMZAGHREMAEZERRBELZ

The tax on the Group's profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the profits

tax rate in Hong Kong, the Group’s place of domicile, as ZEWT:
follows:
2017 2016
=E—tF —E—RF
$°000 $'000
Frx Tt
Profit before taxation B 5 A& A 188,854 136,159
Calculated at taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) (ZE—RF: 31,161 22,466
Effect of different taxation rates in other EHMERBHEZR 228
countries 2,581 (2,396)
Associates’ results reported net of tax BE & N RIS MBRTIE (41) (48)
Income not subject to taxation BARBZKWA (21,925) (21,888)
Expenses not deductible for taxation DRI 2 X
purposes 7,397 18,678
Temporary difference not recognised AERZERER (893) {IeEtE;
Over-provision for Hong Kong taxation TF2EBHIB B
in prior years (581) (728)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised EREFARERRGEE
tax losses (428) (159)
Unused tax losses not recognised RERZAREARIEEE 3,371 2,210
Income tax expense Frig i i 20,642 19,488
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32 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company to the extent of approximately $200,249,000
(2016: $60,120,000).

33 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
by weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue after adjusting the potential dilutive effect of the
outstanding options during the year.

32 ARAREZEFEABMGLERN

KANREZEA AEMNEGF £200,249,0007T
—E— X% :60,120,000T) " ERARAZ
MR RABEIE

33 #BR=F

BRERGNDREBEARRERITE ARG G
MEBERFERD BT ZERRNEFOHRTE -

15 B 3 i R T AR R AN 2 B 25 A B A
FRUFRE BT EARMETHHRR AR
R R 2 MR (TR o

2017 2016
—E—tHF A
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of AN Al#EzEHE A A FE(h % 7
the Company ($'000) (F7T) 168,333 117,076
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B 217 3@ 2 hnig F 5 &k
in issue (in thousand shares) (Fh&s) 1,996,196 1,996,196
Effect of outstanding share options MARITEBRE 2 2
(in thousand shares) (FR&&D) 6,354 =
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B 2377& @& (#:58) 2
(diluted) in issue (in thousand shares) I E (FRRET) 2,002,550 1,996,196
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) @&RREAR G F| (AR UAEILET) 8.4 5.9
Diluted earnings per share HEReREN
(HK cents per share) (A& ABALED) 8.4 5.9
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34 DIVIDENDS

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (a)

3 RE

the Company attributable to the year

BRASFEERNEAQRAERFEAZRE

2017 2016
—E-tF A
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Interim dividend declared and paid of BEEMREREFHRES
HK1.3 cent per ordinary share TR 3B (ZT—REF:
(2016: HK0.75 cent per ordinary share) FEBR0.75581U) 25,951 14,971
Final dividend proposed after the end of the R IREHRE B R KK ST
reporting period of HK4.2 cents TR4 2B (ZF =R
per ordinary share FEmR2.75%8100)
(2016: HK2.75 cents per ordinary share) 83,629 54,895
Special dividend proposed after the end of & HA AR 18 R A R I AR B
the reporting period of HK1.0 cent FE @081
per ordinary share (ZZE—REF:
(2016: nil per ordinary share) BEEK: &) 19,911 =
129,491 69,866

The final and special dividends proposed after the end of
the reporting period have not been recognised as a liability

at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of (b)
the Company attributable to the previous

financial year, approved and paid during the

RS BRE R Z R EIRE MBI B R #H
EHRRLRERSEE-

BRE— B BUF R 3R A F B RS ROR S
ZENKRATEEFEAZRE

year
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
$°000 $'000
Fi T
Final dividend in respect of the previous ME—MBFEE 2HER
financial year, approved and ERARNFEIRE 2 RERE
paid during the year, of HK2.75 cents FE@R2.75%81
per ordinary share (2016: Final and (ZE—RF:RHAK
special dividends of HK1.8 cents and BRIk EFERARD R
HK1.0 cent respectively per ordinary share) 1.8l & 1.0%140) 54,895 55,894
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35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The Group had the following significant commitments and
contingent liabilities which were not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements:

35 AERJIREE

BZERARERKAARE:

(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREIE
The Group had the following authorised and contracted
capital commitments at 31 March 2017:

BRBRZERALE:

AEBEATRARKNGEMBHRER LAHIRE

RIZE—tF=A=1+—RH AEBEAUTER

2017 2016
—®—tE  —TAF
$°000 $'000
Fr T

Construction of investment properties A B R B Y%
in the PRC 3,387 105,019
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB Y2 - W/FE K& # 9,179 19,393
12,566 124,412

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERIE
The Group had lease commitments in respect of land
and buildings under various non-cancellable operating
lease agreements extending to October 2055. The total e
commitments payable are analysed as follows:

AEBELEMRE _TRAF+ AT A HEH
ZEMRETFREEENZ - RRNAED TN

2017 2016

—E—+iF —E—REF

$'000 $'000

T Tt

Not later than one year TEBE—F 14,905 11,945
Later than one year and not later than HBA—FEIHBBRE

five years 23,720 30,173

Later than five years BBRFE 92,987 173,936

131,612 216,054
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35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Cont'd)

The Group had future minimum lease rental receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

35 AERJIREE

(b) REHEHREZ)

AEBMENTAAIHEEERE Z RRREE
Wil e

2017 2016

—E-tHF —E—RF

$'000 $'000

T T

Not later than one year THEE—F 95 169

(d) Guarantees

At 31 March 2017, the Company has given guarantees
totalling approximately $1,147,993,000 (2016:
$1,010,731,000) to financial institutions in connection
with the banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries. Such
banking facilities utilised as at 31 March 2017 amounted
to approximately $539,800,000 (2016: $391,806,000).

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions with related parties

(0 #ER

RZE—+F=ZA=Z+—B ARBHBETUH
BEEHRERTRETFTEMKMNB AR ZRIE
REFELA1,147,993,000T (=T — XN F:
1,010,731,0007) - R-—_E—+EFE=A=+—
H - B2#FEA2IR{TRLE 4 /539,800,000t (=
T — /X% :391,806,0007T) °

36 FEBHEALXRS

(a) HEEALZXS

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
$'000 $'000
T T
Purchase of goods: BEEY:
Purchase of raw materials from an associate [ B4 A 7] 8 B Rk = 3,637
Purchase of properties held for sale from MAEARIBERELEME
a related company 42,359 -
Others: Hl:
Rental income from an associate M A RIEE 2 WA 331 301
Management service fee income from MAEARWNEEERA
a related company - 97
Rental charged by a related company & THEAT 2,870 2,870
Consultancy service fee charged by SR B R T E QA
an associate - 311
Purchase of machinery from an associate B NGI L= P 8,381 11,017
Repair and maintenance charged by XTHEERIRE THE QR
an associate 1,561 1,331
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 36 FTEBEALRS (#)
TRANSACTIONS (Conta)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EEREATZ&SR
2017 2016
—E-tF —E-REF
$'000 $'000
Frx T
Amount due to an associate (note 11) FETHE & A EIR R (FFEE11) 2,992 6,741
Amount due to a related company (note 12) FEfTBEE R AR K (FizE12) 65,067 -
The amounts due to an associate and the related company EABE AR RBEQBRKASEEE  T5HF
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B IE%I% Big-
() Key management personnel remuneration (0 TEEEEBEMSE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the KEIZE EBRABHFMH BEIXNTAQA
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors BEE2X Iﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁé (b)) T - & T &= & o

29
as disclosed in note 29(b) and certain of the highest paid BE ZHEBI A 290 E S a T -

employees as disclosed in note 29(c), is as follows:

2017 2016

—E—tF —EB-RF

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Short-term employee benefits = HE 8 & A 20,307 18,603
Post-employment benefits BB AR A 175 173
Share-based payment VA RS A7 3% 11 e B 1,886 1,020
22,368 19,796

Total remuneration is included in “employee benefit
expenses” (see note 29(a)).

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Except for the purchase of properties held for sales from a
related company and rental charged by a related company
as disclosed in note 36(a) that constitute connected
transactions, none of the related party transaction
mentioned above falls under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

37 NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

From 1 April 2017 and up to the date of these financial
statements, the Company has cancelled 5,034,000
shares of the Company, of which 968,000 shares were
repurchased before 31 March 2017 and 4,066,000 shares
were repurchased after 1 April 2017.

R NGEEE

mE@%E

)P 8 2 ) R i

BERRRZIFAREIR

RS UFERE

BREMBERM L] A" (RME

RRERXZFEEZLTRAZERMY

NAIBEEED
Ei@%&?ﬂﬂﬂi%ﬁk AIEKEEER Z I
NEFREZEBEALTRZIE A
14AB TR E 2 &

EHARAE

ERX 5 e

—+FmMA—H ti$ﬁ7n%$&i%
E*ﬁﬁs 034,000/ & A
OHxfoﬁEEA_T s = 5 =
ﬁﬁ4,066,000ﬂx1&1 =2

J’L,r/
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38 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 383 AREEZMBERREK
FINANCIAL POSITION
2017 2016
—E—+1fF —E—RF
Note $'000 $'000
M aE SFoE Tt
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIKE 730,352 702,589
Available-for-sale financial assets AHESREE 18,294 17,889
748,646 720,478
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary N MNGIL SN 125,000 25,000
Prepayments, deposits and other R Ee REAM
receivables JE U IR X 1,228 3,714
Cash and cash equivalents Re RIBITEK 2,578 852
128,806 29,566
Total assets EEHAE 877,452 750,044
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable ARTEERTFE ARG
to equity shareholders of the IR 7 % ik 4
Company
Share capital i 7 19 199,620 199,620
Other reserves H b # 21 472,136 470,441
Retained earnings fREB & A 186,862 67,496
Total equity EZEE 858,618 737,557
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities eIy =R
Provision for long service payments RERB 2 EB 487 441
Current liabilities i B=Ri
Accruals and other payables FEETE A & E A IR 18,347 12,046
Total liabilities EEHAE 18,834 12,487
Total equity and liabilities ERkBEEE 877,452 750,044
Net current assets REBEEFRE 110,459 17,520
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERARBER 859,105 737,998

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 29 June 2017.

RZE—+tFNAZ+NLEBEHESSHAERR

RETI 3% -

Ho Cheuk Fai Chan Ming Mui, Silvia
1] J2 ¥ PR & IR

Director Director

2 EE
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39 |IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 March 2017, the directors regard TMF (B.V.l.)
Limited, which beneficially owns 40.96% of the
Company's equity interests, to be the immediate and
ultimate controlling party of the Company. Mr. Ho Cheuk
Fai, Ms. Ho Po Chu, and Mr. Ho Cheuk Ming are the
beneficial owners of TMF (B.V.l.) Limited. TMF (B.V.l.)
Limited is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
does not produce financial statements available for public
use.

40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

RZE—+tF=ZA=+—H EEZFRETMF
(B.V.I.) Limited BERHEA XA 740.96%HX1NIJ
H O WAARRZEEBERERLIZEHI AL 1R
SE -MBRLZ T RAERALEATMFE (B.V.L)
LimitedZ Bz %A A > TMF (B.V.1.) Limited A%
BELZBEKIKSELAAETBHIHRE-

1155
B |
W 3k

i

20

iXiid
_|_
&

3| 4
TR
i ) e
S HFHN
Nesgt| |
LLNZ
W |

Jifm (U

BEEAUBRRERER BESMASRM
TEERBE_T—tF=A=+t—HLFE
R R AR 2 Z RIS AT R 2E Rl - T 3 R 7 2 B 7
BRARA - T RERAERAEERR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTHE#HS 2%

HrezastBBER

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
ERVBHmELRNFSR 2@ LA - N\F—H—H

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BBV ERELERNFEISH  KEEF AL Z KA

1 January 2018
—\F—A—H

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and measurement of

share-based payment transactions
ERV B MELERNE2R IEET LR G 1TEEB -
KR X (V8N 7R E

HKFRS 16, Leases
BEAMBHELENE 16 HE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the above developments are relevant
to the Group’s financial statements but the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position except
for HKFRS 15.

1 January 2018
—N\F—HA—H

1 January 2019
—E-NAF—H—H

7N 5% B IERY A Ut F 8 /T K ¥ £ R 5 B R A B
BB RILERS LI ZERI RFE
AIEAEEMBRREM BT EEMBHREE
AIFE 155850 - RN L FAE 5T M /] E R B Z A
EHAKBZEEXRERMBRANTRKERY
2,
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40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017 (Contd)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts. The Group is currently assessing
the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its financial
statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the
Group has identified the following areas which may be
affected:

(@) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in note 2(x). Currently, revenue from sales of goods is
generally recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or service
in the contract. At contract inception, an entity evaluates
whether it transfers the control to the customer over time
and therefore revenue should be recognised over time — if
not, then it transfers control at a point in time and revenue
will be recognised at that single point in time.
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40 CEMEEARRBE-ZT—LtF=
A=+ —BILFEERZIET - #
ZARBREUERBRZZE (&)

ERMBHREZENEISH RAFFESHZBA

EEMBHREEAEISKEY T —EARRKA
BEAHNRAZEZEARBE FEEMBREENE
155 IAIRE 2 WALER: FB G ERIF18
WAl CREHEERMEHRRBAEEZ
WA RBEGFEMNBNR RESH] (F]
PAREGNBAZETRENR) - ANERBE LR
ERABEEVBREERNEISRYEM B RE
ZEE-RENTFE NEECD BRI AT A B

ERErAE:

@  ERHAZEFE

AEEZWAERRFRBEERMFE2(x) - HE -
RHEBRIWABRERRRMAEEaER
ERER TARR -

REZEEMBRELENF 15K EXFPERE
WAz EmE IR < IR RERRA -
REQNGE BERFFGEEERN —BEREAHK
ZHRERTEP - R E LB R &R R
Ak BAGEZEMBRE ZIEHIER X —
FEH LEZETES AABAREFRNZEER
FHER -
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40 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2017 (Cont'd)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Cont’d)

(@) Timing of revenue recognition

Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group expects that
revenue from sales of goods will continue to be recognised
at a point in time. However, as a result of the change
from the risk-and-reward approach to the transfer-of-
control approach, the point in time at which revenue will
be recognised may change upon the adoption of HKFRS
15. Further analysis is required to determine whether this
change in accounting policy may have a material impact
on the amounts reported in any given financial reporting
period.

(b)  Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return the
products, the Group estimates the level of returns and
makes an adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
materially affect how the company recognises revenue and
cost of sales when the customers have a right of return.
However, the new requirement to recognise separately
a return asset for the products expected to be returned
will impact the presentation in the statement of financial
position as the Group currently adjusts the carrying
amounts of inventory for the expected returns, instead of
recognising a separate asset.

40 CEMEEARRBE-ZT—LtF=
A=t - BILEEERZBE 5
HARBEUERBRZZE (&)

BERMBRELEASE
(%)

155 REFEFEHNZHWA

@  HERUAZERE (&)

RENZFHE AEEEHEREEEDRAE
SENRE—REHER AR ARRTAOEE
[ B B2 [ ¥R 2 7 88 R AL Il 4 IR A RE R B ] B A
%I%ﬂ%%%% REZERIE 1558 M2 & -
PMEBETBRRRESEHEMAREE
WW%%%W%¢Zi$EEEK%m

b) HEREREZHE
BAl EEREEEMERER AKEGBEES

Z*ﬁlxﬂ&(k&iﬁ’%ﬁkﬂﬂ’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%o

$’§I?ﬁiﬁﬁ%%w%%ﬁﬁk#& BRI FE15HAG T

SHAEEEBRERARERERNAEREL LA
REERRNERBAZE - AT AR AEEH
AL FREIR B FEIRMEFAE ML IFRER

HA—BYEE HHAERERERSSRE
ﬁﬁ%uﬁiﬁéw,\\\—Iﬁﬂ@iéf?ﬂ%%%?% 1

%%/R%%Z@Jﬁ&ﬁ/ft °
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Five-Year Financial Summary

Y Y E

The results of the Group for the last five financial years
ended 31 March 2017 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 March 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017

are as follows:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

AEBBE-_T—tF=-A=+—BLLAEAYH
BEEH¥E —T—=F-_F—NF =%
—hF ZE-REFRZTE—tF=A=+—H

ZBERBEMT:
mERE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

“E—tf -—T-RE —T-hHF C—E-NF —T-=F

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T T Fr T T

Revenue WA 2,715,859 2,897,605 2,590,623 2,033,018 2,291,404

Operating profit LR 199,124 150,371 93,978 47,183 62,221

Finance income 28 TN 1,063 1,533 3,538 799 4,237

Finance costs B RAR (11,580) (16,039) (13,188) (3,487) (7,536)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates ~ FE{f B & A 7]

wH,/ (EE) 247 294 (193) (201) (3,031)

Profit before taxation BRELATRF 188,854 136,159 84,135 44,294 55,891

Income tax FTisH (20,642) (19,488) (8,429) (11,708) (16,613)

Profit for the year FERA 168,212 116,671 75,706 32,586 39,278

Attributable to: FE1

Equity shareholders of the Company ~ AR RIEZREA A 168,333 117,076 76,298 34,291 39,308

Non-controlling interests R ER (121) (405) (592) (1,705) (30)

168,212 116,671 75,706 32,586 39,278
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L FEMEWE
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES meEBEERERE
At 31 March
R=B=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—t& —Z-R"E —E-hfE Z—E-WNFE —T-=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 853,555 922,326 991,959 792,233 707,198
Current assets MBEE 1,482,949 1,155,765 973,809 870,262 991,143
Total assets BE®E 2,336,504 2,078,091 1,965,768 1,662,495 1,698,341
EQUITY Ei
Share capital R 199,620 199,620 199,620 199,620 199,620
Reserves [t 878,883 817,560 788,529 739,765 724,533
1,078,503 1,017,180 988,149 939,385 924,153
Non-controlling interests FERER (1,750) (1,344) (939) (347) 1,358
Total equity BEFEE 1,076,753 1,015,836 987,210 939,038 925,511
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 504,875 78,044 26,560 39,843 23,553
Current liabilities MEARE 754,876 984,211 951,998 633,614 749,277
Total liabilities BERE 1,259,751 1,062,255 978,558 723,457 772,830
Total equity and liabilities EnkaGReE 2,336,504 2,078,091 1,965,768 1,662,495 1,698,341
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Properties Held by the Group
FEEFAEZYF

As at 31 March 2017 R—ZE—+F=A=+—H

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR FHEEYE
SALE
Site area Stage of Percentage
Location (sq.m.) Lease expiry completion holding
THmEE
ith Bh (EHXK) HERE RRERE EEES
1. No.47-1, Jiahui Lu, 61,864 2085 Preliminary 100%
You Gan Bu Da Long Industrial District, (residential purpose) A1 H7
Fengang Town, Dongguan City, (FEMAH)
Guangdong Province, 2055
The People’s Republic of China (commercial purpose)
(note 1) (FExBH)
FEEREREMEMEERTHAET
¥R EERA7HE-1(HE1)
2. “Forest Town", Phase 3, Castfast Villas, 32,799 2084 Under 50%
Fengang Town, Dongguan City, (residential purpose) Construction
Guangdong Province, ((F=EAH) e
The People’s Republic of China (note 2) 2054
AR & R R se T Bl e 3R (commercial
RESE=BHRE] (MFF2) purpose)
(FEZERAH)
Note: B 5T -
1. The Group expects to commence the construction by the end 1. AREBBEAR - S—+tFFEHIER -_T—HF
of 2017 and to complete in 2019. BT o
2. The pre-sale is expected to commence in the fourth quarter 2. BT —tFENEHRBREES -
of 2017.
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (ELEY/ES
Gross floor area Percentage
Location (sq.m.) Lease expiry holding
BEHEE
h B (FFHXK) HERH BEEES K
1. Unit 258, 165 2062 100%

Sunlight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fengang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
B ERE R B
IR EE HIBR2512B5%
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Properties Held by the Group
rEBRFREZY X

As at 31 March 2017 R—ZE—+HF=H=+—H

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
(Cont’d)

E-L/EIED)

Location

i B

Gross floor area
(sq.m.)

BEHEE
(FF73K)

Lease expiry

HERMY

Percentage
holding

KEET

Unit 16A,

Twilight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fengang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
o BB R A R S B e 8RR
RIEZEVIER168ATR

Unit 25C,

Skylight Court, Castfast Villas,
Fengang Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
PEERE R E
REREZEESECH

47 residential units (formerly used as service
apartments), Area B, Castfast Villas,
Fengang Town, Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

H B B R A R S T B e R
REREBRMN T tEFEEN

(A ABERNASE)

148

143

3,683

2062

2062

2062

100%

100%

100%
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Properties Held by the Group
FEEFEZYF

As at 31 March 2017 R—ZE—+HF=HA=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

MEFFERE

Percentage
Location Existing use holding
Hb B Jizk=s FEESL
1. East of Jingyi Road and South of Wenzhuang Road, Idle 100%
Yixing Economic Development Zone, =B
Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
RENIHEEHT
B AR 7 ) 2 [ S B e
2 B ER A
2. Wenzhuang Road, Idle 100%
Yixing Economic Development Zone, =B

Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REIIEEEHT

SRR A 2 [ S B

Note: The above properties are either freehold, held on long or

medium-term leases or have no specified lease term.
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